CITY OF LOS ANGELES STANDARD LANGUAGE

NGELES 31805

FOR WORKFORCE INVESTMENT ACT JOB TRAINING AGREEMENT

Agreement No. (T4668) *C-1/765*/

Project Title: WORKSOURCE CENTER - Harbor WorkSource Center

Contractor: City of Long Beach (as Administering Entity for Pacific

Gateway Workforce Investment Network)

Doing Business As: N/A

Type of Organization: Governmental Agency

Corporate Number: N/A

Harbor WorkSource Center

Center(s): 1851 N. Gaffey Street, #F

San Pedro, CA 90731

Delivery Service Area

Harbor

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTI	SECTION		
1. INT	TRODUCTION	2	
§101	PARTIES TO THE AGREEMENT	2	
§102	SERVICE OF NOTICES		
§103	TERM OF THE AGREEMENT		
§104	CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO THE EXECUTION OF THE AGREEMENT	3	
§105	CONTRACTOR'S ADMINISTRATIVE AND PERSONNEL DOCUMENTS	4	
§106	INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS OF THE CONTRACTOR	5	
§107	CONTRACTOR'S DUTY TO NOTIFY CITY OF CHANGES	5	
§10 8	DEFINITIONS	5	
2. DU	TIES AND REQUIREMENTS OF THE CONTRACTOR	6	
§201	GENERAL STATEMENT OF WORK TO BE PROVIDED BY THE CONTRACTOR	6	
§202	STATEMENT OF WORK		
3. CO	MPENSATION	33	
§301	CONTRACTOR COMPENSATION	33	
4. ME	THODS AND PROCEDURES GOVERNING PAYMENT	35	
§401	WITHHELD PAYMENTS	36	
§402	FUNDS EARNED PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF THIS AGREEMENT	36	
§403	ALLOWABLE AND UNALLOWABLE COSTS		
§404	PROGRAM INCOME		
§405	RETURN OF PROGRAM INCOME (NOT APPLICABLE TO WIA AGREEMENT)	37	
§406	RETURN OF UNEXPENDED FUNDS AND CLOSEOUTS		
§407	VALIDITY OF FINANCIAL DOCUMENTATION SUBMISSIONS		
§40 8	CUSTOMER RELATED THIRD-PARTY COSTS	38	
5. STA	ANDARD PROVISIONS	39	

§:	501	INDEMNIFICATION	39
§:	502	INSURANCE	39
§:	503	INSURANCE BONDS	40
§:	504	CONSTRUCTION OF PROVISIONS AND TITLES HEREIN	
§:	505	APPLICABLE LAW, INTERPRETATION AND ENFORCEMENT	
§:	506	INTEGRATED AGREEMENT	
§:	507	EXCUSABLE DELAYS	41
§:	508	PROHIBITION AGAINST ASSIGNMENT OR DELEGATION	41
§:	509	PERMITS	41
	510	NON DISCRIMINATION AND AFFIRMATIVE ACTION	41
	511	CLAIMS FOR LABOR AND MATERIALS	
	512	LOS ANGELES CITY BUSINESS TAX REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE	
	513	CONFLICT OF INTEREST	42
	514	COMPLIANCE WITH STATE AND FEDERAL STATUTES AND REGULATIONS	
	515	FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL TAXES	
_	516	INVENTIONS, PATENTS AND COPYRIGHTS	
-	517	LIVING WAGE ORDINANCE SERVICE CONTRACTOR WORKER RETENTION AND LIVING WAGE POLICY	
	518	EARNED INCOME TAX CREDIT	
_	519	EQUAL BENEFITS ORDINANCE	
_	520	CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY ORDINANCE	
	521	SLAVERY DISCLOSURE ORDINANCE	
§:	522	CHILD SUPPORT ASSIGNMENT ORDERS	58
6.	GR	RANT REQUIREMENTS	59
2.4	۲ ۸ ۱	REPORTING REQUIREMENTS	50
	501 502	MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS	
-	503	CUSTOMER/APPLICANT FILES	
	504	EQUIPMENT RECORDS	
_	505	PURCHASE OR LEASE OF EQUIPMENT OR FACILITIES	
	506	ACCOUNTING PRACTICES	
•	507	DOCUMENTATION OF EXPENDITURES.	62 63
	508	AUDITS AND INSPECTIONS	
	509	CONFIDENTIALITY OF INFORMATION	64
	510	SECURITY CLEARANCE AND TUBERCULOSIS TEST OF STAFF AND VOLUNTEERS	
_	511	RESTRICTION ON DISCLOSURES	
_	512	HEADINGS AND CAPTIONS	
-	513	MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEM RECORDS AND REPORTS	65
	514	INSTALLATION OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE SIGN	
	515	PRESS RELEASES-PUBLIC INFORMATION	
	516	NOTICE TO CITY OF LABOR DISPUTES	
-	517	LISTING OF CONTRACTOR'S EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES WITH EDD	
Şέ	518	TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE	66
Şθ	519	EFFECT OF LEGAL JUDGMENT	66
Şέ	520	PROHIBITION OF LEGAL PROCEEDINGS	
	521	ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING FOR DENIAL OF CLIENT BENEFITS BY CONTRACTOR (NOT APPLICABLE	
W	IA A	AGREEMENT)	66
	522	FAITH-BASED ACTIVITIES	
Şθ	523	CHILD ABUSE	67
7.	SU	BCONTRACT AND PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES	67
	701	SUBCONTRACTS	
	702	PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES	
-	703	RECORDS AND AUDITS OF SUBCONTRACTS	
_	704	COST-PLUS-A-PERCENTAGE-OF-COST-SUBCONTRACTING	
_	705	RESTRICTION ON DISBURSEMENTS	
	706	PARTICIPATION OF SMALL, MINORITY, AND WOMEN'S BUSINESS	
_		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
8.	RE.	MEDIES	85
§8	301	WAIVERS	86

§802 AM	IENDMENTS	86
§803 DE	FAULTS	
3	TICE TO CORRECT PERFORMANCE	
	SPENSION OF THE AGREEMENT	
•	RMINATION OF AGREEMENT	
J	EACH	
v	TICES OF SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION	
§809 GR	IEVANCE AND COMPLAINT RESOLUTION PROCEDURES	88
9. ENTIRE A	AGREEMENTCOMPLETE AND INTEGRATED AGREEMENT	89
§901 Coi	MPLETE AND INTEGRATED AGREEMENT	. 89
§902 NU	MBER OF PAGES AND ATTACHMENTS	89
3	FURE PAGE	
10. SIGNAT	TURE PAGE	YU
<u>EXHIBITS</u>		
EXHIBIT A	INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS	
	MOOTO WOLL NEGOTIEMENTO	
EXHIBIT B	NOTICE OF PROHIBITION AGAINST RETALIATION	
EXHIBIT C	CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY	
	EXCLUSION LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS	
EXHIBIT D	CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING	
EVIJIDIT E	MANAGEMENT DEDDECENTATION CTATEMENT	
EXHIBIT E	MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATION STATEMENT	
EXHIBIT F	CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG FREE WORKPLACE ACT REQUIREMENTS	
	SERTI TO A TICK RESAMBLE DROOT REE WORK BASE AST REGORDENIEWE	
EVUIDIT	CERTIFICATION RECARDING RELOCATION OF RUSINESS	

This page intentionally blank.

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into between the City of Los Angeles and the Contractor, City of Long Beach (as Administering Entity for Pacific Gateway Workforce Investment Network), a Governmental Agency, hereinafter referred to as the Contractor. The Contractor agrees to provide and give access to workforce development services and labor market information in accordance with the Workforce Investment Act, 29 USC §2801 *et seq.* (WIA), and the rules, regulations and directives of the State of California (State) and the City of Los Angeles (City).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the City has entered into a Grant Agreement with the State of California, hereinafter referred to as the Grantor, pursuant to the Workforce Investment Act of 1998 (WIA), 29 USC §2801 et seq., to provide or give access to workforce development services and labor market information within the City of Los Angeles; and

WHEREAS, the Contractor, a One Stop Operator in the City of Los Angeles established under WIA, emphasizes universality, partnership, integrated systems, informed customer choice, system performance, and continuous quality improvement; and

WHEREAS, the agencies certified through the WIA WorkSource Certification Procedure as implemented by the City and the Workforce Investment Board (WIB) are eligible to request a contract renewal; and

WHEREAS, the WIB and the City Council of Los Angeles have released a Request for Contract Renewal to enter into a Workforce Investment Act contract as a WorkSource Center; and

WHEREAS, the City and the Contractor are desirous of executing this agreement as authorized by the WIB, City Council and the Mayor (refer to C.F. Number 10-0990, dated June 30, 2010), which authorizes the General Manager of Community Development Department to prepare and execute the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City of Los Angeles Workforce Investment Board (WIB) has adopted the following economic and workforce investment goals, which are to be met through the WorkSource Centers and OneSource Youth Opportunity System: continuously upgrade employment, self-sufficiency, knowledge and skill attainment, high performance workplaces, linking labor supply and demand, career mobility, streamlined services, operational upgrading, and integration of youth programs; and

WHEREAS, the WorkSource System shall be a collaboration of organizations providing a variety of seamless services through a single access point, with a mission to provide excellence and continuous quality improvement in service delivery; and

WHEREAS, the WorkSource System shall incorporate priority of services for those who are recipients of public assistance, and low-income individuals and for veterans and eligible spouses, and;

WHEREAS, the Contractor acknowledges that implementing the WIA design will require the City to continually evaluate the Contractor against qualitative and quantitative standards, which may require the City to impose additional requirements or changes to the Contractor's management of the WorkSource Center.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and the Contractor agree as follows:

1. INTRODUCTION

§101 PARTIES TO THE AGREEMENT

- A. The parties to this Agreement and to whom formal notices, demands and communications shall be forwarded are as follows:
 - 1. The City, represented by:

Richard L. Benbow, General Manager Community Development Department 1200 West 7th Street, Sixth Floor Los Angeles, CA 90017

With copies to: Jaime Pacheco-Orozco, Acting Director Workforce Development System

2. The Contractor, represented by:

Patrick H. West, City Manager
City of Long Beach (as Administering Entity for Pacific Gateway Workforce Investment Network)
3447 Atlantic Ave.
Long Beach, CA 90807

With copies to:
Bryan S. Rogers
Executive Director
Greater Long Beach Workforce Development Board
3447 Atlantic Ave.
Long Beach, CA 90807

§102 SERVICE OF NOTICES

- A. The City's representative as stated above is the party authorized to provide written approvals by City to Contractor in reference to matters addressed in this Agreement.
- B. Formal notices, demands, and communications required by this Agreement to be given by either party shall be made in writing and may be delivered personally or by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, and shall be deemed communicated as of the date of mailing.
- C. If the name and/or address of the person designated to receive the notices, demands or communications changes, the affected party shall notify the other party in writing of the change in accordance with this section within five (5) days of the change.

§103 TERM OF THE AGREEMENT

- A. The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2011 and any additional time as may be necessary to close out activities, provided that said term is subject to the provisions of this Agreement. Performance shall not commence until the Contractor has obtained the City's approval of required documents described in this Agreement, and is in receipt of those and/or other documents as described in this Agreement.
- B. The City may, at its discretion, agree to extend this Agreement and/or provide additional funds to Contractor. Funding for contract extensions will be based on the availability to the City of Local, State and Federal funds and upon the Contractor's successful performance of all terms of this Agreement.

§104 CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO THE EXECUTION OF THE AGREEMENT

- A. Prior to the execution of this Agreement, the Contractor shall submit to the City for approval in writing the following documents:
 - 1. Insurance Certificates The requirements and instructions for completing, executing, and submitting evidence of insurance to the City of Los Angeles are attached to the Agreement as Exhibit A and are incorporated herein by this reference.
 - 2. A City of Los Angeles Affirmative Action Plan, a copy of which is located at http://bca.lacity.org/site/pdf/aa/aaformwo.pdf.
 - 3. Pursuant to §301, if Contractor elects to receive advance payments, then all funds pertaining to this Agreement advanced to Contractor by City shall be deposited in a Special Bank Account Agreement with a bank. The Special Bank Account Agreement shall be on a form supplied by the City that sets forth the right of the City to exercise a suspension of business upon proper notice to the bank by the City
 - 4. A Code of Conduct to the City for approval The Code of Conduct submitted must meet the requirements of §513 Conflict of Interest of this Agreement.
 - 5. Budget/Expenditure Plan and Customer Service Plan
 - a. Contractor shall submit to the City for approval in writing a proposed Budget Summary/Expenditure Plan and Customer Service Plan.
 - b. The Budget Summary/Expenditure Plan and the Customer Service Plan are detailed listing of items for expenditure and scope of service (s) under the terms of this Agreement, which is incorporated herein by this reference. The Plans shall be submitted with all backup documentation as required and/or a cost allocation plan, if necessary and appropriate. All requests to modify the Plans must be made in writing and must be approved in writing by the City during the term of this Agreement. The Plans shall also describe all subcontractor services to be used by the Contractor and the payment procedures for subcontractors.
 - c. The City shall issue the budget guidelines to be followed in preparing the Budget/Expenditure Plan.
 - d. All funds pertaining to this Agreement advanced to the Contractor by the City shall be deposited in this special Los Angeles City Bank Account upon receipt of the funds. Interest earned on advances under the Agreement is regarded as program income, must be reported on the monthly invoice, and must be returned to the City quarterly by separate check made payable to the City. Contractor shall secure City authorization in writing before any changes are made to the Depository Agreement. The City, at its option, may require that no funds be advanced to Contractor until Contractor has provided for the security of advance funds by one of the following three methods:
 - (1) Surety/Performance Bond
 - (2) Standby or Direct Letter of Credit
 - (3) Blocked Savings Account
 - e. The amount and form of the security, if required shall be determined by the City as noted on Exhibit A, Insurance Requirements and is subject to prior City approval.
- B. Prior to execution of this Agreement, the Contractor shall provide the City with the documents listed below. Contractor shall provide immediate updates to these documents to the City during the term of the Agreement in the event that the information changes.
 - 1. A current list of the Members of the Board of Directors with their individual addresses where they may be reached.

- Contractor's Articles of Incorporation and all amendments to those Articles, as filed with the Secretary of State.
- 3. Contractor's Bylaws, and all amendments to those Bylaws, as adopted by the Contractor and properly attested.
- 4. Management Representation Statement fully executed in accordance with City's fiscal policies and attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Exhibit E.
- 5. Resolutions of Executorial Authority or other corporate actions of the Contractor's Board of Directors, properly attested or certified, which specify the name(s) of the person(s) authorized to obligate the Contractor and execute contractual documents, if the authorized person is someone other than Contractor's Corporate President, Contractor shall also submit a copy of a signature specimen(s) on a form, the Certification of Authorities, provided by the City.
- 6. A current and valid license to do business in the City of Los Angeles Contractor represents that it has obtained and presently holds the Tax Registration Certificate(s) required by the City's Business Tax Ordinance (Article 1, Chapter 2, §§21.00, et seq., of the Los Angeles Municipal Code). For the term covered by this Agreement, Contractor shall maintain, or obtain as necessary, all Certificates required of it under this Ordinance and shall not allow the Certificate to be revoked or suspended.
- 7. An Internal Revenue Service taxpayer identification number
- 8. A Contractor Responsibility Ordinance Questionnaire, provided by City and currently located at http://bca.lacity.org/site/pdf/cro/CROQ%20Service.PDF.
- 9. A Notice of Prohibition Against Retaliation attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Exhibit B to this Agreement Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Notice of Prohibition Against Retaliation as it relates to the Living Wage Ordinance
- 10. Code of Conduct as adopted by the Contractor in accordance with State and Federal Conflict of Interest Laws.
- 11. A Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion, fully executed in accordance with Executive Orders 12459 and 12689, 20 CFR 667.200(d), and 29 CFR Parts 97.35 and 98.510, and attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Exhibit C
- 12. A Certification Regarding Lobbying, fully executed in accordance with City Directive 91-3 dated July 27, 1990 and attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Exhibit D Contractor shall comply with all provisions of 31 USC §1352 et seq. and 29 CFR Part 93. No funds shall be released to Contractor until the Certification is filed.
- 13. Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requirements fully executed and attached and incorporated by reference as Exhibit F.
- 14. A Certification Regarding Relocation of Business, fully executed in accordance with WIA regulations and attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Exhibit G.

§105 CONTRACTOR'S ADMINISTRATIVE AND PERSONNEL DOCUMENTS

- A. Contractor warrants that it has adopted, shall retain, and make available upon request from the City, the following documents and their amendments:
 - Contractor's Financial and Accounting Procedures, which incorporate Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) including but not limited to the preparation and submission of invoices, reconciliation of cash on-hand and earnings with City records, reporting and tracking of customer activity and earnings, repayment of unearned funds, preparation for the resolution of audits and inspections, inventory control, reporting and tracking of program income. This shall be made available to the City upon request.

- 2. Contractor's Personnel Policy, which incorporates due process protection of standard personnel procedures, and which the Contractor agrees to abide by in the performance of this Agreement.
- 3. Agreements with Other Funding Sources:
 - a. A copy of any agreements between the Contractor and other public or private organizations that directly impact the activities funded under this Agreement shall be kept on file at the Contractor's offices and be provided to the City upon contract execution. Contractor shall also notify City of any default, termination, or finding of disallowed costs under these agreements. Contractor warrants that no other funding source will be billed for services that are provided and paid for by the City under this Agreement.
 - b. Prior to Contractor's submittal directly or indirectly as a collaborator of a workforce development grant application or acceptance of a workforce development grant award, Contractor shall notify the City in writing and give the City an opportunity to comment on the potential impact to the City's workforce delivery system.
- 4. Board of Director's Meeting Minutes: Contractor shall maintain minutes of all board meetings and provide these records to the City upon request.

§106 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS OF THE CONTRACTOR

A. Pursuant to this Agreement, the Contractor is acting as an independent contractor and not as an agent or employee of the City. No employee of the Contractor has been, is, or shall be an employee of the City by virtue of this Agreement, and the Contractor shall so inform each employee organization and each employee who is hired or retained under this Agreement. Contractor shall not represent or otherwise hold out itself or any of its directors, officers, partners, employees, or agents to be an agent or employee of the City.

§107 CONTRACTOR'S DUTY TO NOTIFY CITY OF CHANGES

- A. Contractor agrees to provide the City sixty (60) days advance written notice of any facts that may materially affect the performance of this Agreement or impact the City's decision to continue this Agreement with the Contractor. Among the items to be disclosed are an amendment to its Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, move to dissolve or transfer any assets derived from funds provided under §301 of this Agreement, negotiations leading to the sale, merger or acquisition of the Contractor; debarment or contract termination by any other public entity and/or any final audit findings regarding the Contractor's administration of any contract with public funds.
- B. Contractor shall notify City within five (5) days of changes affecting this Agreement including:
 - 1. Any amendments to documents;
 - 2. Actions that would change Contractor's legal status;
 - 3. Any action that may materially change the performance of this Agreement (i.e., bankruptcy); or
 - 4. A change in Contractor's corporate name.

§108 DEFINITIONS

The definitions of words used in this Agreement are as follows:

- A. Federal Grantor Agency for this Agreement the Federal Grantor Agency is Department of Labor.
- B. The word "days" means calendars days, including weekends and holidays, unless otherwise specifically provided herein.
- C. "City Directive(s)" or "WIA Directive(s)" for this Agreement the terms "City Directive(s)" and or "WIA Directive" refer to the collection of directives directly applicable to WIA funded agreements. These directives are located at the Los Angeles Community Development Department's website at

http://www.cdd.lacity.org/home_directives.html. All applicable directives in this Agreement may be superseded at any time by new directives issued by City.

2. <u>DUTIES AND REQUIREMENTS OF THE CONTRACTOR</u>

§201 GENERAL STATEMENT OF WORK TO BE PROVIDED BY THE CONTRACTOR

- A. Contractor shall operate a Los Angeles WIA One-Stop program leading to employment, reemployment, upgraded employment and increased salary or wages in accordance with the contract policies, the rules and regulations of WIA, the Department of Labor (DOL), the State of California, and as approved by the WIB, the Los Angeles City Council, and the Mayor. Contractor shall also comply with the Request for Contract Renewal to enter into a WIA contract as a WorkSource Center and the Certification Policy approved by the WIB, and all amendments thereto, which are incorporated herein by this reference and which set forth the requirements for services. Contractor shall comply with all Federal, State and City Directives, Information Bulletins, Information Notices, Dept. of Labor (DOL) Training and Employment Guidance Letters (TEGLs) and Information Notices (TEINs), and/or other written communications regarding the WorkSource center.
- B. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, Contractor shall comply with all the provisions of the City's Certification Policy approved by the WIB as part of the Annual Plan, and any amendments thereto, incorporated herein by reference.
- C. Contractor shall ascertain that registered customers receiving services under this Agreement are WIA Title I eligible under the WIA rules and regulations.
- D. The funds shall be used on any allowable activities specified under the WIA Adult and Dislocated Worker programs unless otherwise prohibited under the Training and Employment Guidance Letters (TEGLs) issued by the Department of Labor. Contractor shall strategically align all of its resources to meet its short- and long-term workforce development needs. Contractor shall provide, either directly or through arrangement with another qualified service provider, to the eligible customers based upon each customer's assessed needs and as further set forth herein, the following applicable services: outreach, recruitment, assessment, orientation, referral, registration/enrollment, case management, counseling, supportive services, job search assistance, work experience (WE), on-the-job training (OJT), customized training, registered apprenticeships, entrepreneurial training, vocational skills training, basic skills remediation, English as a second language remediation, unsubsidized employment leading to self-sufficiency, and post placement and post exit follow-up and retention services for twelve (12) months. The above constitutes a general description of the services to be provided. A more specific description of the services to be provided to Title I Adult and Dislocated Worker customers is set forth elsewhere in the Agreement.
- E. Contractor shall provide all WIA services at no charge to the customer.
- F. Contractor shall maintain appropriate records of any customer referrals, including the basis for referrals.
- G. Contractor shall provide or ensure that workers compensation benefits as required by State law are provided to all WIA customers enrolled in On-the-Job training, Work Experience training, or other employer-based training. Where workers compensation is not available, the customer shall be provided with adequate on-site medical and accident insurance for work-related activities as stated in 20 CFR §667.274, entitled Employees Benefits and Working Conditions.
- H. Contractor shall comply with provisions of 29 CFR, Part 37 "Implementation of the Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity Provision of the Workforce Investment Act of 1998; Final Rule."
- I. Pell Grant: Contractor shall notify City in writing of the amounts and disposition of HEA Title IV awards (Pell grants) and other types of financial aid to each WIA customer pursuant to WIA §134(d)(4), 20 CFR S663.320.
 - 1. For WIA agreements where Pell Grants or other HEA awards are involved, Contractor shall document in the Independent Employment Plan (IEP) its determination with the educational institution of the customer's training-related financial assistance needs and the proper mix of WIA and Pell Grant funds, since a Pell grant may be used for applicable living expenses as well as for tuition, fees, and books.

- 2. All WIA customers awarded a Pell grant shall execute an agreement on a form to be provided by the City with the Contractor, which indicates the portion of the HEA grant to be applied to the cost of tuition, fees and books. This information shall be verified during program monitoring. A copy of this agreement shall be maintained in the customer's file. Customers shall not be required to apply for Pell Grants as a condition of participating in a WIA program.
- 3. A WIA customer may enroll in WIA-funded training while his/her application for a Pell Grant is pending, as long as contractor has made arrangements with the training provider and the WIA customer regarding allocation of the Pell Grant, if it is subsequently awarded. In that case, the training provider must reimburse the contractor the WIA funds used to underwrite the training for the amount the Pell Grant covers. Reimbursement is not required from the portion of the Pell Grant assistance disbursed to the WIA customer for education-related expenses.

J. Consultant Services:

- 1. Prior to the execution of a subcontract for consultant services, the Contractor shall maintain on file a bid package and proposed subcontract which contains the following items:
 - a. The Request for Proposal (RFP);
 - b. The list of firms to which the RFP's were sent;
 - c. A minimum of three bids or as specified in §702 of this Agreement; and
 - d. Specific reasons for the selection of the prospective consultant. A resume of the consultant that fully describes previous experiences, particularly as it relates to the services to be performed under this subcontract, shall be attached.
- 2. The proposed subcontract which includes the following:
 - a. Full description of the work activities that will be performed by the Consultant;
 - b. The length of time the consultant will be retained;
 - c. The fee to be paid to the consultant indicating whether an hourly, weekly, or job completion date is to be the basis for payment; and
 - d. Any work or consultation that would be rendered or considered pro-bono.

§202 STATEMENT OF WORK

A. Purpose

- The Statement of Work is a general description of the services made available by the Contractor. Should the Contractor determine a need to alter significantly the services described, approval must be requested in writing. Such approval must be received from the City in writing before any change is implemented and may require a contract amendment.
- 2. Contractor shall provide allowable WIA program services and activities to customers, as determined necessary, appropriate, and reasonable. Contractor shall train and place Adult and Dislocated Workers and to the fullest extent will generate employment in industry sectors that include but are not limited to: Healthcare, advanced manufacturing, logistics, renewable energy, broadband and telecommunications, construction, transportation, green technology and related services, and other high-demand industry sectors identified locally. Education and training at every level shall be closely aligned with jobs and industries important to the City's economy.

B. Program Responsibilities

1. General Responsibilities

- a. Manage day-to-day operations of the WorkSource Center:
- b. Maintain the WorkSource Center's facilities, including supplies and equipment;
- c. Ensure that the WorkSource Center is fully staffed, filling all vacancies in a timely manner with experienced and trained personnel that meet WorkSource Center certification requirements, and in compliance with any requirements identified in City Directives;
- d. Oversee and monitor all WorkSource Center activities and subcontracts;
- e. Safeguard and manage all funds paid to the WorkSource Center including those issued for payment to subcontractors;
- f. Implement a performance-based procurement system for the selection of subcontractors in accordance with §702;
- g. Implement and support goals and major activities identified in the WIB's Workforce Development System Annual Plan;
- h. Target services to individuals who reflect the demographics of the proposed area of service;
- Provide services to eligible individuals, including but not limited to those with barriers to employment such as:
 - (1) Having a disability
 - (2) Being an older worker, immigrant, ex-offender, school dropout, or welfare recipient
 - (3) Being homeless, basic skills deficient, or limited English proficient
 - (4) Being a parenting, pregnant, runaway, foster or homeless youth (age 18 through 21 years old)

2. Continuous Quality Improvement

- a. As the operator of a certified WorkSource Center, (or as the operator of a One-Stop center preparing for and seeking certification) Contractor shall perform all duties detailed herein using the following quality standards as a foundation for evaluating and improving current organizational and contractual performance:
 - (1) Leadership Team
 - (a) The senior executive staff, WIA or other, of the Contractor and the partners[†] shall involve themselves directly in creating and sustaining values, organizational directions, performance expectations, and customer focus. Contractor shall facilitate the continued development of the Leadership Team or some joint direction setting process among all mandatory and voluntary partners.
 - (2) Strategic Planning
 - (a) Contractor, in collaboration with partners, shall set strategic directions and determine key action plans for goals and objectives for the next one to three years and work toward an effective performance management system.

Page 8 of 90

[†] Use of the term partner in this section does not refer to a legal partnership, and implies no legal obligations.
p:\wdd\final documents\fy 10-11\worksource\cityoflongbeach (t4668).doc City Attorney review 29-Jun-2010 (RVA)

(3) Customer and Market Focus

(a) Contractor, in collaboration with partners, shall determine the requirements and expectations of customers and shall gather and use relevant data to improve the center's performance from the viewpoint of the customer.

(4) Measurement, Analysis, and Knowledge Management

(a) Contractor, through the Leadership Team and Continuous Quality Improvement Team or some other collaborative team-based process, which is inclusive of the partners, shall manage and effectively use data and information to support key processes and the center's performance management system.

(5) Workforce Focus

(a) Contractor shall build and maintain a working environment conducive to the performance excellence, full participation, and personal and organizational growth of all employees in alignment with the performance objectives of this contract.

(6) Process Management

(a) Contractor, in collaboration with partners, shall effectively manage and improve service delivery processes, support processes and partnership processes in order to achieve better performance.

(7) Business Results

(a) Contractor and collaborators shall internally evaluate their performance in the areas of partner performance, human resources performance, and operational performance results using product, service and process performance measures including contractual, regulatory, legal, and audit requirements.

3. Administrative/Operational Responsibilities

a. Facility

- (1) WorkSource Center facilities shall:
 - (a) Accommodate co-located collaborators and subcontractors physically, and with adequate resources to enable all work activities, pursuant to resource sharing MOUs, i.e., wiring, outlets, etc.
 - (b) Be designed to facilitate programmatic and physical access to core, intensive services and business services.
 - (c) Provide electronic connectivity for the public to have access to services and information regarding mandatory collaborators.
- (2) All Facilities shall have TTY-TDD line access and be in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 42 USC §§12101 et seq., the Americans With Disabilities Act Amendments Act (ADAAA), Pub. L. 110-325 and all subsequent regulations; the California Building Standards Code (Title 24) and City Directive 02-37.

(3) Signs

(a) In accordance with City Directive 02-37, the facility shall prominently display the official City of Los Angeles WorkSource System sign and WorkSource California

System brand name. This provision shall not be interpreted to require the elimination from the facility of any signage identifying a contractor.

- (4) Contractors shall comply with all City, State, and Federal building codes and regulations when negotiating future lease agreements.
- (5) Lease of Property or Facility
 - (a) All lease agreements shall incorporate the provisions for compliance as set forth in §605 and City Directives.
- (6) Contractor Owned Facility--Depreciation Use Allowance
 - (a) Reimbursement for the Contractor owned facilities shall be based upon OMB circulars A-87, A-102 and A-122, which shall remain applicable to WIA contracts unless a City or State directive has been issued that supersedes them.
 - (b) <u>Building Depreciation</u>: Building depreciation includes the costs of buildings and capital improvements through allowances for depreciation or other equivalent costs. Where the depreciation method is followed, adequate property records must be maintained, and a generally accepted method of computing depreciation shall be used. The computation of depreciation or use allowance must be based on acquisition cost and exclude the cost of land. The computation will exclude the cost of any portion of the building and improvements either donated or otherwise borne directly or indirectly by the State or Federal Government. If actual cost records have not been maintained, a reasonable estimate of the original acquisition cost may be used as the basis for the depreciation or use allowance, subject to City approval.
 - (c) <u>Building Use Allowance</u>: In lieu of depreciation, a use allowance for building and improvements may be computed at an annual rate not to exceed two percent (2%) of acquisition cost.

(7) Primary Facility

- (a) Contractor's primary facility shall be physically located within the City of Los Angeles. The primary facility shall be located at the location identified on page i of this Agreement. The site shall remain as herein designated unless the City approves relocation, in writing, to a new site within the Service Delivery Area. Contractor shall provide the City at least 60 days advance written notice of its intent to move or close the facility. The relocation expenditures shall not be borne by WIA unless previously negotiated with and approved by City.
- (b) Job Resource Center (JRC)
 - Contractor shall establish and maintain a JRC that is available to customers (i) during both regular business hours and extended hours. The JRC shall be staffed with an individual(s) who has expertise on all the resources contained The resources shall focus on appropriate labor market and occupational data; job search, interviewing, resume preparation and networking skills; and other sources for reference and referral to facilitate individuals' re-employment activities, maintenance of household responsibilities, the transition to new employment, and re-establishing economic stability. Resources shall include, but are not limited to, printed materials. audio visual tapes and and equipment. personal computers/software, telephones, and facsimile and copy machines. JRC resources shall also include appropriate job/career and networking activities/clubs.
 - (ii) Use of JRC by customers under universal access shall be tabulated and reported to the City in accordance with all relevant City Directives.

- (iii) <u>Collocation</u>: The Contractor shall provide adequate space for collocation of subcontractors and/or collaborators as identified in the table found in the Budget/Expenditure Plan and Customer Service Plan.
- (8) Service Portals: If the contractor identifies any service portals, the use of the service portal shall be requested, in writing, and approved by the City in advance.

b. Personnel

- (1) All WIA funded positions are considered essential to the work being performed under this Agreement. Upon terminating or diverting any personnel to other programs, Contractor shall notify the City in sufficient detail to permit the City to evaluate the impact on the program from such changes in personnel and the plan for replacement. All staff for this program must be identified on the Budget/Expenditure Plan, and on the monthly invoice incorporated by reference.
- (2) The City reserves the right to require certification of employees for certain staff activities requiring special expertise, such as client eligibility determination, financial and accounting responsibilities, and service to special populations in accordance with all applicable City Directives.

c. Collaboration

- (1) Contractor shall collaborate with organizations as required by the WIA and with any other organizations mandated by the City, State, and/or Federal Government, including public and business organizations, through the use of financial and/or non-financial agreements as appropriate. Contractor shall use best efforts to increase the number and quality of collaborators.
- (2) Contractor shall coordinate and integrate program activities and services, overall program operations, and management by active participation and by encouraging cooperation among all WorkSource Centers, OneSource Youth Opportunity System service providers, and FamilySource Centers, Youth Opportunity Movement service providers, Mayor's Office of Gang Reduction and Youth Development, and with the City as the administrative coordinator.
- (3) Such efforts shall include, but shall not be limited to, monthly meetings of WorkSource Center managers/administrators, Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) teams, business services representatives, disability service coordinators, Limited English Proficient (LEP) Coordinators, Equal Opportunity coordinators, older worker coordinators, job developers, case managers, marketing teams, and newsletters.
- (4) Contractor shall enter into Operating Agreements or Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with on-site collaborators as set forth in City Directive 00-42 and 00-42A and any other City Directive. The Agreements shall contain and describe services to be provided, resource sharing, how the service and operating costs will be allocated and/or funded, methods for referral of individuals between WorkSource centers and collaborators, duration of the memorandum, and procedures for amending it.
- (5) Contractor shall arrange for and support the collocation and provision of services by collaborators at the WorkSource center site.

d. Capacity Building

(1) With collaborators, Contractor shall develop, implement, and coordinate the cross training of staff, regarding shared and integrated assessment, case management services, shared and integrated job development services, development of common procedures, forms and communications, and development of an integrated performance system. (2) Contractor shall actively participate in all staff development workshops provided by the City or State and shall send appropriate staff to training, and workshops as announced by the Training Academy and through training bulletins.

e. Electronic Infrastructure

- (1) Contractor shall coordinate with the City and other collaborators in the development and implementation of:
 - (a) A Citywide Technology Plan
 - (b) A common intake, referral, case management, and job development system (Integrated Services Information System (ISIS)), as implemented by the City
 - (c) Shared outcome procedures ("shared credit")
 - (d) Customer satisfaction and continuous quality improvement (CQI) processes in accordance with the policies approved by the local WIB
 - (e) An integrated performance evaluation system that supports the vision and mission of the City's WorkSource System. Contractor agrees that any information it receives from its access to the *LA Performs* web-based system shall be used as an internal management tool to track their individual performance. However, under no circumstance shall the information be used in any public correspondence, meetings, or attempts to discredit any other agency.
- (2) The Contractor is required to register all customers who are seeking employment on CalJOBS and Skills Match and post all job openings on CalJOBS and Skills Match if they are unable to fill them within two days, thus making them available to the entire system.

f. Monitoring Requirements

- (1) Contractor shall conduct periodic and objective program and fiscal monitoring reviews of its WIA employment programs to ensure compliance with Federal, State, and City requirements, including, but not limited to, the WIA, Title 20 and 29 of the Code of Federal Regulations (29 CFR parts 95 and 97 and 20 CFR part 652 et seq.), the Governor's Executive Orders implementing WIA, State Directives, City Directives and Information Bulletins, and local Workforce Investment Area and substate plans. At a minimum, WIA internal monitoring reviews shall be in the areas of Title I Adult and Dislocated Worker regulations, Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination, fiscal administration, procurement, and subcontractor monitoring.
- (2) At a minimum, Contractor shall review program quality and performance; expenditure data; internal reports pertaining to the individual programs; on file documentation regarding customer services, City site visit reports, MIS reporting, performance measures, complaint procedures and resolution, expenditures by cost categories, cost allocation, cash management, property management, record keeping, procurement methods, and selection of subcontractors.
- (3) For the continuous quality improvement of the facility, center operations, and staff service skills, the Contractor shall develop and implement an ongoing self-evaluation system of feedback from staff of the Contractor, collaborators, and subcontractors.
- (4) Subcontractor Monitoring
 - (a) The Contractor shall conduct periodic and objective program and fiscal monitoring reviews of financial subcontractors. At a minimum, Contractor shall conduct subcontractor on-site monitoring twice a year, once during each six-month cycle.

One of the two on-site reviews shall be a fiscal review, conducted in accordance with City fiscal review directives by an auditor or accountant.

- (b) Contractor shall prepare and maintain on file written monitoring reports for release to subcontractors, which, at a minimum, identify successes and/or problems, constructive recommendations for quality improvement, and corrective action plans with specific time parameters. Contractor shall review corrective action plans (CAP), approve acceptable corrective action identified in written response, and monitor for implementation of corrective action. These reports and CAPs shall be available for review by City program and fiscal monitoring staff.
 - (c) If fiscal review identifies evidence of unallowable expenditures, Contractor shall immediately notify the City in writing. If monitoring review identifies evidence of fraud or abuse, Contractor shall comply with all applicable EDD Directives and any amendments thereto, 29 CFR §667.630 and any City Directives and simultaneously notify the City in writing.
 - (d) The Contractor shall conduct on-site monitoring of OJT work sites and prepare written monitoring reports before the release of OJT payments, in accordance with City Directives 03-15 and 06-14. The Contractor shall submit copies of OJT agreements upon request by the City.

g. Complaint Procedures

- (1) Contractor shall adopt the City of Los Angeles Local Workforce Investment Area (LWIA) Complaint Procedures, which are maintained at the Equal Opportunity Unit of the CDD. Contractor shall designate an Equal Opportunity (EO) Complaints staff person who will be responsible for administering the Contractor's complaint procedures under Title 20 CFR, Part 667.600 and 29 CFR, Part 37 which ensures all EO/nondiscrimination provisions under WIA Section 188. Contractor shall be responsible for adhering to all time frames noted in the complaint procedure. Failure to do so will, in and of itself, constitute a grievable issue.
- (2) Contractor shall obtain a copy of all subcontractors' complaint procedures, which must meet the requirements of the City's WIA complaint process. Subcontractors that do not have their own complaint procedures may adopt the City's complaint procedures. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that such procedures are in place and to require that its subcontractors follow the procedures.
- (3) Contractor shall require that it be notified within 24 hours of receipt of all WIA complaints that have been filed with a collaborator/subcontractor, eligible training provider, and customized training, On-the-Job Training and Work site training contractors. Contractor shall be responsible for Level One review and processing of complaints pursuant to the requirements of the City Complaint Procedures. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that all collaborators have complaint procedures in place and monitor such procedures to ensure that they are followed by the collaborators and subcontractors.
- (4) Contractor shall be responsible for compiling and maintaining a log of all complaints filed against them, their collaborators, and their subcontractors, and shall provide those log records upon request by the City. Contractor is required to maintain, in the complainant's file and in a central log, copies of all correspondence relating to complaints that have been resolved at the Contractor level including the disposition or settlement of the complaint and the terms of that settlement.
- (5) Contractor shall be responsible for notifying the City of Los Angeles, EO Compliance Unit within 24 hours of receipt of any complaint including allegation of discrimination and/or sexual harassment.

h. Customer Satisfaction

- (1) Contractor and all subcontractors and collaborators shall comply with all procedures for customer satisfaction surveys of customers and businesses, as delineated in City Directives, and any amendments thereto.
- (2) Contractor shall develop a system of customer comments for continuous improvement of customer services received from the Contractor, collaborators, and subcontractors. System shall incorporate customer advisory groups and surveys.
- (3) Contractor shall designate a CQI team comprised of WorkSource Center and collaborator staff to coordinate and implement a program of continuous quality improvement, and provide information on this process as requested by City.

C. Customer Services

- Universal Access: Contractor shall provide all customers access to WIA core services that do not require registration and appropriate referrals to partner agencies. These services shall be known as Core 'A' services.
- 2. Services shall be available at or through the WorkSource Center. Contractor shall make available core, intensive, and training services, as well as access to WorkSource partner or collaborator services as set forth in the Customer Service Plan as described in §104A of this Agreement and incorporated herein by this reference. Services may be provided through subcontracts and operating agreements with other entities. Access shall be defined as a physical, on-site location or a technologically linked entry point. Information and services shall, at a minimum, be provided in English and Spanish and any other language(s) appropriate for the geographic community and individual needs. Contractor shall provide all customer services as a single service delivery system as required under WIA.

Job Seeker Services

- a. Core "A" Services (services not requiring customers be registered)
 - (1) Core services, as described in WIA §134(d)(2) and in this Agreement, shall be provided to adults and dislocated workers. Adults need not be WIA eligible to participate in self-service or informational activities. Such core services do not require significant staff involvement with the individual in terms of resources and time. However, Adults and Dislocated Workers who receive services funded under WIA other than self-service or informational activities as defined below must be determined eligible and registered. Contractor shall document customer service level and provide reports to the City as required by City Directives.
 - (2) Self-service occurs when participants serve themselves in accessing workforce investment system information and activities in either a physical location, such as the WorkSource Center resource room or partner agency, or remotely via the use of electronic technologies.
 - (3) Informational activities in a workforce investment setting may include both self-assisted core services that are designed to inform and educate a customer about the labor market and to enable the customer to identify his or her individual employment strengths, interests, weaknesses, and the range of services available appropriate for such.
 - (4) Outreach (no registration required)
 - (a) Contractor shall conduct outreach and recruitment activities to reach individuals who reflect the demographics of the primary geographic area to be served. Customer outreach and recruitment shall include, but not be limited to prepare and implement specific action plans, as required by WIB Policies, City Directives and Information Bulletins, to target and serve the population identified as underserved in the Service Delivery Area.

- (b) Contractor shall coordinate with adjacent WorkSource Centers in providing outreach, recruitment, and services to customers in adjacent Service Delivery Areas.
- (c) Contractor shall coordinate with the City in developing and implementing the WorkSource California outreach, recruitment, and marketing plan, in accordance with WIB marketing policy, and ensure all marketing refers to the City of Los Angeles WorkSource California.
- (5) Orientation (no registration required)
 - (a) Contractor shall inform all interested customers about the information and services available at or through WorkSource Centers.
 - (b) Contractor shall inform customers about the self-directed information and referral services available at the WorkSource Center and through City's 311 Call Center, and ensure that customers understand the guidelines for using the equipment and tools available at the WorkSource site.
 - (c) Contractor shall inform customers about general WIA program eligibility and collaborators' program requirements, overall responsibilities of the customer and of the WorkSource Center and collaborators, general timeframes, steps involved in becoming a WIA customer, and the overall goals of the program(s).
 - (d) Contractor shall provide and document that customers have received an orientation to WIA services that provides them with a clear understanding of the full scope of services available, including, but not limited to Job Resource Center, training, retraining, supportive services, limited English proficiency (LEP) language assistance, job development, re-employment/job placement, follow ups, post exit follow-up services, and of the Contractor's responsibility to provide them with the required elements, which will allow them to obtain unsubsidized employment.
 - (e) Each customer shall receive a copy of the "EO is the Law," "What to do if You Believe You Have Experienced Discrimination", and the Summary of the City of Los Angeles (LWIA) Complaint Procedure. Contractor shall maintain copies of these documents at its location. Contractor shall keep a signed receipt for these documents with each customer's file. Contractor shall also provide each customer a list of available supportive services and a statement of the program goals and objectives. Contractor shall also inform customers that they will be contacted for post exit follow-up, that they must sign a notice informing them that they will be contacted a year after exit, and that they must provide up to date contact information. Contractor shall keep all such documents on file.
- (6) Provision of Labor Market Information
 - (a) From such sources as Skills Match and CalJOBS, local City and EDD websites, Contractor shall provide customers local, regional, and national labor market information, including:
 - (i) Job vacancy listings in labor market areas;
 - (ii) Information on job skills necessary to obtain these jobs;
 - (iii) Information relating to local occupations in demand and the earnings and skills requirements for such occupations; and
 - (iv) Information relating to demand industry clusters
- (7) Provision of Training and Performance Information
 - (a) Contractor shall provide customers program performance information and program cost information on:

- (i) Eligible Training Providers identified on the Eligible Training Providers List (ETPL) and/or California I TRAIN used in conjunction with the Individual Training Accounts:
- (ii) Eligible providers of WIA youth activities;
- (iii) Providers of adult education described in Title II of WIA:
- (iv) Providers of post-secondary vocational education activities and activities available to school dropouts under Carl Perkins Vocational and Applied Technology Act; and
- (v) Providers of vocational rehabilitation program activities described in Title I of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.
- (b) Contractor shall provide information on how the local area is performing on the local performance measures and any additional performance information, as it becomes available, with respect to the local WorkSource system.
- (8) Filing of Unemployment Insurance (UI) Claims
 - (a) Contractor shall provide information and assistance to customers regarding filing claims for unemployment compensation.
- (9) Assistance in Establishing Eligibility for Other Funding
 - (a) Contractor shall provide assistance to customers in establishing eligibility for financial aid assistance for training and education programs such as Pell grants available locally and not funded under WIA.
- (10) Determining WIA Eligibility
 - (a) At the point when WorkSource Center staff determines that significant staff intervention will be required to serve the customer, Contractor shall assess customer for WIA eligibility. Contractor shall use a WIA application form (EWIR) for eligibility determination and characteristics gathering. Contractor shall provide each customer, who meets the minimum eligibility criteria, information on the full array of applicable or appropriate services available through the Workforce Investment Area or other service providers, including information for women about opportunities for nontraditional training and employment.
 - (b) Eligibility
 - (i) To be eligible, an individual must be 18 years of age or older, have the right to work in the United States, and (males only) be registered for selective service
 - (ii) To be eligible for the dislocated worker program, an eligible adult must meet one of the following criteria as identified in WIA §101(9):
 - 1) Category A General Dislocated Workers (3 Criteria)
 - a) Has been terminated or laid off, or who has received a notice of termination or layoff, from employment;
 - EITHER: Is eligible for or has exhausted unemployment compensation; OR has been employed for a duration sufficient to demonstrate sufficient attachment to the workforce, but is not eligible for unemployment compensation due to insufficient earnings; or having performed services for an employer that were not covered under the UI law;
 - c) AND is unlikely to return to a previous industry or occupation.
 - 2) Category B Plant Closure (One of 3 Criteria)

- a) Has been terminated or laid off, or has received notice of termination or layoff as a result of any permanent closures of, or any substantial layoff at, a plant, facility or enterprise;
- Or is employed at a facility at which the employer has made a general announcement that such facility will close within 180 days;
- c) Or for purposes of eligibility to receive services other than training, intensive, or supportive services, is employed at a facility at which the employer has made a general announcement that such facility will close.
- 3) Category C Self-Employed or Unemployed
 - a) Was self-employed (including employment as a farmer, a rancher, or a fisherman) but is unemployed as a result of general economic conditions in the community in which the individual resides or because of natural disasters.
- 4) Category D Displaced Homemaker (3 Criteria)
 - a) Has been providing unpaid services to family members in the home;
 - b) Has been dependent on the income of another family member but is no longer supported by that income; and
 - c) Is unemployed or underemployed and is experiencing difficulty in obtaining or upgrading employment.
- (iii) Contractor shall ensure that records are maintained on each applicant for whom an application has been completed and a formal determination of eligibility or ineligibility has been made. Contractor shall be in compliance with City Directive or Information Bulletin on the use of Applicant Statement.

(11) Initial Assessment

- (a) Each job seeker shall be provided the opportunity of an initial assessment of skill levels (including, but not limited to basic literacy skills), aptitudes, and supportive services needs. Contractor shall use the 'Universal Access Only" application at the initial assessment point. Based on eligibility, assessment result, and customer request, job seeker shall be provided a comprehensive assessment at the intensive service tier.
- b. Core "B" Services (services requiring registration of customers)
 - (1) Enrollment
 - (a) After receiving orientation, initial assessment or "universal access only" application but before receiving staff assisted activities or Core "B" services, job seekers must be enrolled into WIA. Contractor shall use the approved WIA enrollment/registration form (EWIE) or the prescribed EDD form to enroll a job seeker into any WIA allowable activities. At enrollment/registration point, all information collected shall be the basis for performance measurements.
 - (b) By December 31, Contractor shall enroll, at a minimum, fifty (50) percent of the number of clients needed to meet the total exit goal. This will be evaluated as part of the performance evaluation.
 - (2) Concurrent Enrollment
 - (a) Eligible individuals who are 18 through 21 years old may participate concurrently in adult and youth programs. Such individuals must be eligible under both the youth and adult eligibility criteria applicable to the services received.

(b) If the Contractor is serving customers concurrently in more than one WIA funding stream, a separate enrollment form must be completed for each funding source. The Contractor is responsible for tracking the services delivered and the expenditures made to ensure that services and expenditures are not duplicated.

(3) Staff-Assisted Job Development

- (a) Contractor shall provide job development services tailored to meet the needs of customers and directed to ensure quality long-term placements in unsubsidized employment leading to self-sufficiency. Services shall include but not be limited to business outreach and recruitment, referral, preparation of customers for specific job interviews, preparation of a résumé, and job application preparation. Documentation of job development activities shall be maintained in each customer's file, and in the ISIS database.
- (b) Contractor shall use City's electronic connectivity system (e.g., CalJOBS, ISIS, and Skills Match) for maintaining complete and accurate job orders, matching job ready customers with jobs in accordance with the initial assessment, obtaining prompt feedback on referrals, verifying employment, and auditing or minimizing the use of job holding.
- (c) Job development shall be coordinated with other program activities and services to ensure timely placement of customers upon program completion. Placements or unsubsidized employment shall be reported to the City and entered into ISIS within ten (10) working days from date of notification of employment.

(4) Staff-Assisted Referral and Job Referrals

- (a) Service Referrals: Contractor shall refer the customer to an appropriate human service such as those provided by Family Development Centers (FDCs), training, or educational programs such as those provided by LACCD, LAUSD that has the capacity to serve the customer on a sequential or concurrent basis. If customer is referred to another WIA service provider, Contractor shall coordinate appropriate services and provide the service provider with a copy of customer's eligibility documents. Contractor shall maintain documentation on all customer referrals indicating reason for referral, service provider referred to, and outcome of customer referral.
- (b) Job Referrals: Contractor shall refer customers to an employment opportunity and assist with testing and background checks as requested. Contractor shall keep a log of all referrals.

(5) Staff-Assisted Job Search, Placement Assistance, and Career Counseling

- (a) Job Search and Placement Assistance
 - (i) Contractor shall provide job search and placement assistance to all customers who are work ready via group and/or one-to-one sessions. The purpose of this service is to ensure that all customers have the ability and confidence to seek employment or re-employment. Information on all work ready customers shall be entered into CalJOBS.
 - (ii) Contractor shall assure that appropriate staff (i.e., Case Managers, Job Developers or Employment Specialists) be in constant contact with employers (via mail, fax, telephone) to acquire employer information regarding current labor market demand, job openings and relative occupational codes (Dictionary of Occupational Titles [DOT]) or North American Industry Classification System [NAICS]). Customers will be provided other related information necessary to qualify for job openings.

- (iii) Job search assistance provided by the Contractor shall include the provision of future world-of-work and occupational information, job placement assistance, labor market information via city's electronic connectivity system by (a) documenting all job seekers information and tabulating meaningful information pertinent to their job placement, and (b) maintaining up-to-date records of all job openings, so that labor market information can be used to determine training needs, job clubs, and relocation assistance.
- (iv) Services shall include, but not be limited to employer outreach and recruitment, referral, the preparation of customers for specific job interviews, preparation of a résumé, and job application preparation. Documentation of job placement activities shall be maintained in each customer's file and entered into ISIS.
- (b) Career Counseling: Contractor shall provide career counseling to assist the individual in determining whether or not more intensive services are required to obtain employment. Career counseling shall be provided as part of intensive and training services and post program follow up services.
- (6) Staff-Assisted Workshops and Job Clubs
 - (a) Contractor shall provide directly or through coordination or referrals to partner services, staff-assisted workshops including job search skills preparation and job club activities. The services provided may include, but shall not be limited to, résumé writing, interviewing skills, labor market guidance, telephone techniques, information on job openings, and job acquisition strategies, as well as the provision of office space, equipment, and supplies for the job search and job club activities.
- (7) Follow-ups, Follow-up Services, and Counseling
 - (a) Follow-ups
 - (i) For all registered participants in activities authorized under Title I of WIA and as part of case management, Contractors shall do follow ups to sustain the relationship between WSCs and participants, improve performance, and attain positive outcomes. Follow up is a contact made to participants, in person, by mail, or by electronic means, to determine the participant's employment and educational status during participation and after exiting the WIA program. This is mandatory for 30-, 60- and 90- days and three quarters after exit (2nd to 4th quarter).
 - (ii) After customers are exited, case managers must continue to track employment opportunities and when exited for unsubsidized employment, case managers must track employment retention as part of participant's IEP, determine quality of placement, and assess follow up services needed.

(b) Follow-up Services

- (iii) For all registered participants in activities authorized under Title I of WIA and placed in unsubsidized employment, Contractor shall make follow-up services available, and monitor the retention status and progress made for not less than twelve (12) months after the first day of employment. If a participant leaves a job at any time after placement within the twelve-month follow-up period and remains able to work, the Contractor shall seek subsequent job placement(s) for the participant.
- (iv) Follow-up services shall include, but shall not be limited to, all core and intensive services, Classroom Training (CT) upgrade, on the job training (OJT) upgrade, and counseling to assist with employment retention. Documentation of all follow-up services shall be maintained on file and in ISIS. Requirements for follow-up services shall be provided in accordance with all applicable City Directives and the ISIS Manual.
- (v) Post-employment OJTs in an upgraded job are permitted with the customer's current employer, on the condition that the OJT result in the acquisition of

City Attorney review 29-Jun-2010 (RVA)

new skills and higher pay for the customer. Additionally, the employer may not receive federal funding for training or retraining a customer whom the employer had laid off and subsequently called back or rehired. All costs incurred, as a result of the post-exit training, shall be charged to the Title I funding stream in which the customer was originally enrolled. Such OJTs shall be documented by a written OJT agreement in accordance with all applicable City Directives.

(b) Counseling: Contractor shall make available comprehensives guidance and counseling, which may include mental health, drug and alcohol abuse counseling, and referral, as appropriate.

(8) Supportive Services

(a) General Supportive Services

- (i) Contractor shall inform and provide, or arrange for the provision of, services to eligible WIA customers that will enable them to participate in WIA Title I activities, subject to the availability of resources. Supportive services shall only be provided to those customers unable to obtain supportive services through other programs providing such services.
- (ii) Contractor shall comply with the Supportive Services guidelines as defined in §101(46) and §129(c)(2)(6) of the WIA. Contractor shall provide supportive services in accordance with policy approved by the local WIB and as outlined by all applicable City Directives.
- (iii) Contractor shall be responsible for the selection of vendors, administration, payment, and documentation of costs incurred for supportive services. Payment records, by customer, must be complete and readily available for monitoring or audit reviews. Contractor shall also document in the customer file supportive services provided with non-City WIA funds.
- (iv) Contractor's supportive services shall include but shall not be limited to: transportation, health care, family care, child care, commuting assistance, financial and personal counseling, linkages to community services, assistance with housing costs, assistance with uniforms or other appropriate work attire, and work related tool costs.

(b) Needs-Based Payments

- (i) To receive needs-based payments, a customer must be enrolled in a program of training services allowable under WIA §134(d)(4).
- (ii) In accordance with the WIA Federal Regulations 29 CFR §663.830, needs-based payments may be provided to a customer that has been accepted in a training program that will begin within 30 calendar days.
- (iii) Contractor shall provide needs based payments in accordance with policy directives issued and approved by City and the local WIB.
- (iv) To receive needs-based payments:
 - A WIA-eligible Title I adult must be unemployed; not qualify for, or have ceased qualifying for, unemployment compensation; and be enrolled in a program of training services under WIA.
 - 2) A WIA-eligible Title I dislocated worker must be unemployed and have ceased qualifying for unemployment compensation or trade readjustment assistance under TAA or NAFTA-TAA; and be enrolled in a program of training services under WIA by the end of the thirteenth week after the most recent layoff, or, if later, by the end of the eighth week after the worker is informed that a short-term layoff will exceed six months; or be unemployed and did not qualify for unemployment compensation or trade readjustment assistance under TAA or NAFTA-TAA.
- (v) The level of needs-based payments for dislocated workers shall not exceed the greater amount of:
 - 1) The applicable weekly level of unemployment compensation; or

- 2) The poverty level as published by the Secretary of Labor in the Federal Register and the U. S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS).
- (vi) A customer shall receive no payments for training activities in which he or she fails to participate without good cause.
- (vii) Contractor shall document all needs based payments in the customer file and in ISIS.

c. Intensive Services

- (1) Intensive services, as described in WIA §134 (d)(3) and in this Agreement, shall be provided directly by the Contractor or through subcontracts and referrals to eligible adults and dislocated workers, in accordance with the Customer Flow policy approved by the local WIB and as outlined by all applicable City Directives.
- (2) Sequence of Services. Before providing intensive services, Contractor must determine that an individual is unable to obtain employment through Core B services, among other criteria. These determinations do not mean that the individual must go through layers of service to prove the need to obtain intensive services; the determination of need itself can be considered a core B and/or intensive service, such as an objective assessment or development of an Individual Employment Plan (IEP). Thus, a case worker at assessment shall consider the individual's skills, labor market conditions, and determine that core or intensive services will not be sufficient to result in employment for that individual.
- (3) Adults and dislocated workers who are unemployed, have received at least one core service and are unable to obtain employment through core services, and are determined by Contractor to be in need of more intensive services to obtain employment are eligible to receive intensive services.
- (4) Adults and dislocated workers who are employed, have received at least one core service and are determined by Contractor (through assessment) to be in need of more intensive services to obtain employment that leads to self-sufficiency, as described in 20 CFR §663.230, are eligible to receive intensive services.
- (5) If Title I Adult funds are limited, priority shall be given to recipients of public assistance and other low-income individuals. Contractor shall be notified of WIB priority system through City Directive.

(6) Case Management

- (a) Contractor shall provide access to case management services for all registered customers using the customer-centered approach in the delivery of services.
- (b) Contractor shall assign a staff person to make a contact or meet with each customer, at least once a month, and review the individual's progress from intake through job placement and exit. Case management reviews shall include but not be limited to skills acquisition, support services, and career or specialized counseling needs. Documentation of monthly meetings and progress reports shall be maintained in each customer's file and in ISIS. Documentation shall also include services received through coordination with other human service programs for intensive services and training services. Each person in intensive services should have a case management file; hard copy, and electronic. Case file must contain a determination of need for training services, as identified through the intensive service received.

(7) Comprehensive and Specialized Assessment

(a) Contractor shall provide a comprehensive assessment that shall include testing and evaluation of educational attainments, occupational/transferable skills, customer

interests, aptitudes, and/or vocational potentials for each customer. Contractor shall maintain, on file, documentation of assessments conducted for each customer and the results of each assessment. At a minimum, the assessments shall include a review of the following:

- (i) Basic skills (reading, math, and English as a second language)
- (ii) Educational attainment
- (iii) Occupational skills
- (iv) Prior work/volunteer experience (transferable skills)
- (v) Employability
- (vi) Interests
- (vii) Aptitudes (including interest and aptitudes for nontraditional jobs)
- (viii) Supportive service needs (including needs based payment)
- (b) The City reserves the right to require specific assessment tools. Contractor shall comply with City directives, as applicable, on assessment tools. A new assessment of a customer is not required, if the contractor determines it is appropriate to use a recent assessment conducted pursuant to another educational or training program.
- (8) Development of the Individual Employment Plan (IEP)
 - (a) Contractor shall develop, manage, and retain on file an Individual Employment Plan (IEP) for each Title I Adult and Title I Dislocated Worker customer receiving intensive services on a form provided by or approved by the City in compliance with City Information Bulletin 03-31 dated February 3, 2003.
 - (b) "Individual Employment Plan" (IEP) means an individual employment plan jointly developed by the customer and the case manager which identifies the employment goals (including, for women, consideration of nontraditional employment), appropriate achievement objectives, and the appropriate combination or mix of services for the customer, based on the objective assessments conducted to achieve the employment goal. In developing the IEP, the customer shall be counseled regarding required loan repayments if enrollment in an education program requires the customer's personal indebtedness. The customer shall also be apprised of the requirements for self-sufficiency and the occupational demands within the labor market.
 - (c) Decisions concerning appropriate services shall be client-centered, consistent with labor market demands and available funds, and ensure that the customer is not excluded from training or career options consistent with the requirements for nondiscrimination and equal opportunity.
 - (d) The IEP shall be developed in partnership with the customer and reflect the needs indicated by the objective assessment and the expressed interests and desires of the customer.
 - (e) The IEP shall be reviewed at least monthly to evaluate the progress of each customer in meeting the objectives of the service strategy including an evaluation of the customer's progress in acquiring basic skills and occupational skills as appropriate, and the adequacy of the supportive services provided.
 - (f) If WIA resources are not sufficient to provide the full range of training or supportive services that might be identified in the IEP, Contractor shall make every reasonable effort to arrange for, through other community resources, basic and occupational skills training and supportive services identified as needed in the IEP. Such referrals shall be tracked and documented on the IEP.
 - (g) For all IEP's developed by the Contractor, the document shall reflect which collaborator or subcontractor is responsible for delivery of services to the customer at each stage of participation in the program. This description shall include which

agency is responsible for assessment, training, and job development services. Each agency responsible for providing a segment of services to the customer shall sign the IEP.

- (h) All IEP shall contain a written, signed commitment by the customer that he/she will attend classes or other training, will cooperate with the job placement counselors and attend interviews as required, and will comply with all requirements of the WIA program.
- (9) Job Readiness Preparation: Contractor shall provide access to job readiness preparation for eligible WIA customers. Topics include job seeking, interviewing skills, understanding employer expectations, and moving toward self-sufficiency.
- (10) Group Counseling: Contractor shall provide access to group counseling and career planning for eligible WIA clients to achieve employment goals.
- (11) Work Experience (WE)
 - (a) Contractor shall provide access to a planned, structured learning experience that takes place in a workplace for a limited period of time for eligible WIA customers who are in need of good work habits and basic work skills. Work experience may be paid or unpaid, as appropriate. A work experience workplace may be in the private for profit sector, the nonprofit sector, or the public sector.
 - (b) Contractor shall provide an orientation to work site supervisors. Contractor shall maintain on file a work site training agreement for each WE placement. During monthly on-site monitoring Contractor shall also confirm that WE employers' documentation is accurate and that the training is being conducted in accordance with the training outline in the work site training agreement. Contractor shall document monthly on-site monitoring. The activity must be included as part of the customer's IEP.
 - (c) Contractor shall comply with all policies approved by the local WIB and as issued through City Directive.
- (12) Individual Counseling and Career Planning
 - (a) The Contractor shall determine the need for training or retraining through counseling sessions between the Case Manager and/or other service providers and the customer, and such training shall be based on the employability skills of the customer, interests, needs, and labor market demand, as documented in the IEP. Contractor shall comply with policies approved by the local WIB and City Directives regarding demand occupations that are appropriate for training.
 - (b) Comprehensive guidance and counseling shall include mental health, drug, and alcohol counseling, as appropriate to the customer's needs. Documentation of meetings and progress reports shall be maintained in file, as appropriate. Documentation shall also include services received through coordination with other human service programs.
- (13) Out-of-Area Job Search: Contractor shall provide access to services for out-of-area job search in accordance with City Directives.
- (14) Relocation Expenses: Contractor shall provide access to financial assistance to relocate customers in order to accept employment, in accordance with City policy and City Directives.
- (15) Short-Term Prevocational Services: Contractor shall provide access to short-term prevocational services for WIA customers to prepare individuals for unsubsidized

- employment or training. These services shall include at a minimum, punctuality; professional conduct; and learning, communication, interviewing, and personal maintenance skills.
- (16) Internships: Contractor shall provide access to internship opportunities, which are unpaid work experience opportunities, for WIA customers. There shall be a written Memorandum of Understanding with the employer.

d. Training Services

- (1) Training services, as described in WIA §134(d)(4) and in this Agreement, shall be provided to eligible employed, underemployed, and unemployed adults and dislocated workers directly by the contractor or through subcontracts and referrals. WIA funded training services under the Individual Training Accounts be provided through eligible training providers identified in accordance with WIA §122, and the State's ETPL. Customized training and On-the-Job Training (OJT) shall be provided in accordance with Section (4) below. Training services are limited to customers who:
 - (a) Have met the eligibility requirements for intensive services, have received at least one intensive service, and have been determined to be unable to obtain or retain employment through such services;
 - (b) Have been determined by Contractor, in compliance with Individual Training Account (ITA) policies and directives, to be in need or training services and to have the skills and qualifications to successfully complete the selected training program after an interview, evaluation or assessment, and case management; and
 - (c) Are unable to obtain grant assistance from other sources to pay for the costs of training. Customers may be referred to training opportunities through LAUSD and LACCD, where class tuition is paid through non-WIA funds.
- (2) Priority of Services: If Title I Adult funds are limited, priority shall be given to recipients of public assistance and other low-income individuals, and veterans and their eligible spouses.
- (3) Adult Education: Contractor shall provide access to adult education and literacy activities for eligible WIA customers.
- (4) Customized Training: Contractor shall provide access to customized training for eligible WIA customers. Customized training is defined in the City of Los Angeles Workforce Investment Board Annual Plan. Customized Training requirements set forth in the Annual Plan are incorporated herein by reference.
- (5) Under an approved waiver granted by the Dept of Labor to the State of California to encourage greater employer participation in customized training, (EDD Directive WSD07-8) Contractor shall implement the employer match sliding scale as follows:
 - (a) No less than 10 percent match is required of employers with 50 or fewer employees;
 - (b) No less than 25 percent match is required of employers with 51-100 employees;
 - (c) No less than 50 percent match is required of employers with more than 100 employees.
- (6) Entrepreneurial Training: Contractor shall provide access to entrepreneurial training for eligible WIA customers. An eligible training provider identified on the Eligible Training Providers List must provide this service.

- (7) Occupational Skills Training: Contractor shall provide access to occupational skills training, including training for nontraditional employment, for eligible WIA customers. An eligible training provider identified on the State ETPL must provide this service.
- (8) On-the-Job Training (OJT)
 - (a) Contractor shall provide access to on-the-job training for eligible WIA customers. The term OJT means paid work experience and skills training by an employer that is provided to a customer working in a job that:
 - (i) Provides knowledge or skills essential to achieve the full and adequate performance:
 - (ii) Provides reimbursement to the employer of up to 50% of the wage rate of the customer, for the extraordinary costs of providing the training and additional supervision related to the training; and
 - (iii) Is limited to a duration that is appropriate to the occupation for which the customer is being trained, taking into account the content of the training, the prior work experience of the customer, and the service strategy of the customer, as appropriate.
 - (b) All OJTs shall comply with WIA regulations and City Directives 03-15 and 06-14, which shall remain applicable to WIA contracts, unless superseded by a future City Directive.
 - (c) Contractor shall provide an orientation to all work site supervisors. Contractor shall maintain on file a work site training agreement for each OJT placement. The work site training agreement shall be on a form approved by the City in compliance with City Directive. Contractor shall document required monthly on-site monitoring, verify documentation prepared by the employer, and confirm that customers are being paid by check. During monthly on-site monitoring, Contractor shall also confirm that OJT documentation is accurate and that the training is being conducted in accordance with the training outline in the work site training agreement. On-site monitoring shall be conducted before making OJT payments to an employer. All OJT employers must provide worker's compensation insurance or adequate medical insurance to all customers.
 - (d) Contractor shall obtain from the OJT employer and maintain on file certification that if the OJT employer has relocated within 120 days, such relocation has not resulted in the loss of employment for any employee at the original location.
- (9) Training Programs Operated by the Private Sector: Contractor shall provide access to training programs operated by the private sector for eligible WIA customers. An eligible training provider identified on the State ETPL must provide this service.
- (10) Skill Upgrade and Retraining: Contractor shall provide access to skill upgrade training and retraining for eligible WIA customers. An eligible training provider identified on the State ETPL must provide this service.
- (11) Work Place Training and Cooperative Education: Contractor shall provide access to programs that provide workplace training with related instruction, which may include cooperative education programs, for eligible WIA customers. An eligible training provider identified on the State ETPL must provide this service.
- (12) Individual Training Accounts (ITA's)
 - (a) Except for customized training or OJT provided by an employer, all WIA funded training services shall be provided using Individual Training Accounts and shall be provided to eligible individuals through the WorkSource System. The Individual Training Account (ITA) is established for eligible individuals to finance training services in accordance with procedures established by the WIB and WIA §122.

Eligible customers use ITA's to access training through the ETPL or I-TRAIN. Contractor shall comply with City Directives for ITA procedures. Requirements for Eligible Training Providers are established in §122 of WIA and 29 CFR §663.500 *et seq.*, and by City Directive. State approved waivers shall apply in meeting eligible training provider requirements.

- (b) Other City Programs Alternative Training Programs
 - (i) Consistent with the approved Alternative Training Programs policy adopted by the WIB, the requirement that training be provided by service providers under the State ETPL or CA I-TRAIN through the establishment of Individual Training Accounts (ITAs) may be waived if the WIB determines that there is a training service program of demonstrated effectiveness offered in the local area by a community-based organization, or another private organization to serve special customer populations that face multiple barriers to employment. A special customer population that faces multiple barriers to employment is defined as a population of low-income individuals that is included in one or more of the following categories:
 - 1) Individuals with substantial language or cultural barriers
 - 2) Offenders
 - 3) Homeless individuals
 - 4) Persons with Disabilities
 - 5) Other populations as defined by the State and/or local WIB
 - (ii) Contractor shall cooperate with City's Family Development Network Program and Youth Opportunity Grant as directed. Such cooperation shall include, but not be limited to, making and accepting customer referrals, as appropriate, and sharing of job openings. Contractor shall comply with any guidelines established by City Directive and Information Bulletins regarding implementation of these programs.

(13) Sector Initiative Training

- (a) Contractor shall cooperate with the WIB in establishing budget and strategic priorities for investing in high opportunity industry sector initiatives to assist low-income clients to gain access to training leading to quality wages, benefits, and career advancement. Such sectoral initiatives shall:
 - (i) Focus on serving industries facing difficulty in recruiting a diverse and qualified workforce and for which wage structures are adequate for workers to reach a standard of self-sufficiency, both at entry level and by career ladder advancement.
 - (ii) Develop expertise unique to these businesses and occupations, above and beyond the basic level of system services delivered across all industry and occupational sectors.
 - (iii) Require co-investment from business and partnership with labor, education, and worker advocates, with employers committed to hiring trainees.
 - (iv) Improve the capacity of business to grow and add jobs, while developing a pipeline to reduce or avoid future labor supply gaps.
 - (v) Respond to employer demand for trained workers in industries struggling to find and reward them.
 - (vi) Improve the capacity and focus of education and training providers to respond to employer need.
- (14) Registered Apprenticeship. This combines education and work experience resulting in a nationally recognized portable credential and offers adult and dislocated workers a career pathway into specific fields.
- e. Business Services

- (1) Contractor shall implement the City of Los Angeles Business Services Model and serve businesses as an equal customer of the WorkSource Center using a system approach designed to leverage the resources of the entire WorkSource California system to serve the needs of businesses. Contractor shall comply with all related City Directives and City policies in the delivery of business services.
- (2) Job Seeker and Job Order Sharing
 - (a) Contractor shall share all job orders and job seekers with all other WorkSource Centers in order to assist in creating the best opportunity to refer the most qualified candidates from the WorkSource Center system to businesses requesting staffing assistance.
 - (b) Contractor shall refer the most qualified candidates to the business from the entire WorkSource system and shall refer unregistered Universal Access customers if they are the most qualified.

(3) Business Services Representative

- (a) Contractor shall develop and maintain long-term relationships with businesses. Contractor shall maintain on staff the equivalent of at least one full-time or full-time equivalent (not to exceed 3 persons) Business Services Representative who shall provide business services on a full-time basis in compliance with all related City Directives. If contractor utilizes full-time equivalent staff at least one member of the Business Services staff must be named the Lead Business Services Representative and first point of contact for the City.
- (b) Business Service Representative shall participate in any required City training.
- (c) Contractor shall participate in a minimum of three Business outreach or marketing events per year as requested by the City.

(4) Business Outreach

(a) Contractor shall outreach to local businesses and prominent industries in the local business community to identify short and long-term business service and workforce needs, build long-term working relationships and provide ongoing business service. Prominent industries will be identified through the regional implementation forums and business services implementation. Contractor shall develop and operate a business outreach program in accordance with outcomes of regional forums, which may include outreach to specific business communities and industry clusters.

(5) Branding and Marketing

- (a) Contractor shall follow all City-mandated protocols and guidelines for usage and promotion of the WorkSource California Network brand identity.
- (b) Contractor shall designate a staff person(s) to act in a liaison role regarding marketing, branding issues and public relations and shall identify this staff person(s) to City and advise of any staff changes to this liaison role. The liaison may be required to attend periodic system-wide marketing and public relations coordinating meetings. (The liaison may be the same staff person as the business services representative.)
- (6) Relationship to OneSource Youth Opportunity Centers
 - (a) Contractor shall accept job seeker referrals from the "OneSource" Youth Opportunity System.

- (b) Contractor shall collaborate in any OneSource system efforts, and make facilities available, to provide services to 18 through 21 years old job seekers.
- (c) Contractor, through business service representative(s), shall work collaboratively with local OneSource Center(s); in making business customer referrals that may need youth job seekers; in appropriate marketing events, job fairs, and business outreach events.

(7) Skills Match

(a) Contractor shall enter all businesses served by their WorkSource Center into Skills Match in compliance with Directive number 06-18. Contractor shall provide ample access and support to Universal Access job seekers and employers to use Skills Match for job posting and job search purposes.

(8) Business Services Performance

(a) Contractor will be required to meet or exceed business service performance and satisfaction as established by the City and to provide to the City upon request any information needed to measure performance. The Business Service Measure is defined in City Directive 06-18.

(9) Meeting Attendance

- (a) Contractor must assign all Business Services Representatives and/or Lead Business Services Representatives to consistently participate in monthly regional implementation forums, schedule technical assistance sessions and scheduled system-wide WorkSource Business Team sessions. Consistent attendance of all staff involved in Business Services is required in order to meet this requirement.
- (b) Staff members designated for Business Services will be responsible for overseeing all business services activities and ensure the implementation of any business service process or model in their WorkSource Center.

(10) Information Services

- (a) Contractor shall provide a means for providing information to the business community. At a minimum, this shall include direct coordination with the City's Enterprise Zone and Empowerment Zone program representative(s), local Los Angeles Business Assistance Program (LABAP), providing a directory of business services available within the City, access to job applicant data base, referral services, labor market information, contracting for workplace-based training (OJT and customized training), tax credit information, fee or licensing information, business assistance, and access to business assistance networks, such as, but not limited to, U.S. Small Business Administration local offices, Los Angeles Economic Development Corporation, Valley Economic Development Corporation, local chambers of commerce and other appropriate business development and economic development associations and organizations.
- (b) Contractor shall provide and promote all services noted in the standard menu of business services as defined by the City Directive 06-18 located at http://cdd.lacity.org/pdfs/directives/dir/06-18.pdf, which shall remain applicable to WIA contracts, unless superseded by a future City Directive. Contractor may provide additional services which complement those required herein.
- (11) Rapid Response and Plant Closure Assistance

- (a) Contractor shall assist the City in providing pre-layoff orientation, when requested by the City, to explain program services to impacted employees, in conjunction with employers or labor organizations in the event of closures of plants or facilities, and to encourage participation in early intervention programs.
- (b) Contractor and all collaborators shall communicate all leads and information obtained regarding business closures and layoffs to the City Rapid Response Unit within five (5) business days and shall participate in the provision of rapid response services only at the request and under the leadership of the City Rapid Response Unit.
- (c) Contractor shall be in compliance with DOL, EDD and City Directives and Information Bulletin(s) pertaining to Rapid Response.
- (12) Technical Advice Regarding Special Populations
 - (a) Contractor shall provide businesses with access to technical advice regarding working with special populations, including, but not limited to, disabled worker, older worker, immigrant population, welfare recipients, local workers, and the homeless population.
- (13) Customized Training
 - (a) Contractor shall participate in Customized Training projects implemented by the City. All customized training projects initiated by the contractor shall be approved in advance by the City. In some cases, the City may choose to set forth terms of the Customized Training project by a new mutually agreed upon agreement between the City and the Contractor. Contractor shall comply with the Workforce Investment Board customized training policy and any City directives regarding customized training.
- D. Performance Measures and Customer Service Level
 - 1. The WIB approved a revised Certification Policy for PY 07-08 (approved June 21, 2007). The revised policy allows the City to establish minimum contract goals to serve as predictors of success on the federal performance measures. The City has developed two measures to stand in for the federal measures of Entered Employment Rate and Average Earnings. Measures to stand in for the Employment Retention Rate and Employment and Credential Rate have not been developed and the federal and state measures are still applicable at this time.
 - 2. For the Entered Employment Rate and Average Earnings measures, Contractor is obligated to assist the City in meeting the core federal measures, as defined in the DOL Training and Employment Guidance Letter (TEGL) No. 17-05, issued February 17, 2006, and will be evaluated against measures identified as the predictors of success identified below in the Local Performance Measures section. The following measures will be evaluated against the actual performance of the Contractor as reported by the City.
 - 3. DOL Required Performance Measures (Adult and Dislocated Worker)
 - a. Employment Retention Rate (as defined in TEGL No. 17-05)
 - (1) Of those who are employed in the first quarter after the exit quarter: The number of participants who are employed in both second and third quarters after the exit quarter divided by the number of participants who exit during the quarter.
 - 4. Local Performance Measures
 - a. Universal Access
 - (1) Number of New Universal Access Customers Served

- (2) Universal Customer Service Level (Nonregistered customers): The Contractor shall provide all customers access to workforce development information through self-service, electronic information, and/or a job resource center. Such persons need not be WIA eligible or registered. The Contractor shall document customer service level and provide reports to the City as required by City Directive.
- b. Number of Employer Customers
- c. Adult and Dislocated Worker Measures
 - (1) Job Seeker Satisfaction Level (Intercept)
 - (2) Exiter Satisfaction Level
 - (3) Employer Customer Satisfaction Level and Follow-up
 - (4) Number of WIA Exited Customers
 - (5) Placement Rate
 - (6) Average Wage at Placement
- d. Adult Measures
 - (1) Number of Hard to Serve Customers in the following categories:
 - (a) Limited English
 - (b) Substance abuse
 - (c) Basic skills deficient
 - (d) Offender
 - (e) Family Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF)
 - (f) Low income
 - (g) Homeless
 - (h) Poor work history
 - (i) Disability
- e. Training and Supportive Services Expenditures
 - (1) Contractor must offer training activities and supportive services that total 20 percent of the base formula allocation. This 20 percent set aside may be comprised of a minimum 10 percent from the WIA funds in this Agreement and the remaining from leveraged resources.
- 5. Performance Measures and Customer Service Level Table
 - a. The figures below in the Performance Measure Table establish minimum quantitative performance measures based on the DOL measures, local measures and the State's expectations for the City's system performance. As part of continuous quality improvement and in keeping with its service plan, the WorkSource Center should strive to exceed the minimum levels.

Performance Measures and Service Levels		Title I Adult	Title I Dislocated Worker	Adult	Dislocated Worker
1	Employment Retention Rate	80%	87%		
2	No. of New Universal Access Customers Served	6,700			
3	Number of Employer Customers	55			
4	Job Seeker Satisfaction Level (Intercept)	9.0			
5	Exiter Satisfaction Level	8.6		*	
6	Employer Customer Satisfaction Level & Follow-up	8.4			
7	Total Exited Customers	74	58		
8	Placement Rate	83%	84%	Mary Parket	# reign
9	Average Wage at Placement	\$12.90	\$15.00		100
10	Number of Hard-to-Serve Customer Exits	59	* 1/4 ***	4	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

6. Additional Performance Measures

a. Contractor shall be certified by the City of Los Angeles Workforce Investment Board (CLAWIB) on an annual basis, through a formal performance evaluation. Contractor shall achieve and maintain certification as a City of Los Angeles WorkSource Center, including timely recertification according to WIB requirements, for the entire term of this agreement. Failure to meet these requirements may lead to termination of contract.

7. Performance Evaluation

- a. Contractor also shall be evaluated in accordance with the City's WIA Certification Policy, as set forth by the WIB. The approved policy and any amendments thereto will be forwarded to the Contractor by City Directive and/or incorporated in the WIB Annual Plan and will not be retroactive. All performance measures shall be used by the City to assess the Contractor's proposed and actual performance. Noncompliance may result in sanctions, as set forth in the City's Certification Policy and §803 below of this Agreement.
- b. City shall conduct an evaluation of the Contractor's performance. As required by the Los Angeles Administrative Code §10.39.2, evaluations will be based on a number of criteria, including the quality of the work product or service performed, the timeliness of performance, compliance with budget requirements (including training and supportive services expenditures), and the expertise of personnel the Contractor assigns to the Agreement. Contractor will use the final City evaluation, and any response from the Contractor, to evaluate proposals and to conduct reference checks when awarding other service contracts.

E. Authority of the City

- 1. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement, Contractor agrees that the City has authority to direct implementation of this program under the terms of this Agreement as follows:
 - a. City shall conduct primary oversight and monitoring of the WorkSource Center that includes, but is not limited to, making physical inspections of the WorkSource Center facilities; interviewing the Contractor and subcontractor personnel and/or customers; and examining and excerpting any books,

documents, invoices, or other records concerning this Agreement at any time deemed necessary by the City.

- b. Upon determination by the City that it is in the best interests of the overall WorkSource System, at its sole discretion, the City may in accordance with the provisions set forth in §§803-808 herein, upon written notice to the Contractor, take the following actions:
 - (1) At its discretion, unilaterally terminate the contract in whole or in part upon giving the other party thirty (30) days written notice prior to the effective date of such termination, which date shall be specified in such notice; and/or
 - (2) Assume the day-to-day operation of the WorkSource Center; and/or
 - (3) Assume the rights and responsibilities of the Contractor's lease(s) and subcontract(s) entered into pursuant to this Agreement; and/or
 - (4) Direct the Contractor and subcontractor staff activities at the WorkSource Center including requiring staff to attend mandatory meetings; and/or
 - (5) Require additional employment and training services be provided by the Contractor if determined necessary to provide system-wide program congruity, diversity, and availability of services; and/or
 - (6) Require the Contractor to subcontract with City-selected specialists to provide certain services; and/or
 - (7) Place materials, computers, and other electronic equipment and accessories or kiosks on the premises of the WorkSource Center; and/or
 - (8) Assign City staff persons or consultants to the WorkSource Center to provide direction and assistance on the operation of the program; and/or
 - (9) Require the Contractor to comply with a system of financial controls and monitoring standards provided in City Directives and Information Bulletins; and or
 - (10) Unilaterally reduce the contract budget, total dollar value, or services to be provided.
- City shall take corrective action hereunder, including but not limited to, termination of this Agreement should it be determined that the Contractor failed to meet performance measures under its prior agreement with City. (Contractor has been selected primarily based on prior performance. However, prior performance for the full contract period immediately preceding this Agreement has not been fully evaluated.)
- 3. City shall control and administer all WorkSource system-wide activities including contracting with Grantor agencies, other Workforce Investment Areas, and system collaborators and supervise training and interactions among system components.
- 4. City shall develop and implement the electronic infrastructure for the WorkSource System.
- 5. City shall identify a system of financial controls for the WorkSource System with appropriate internal controls and audits. Contractor shall comply with all City Directives and Information Bulletins relating to said system.
- 6. City shall oversee implementation and monitoring of the WorkSource System within existing rules, regulations, and guidelines.
- 7. City shall maintain City Management Information System (MIS) database, MIS certification training, and MIS reporting.

- 8. City shall monitor and assess customer satisfaction and facilitate implementation of related best practices. Customer satisfaction shall include, but not be limited to, the job seeker, business, contractor, subcontractor, other contracting entities, and the City.
- 9. City shall administer and operate the citywide Rapid Response Program.
- 10. City shall procure the services of administration of the eligible training provider list.
- 11. City shall administer and control the WIA complaint resolution process for the WorkSource System.

F. Special Conditions

- 1. If the City imposes additional requirements to this Agreement that the Contractor believes could cause an increase in the cost of, or the time required for, the performance of the services under this Agreement, the Contractor may request an equitable adjustment be made in the price or performance schedule, or both, and if the City concurs, the Agreement shall be amended in writing accordingly.
- 2. Neither party shall be liable for damages for delays in performance arising out of causes beyond its control and without its fault or negligence, including, but not limited to, acts of God or of the public enemy, acts of the Government in either its sovereign or contractual capacity, fires, floods, epidemics, strikes and unusually severe weather.
- 3. The language below applies only to California public entities.
 - a. Delete §§501 and 502 herein Indemnification and Insurance Requirements in its entirety and substitute therefore the following:
 - b. §501 Indemnification
 - Each of the parties to this Agreement is a public entity. In contemplation of the provisions of §895.2 of the Government Code of the State of California imposing certain tort liability jointly upon public entities, solely by reason of such entities being parties to an agreement as defined by §895 of said Code the parties hereto, as between themselves, pursuant to the authorization contained in §895.4 and §895.6 of said Code, will each assume the full liability imposed upon it, or any of its officers, agents or employees by law for injury caused by negligent or wrongful act, or omission occurring in the performance of this Agreement to the same extent that such liability would be imposed in the absence of §895.2 of said Code. To achieve the above-stated purpose, each party indemnifies and holds harmless the other party solely by virtue of said §895.2. The provision of §2778 of the California Civil Code is made a part hereto as if fully set forth herein. Contractor certifies that it has adequate self-insured retention of funds to meet any obligation arising from this Agreement.
 - c. Delete Exhibit A "Insurance Requirements" in its entirety, as the requirements of Exhibit A are not applicable to public entities.
 - d. The provisions of §516L do not apply to California public entities. The provisions of §202.F.3.b. shall govern intellectual property indemnity.
 - e. Other Special Conditions:
 - (1) None

3. COMPENSATION

§301 CONTRACTOR COMPENSATION

A. Compensation

- 1. The City shall pay the contractor an amount not to exceed Eight Hundred Twenty Eight Thousand Nine Hundred Eighty Two Dollars (\$828,982.00) for the complete and satisfactory performance of the terms of the Agreement. Such funds shall be allocated from the various WIA Title I funding streams as set forth in the Funding Allocation Tables below and shall be expended in accordance with a City approved Budget/Expenditure Plan incorporated herein by reference. Contractor's authority to expend such funds shall be for a specific time period as set forth in this Agreement. Contractor's right to receive compensation is conditioned upon being certified as a WorkSource Center and upon compliance with the City's indemnification and insurance requirement, satisfactory performance, and compliance with WIA Agreement.
- 2. Funding allocation for the full term of this agreement shall be as follows:

WIA TITLE I FUNDING ALLOCATION TABLE

Funding	Title I Adult	Title I Dislocated Worker	Total Allocation
Amount	\$484,125.00	\$344,857.00	\$828,982.00

- 3. In no event shall the final expenditures for the period specified herein exceed the total compensation set forth above except as provided for by an amendment to this Agreement.
- 4. The dollar amount set forth above is subject to change and may be reduced by an amendment to this Agreement should the City determine that contractor's performance does not justify the level of funding.
- 5. Contractor's reimbursement for expenses incurred in the performance of this Agreement shall be made only upon acceptance by the City of the Contractor's invoice and supporting documentation as described in the Reporting Requirements Section of this agreement.
- 6. Expenditures shall be supported by properly executed payrolls, time records, invoices, vouchers, or other official documentation evidencing in proper detail the nature and propriety of the charges. Checks, payrolls, invoices, vouchers, orders, or other accounting documents shall be clearly identified and readily accessible. Undocumented expenditures shall not be paid under this Agreement.
- 7. The City shall pay Contractor for salaries and eligible, allowable, and reasonable expenses as detailed in the City approved Budget Summary/Expenditure Plan, incorporated herein by reference.
- 8. Contractor shall be paid either on a cost reimbursement or advance basis. If the Contractor were to receive advance funds, it must execute a City approved Special Bank Account Agreement before receipt of funds. All City funds must be deposited in the special bank account until expended on City approved allowable contract costs and shall comply with all contract and regulatory requirements for safeguarding advance funds. Request for advance payment basis is subject to City approval. A Contractor on a cost reimbursement basis of payment shall be paid by the City only upon reporting of actual costs incurred.

B. Funding of Agreement

Funding for all periods of this Agreement is subject to the continuing availability of federal funds for this
program to the City. This Agreement may be terminated immediately upon written notice to the
Contractor of a loss or reduction of grant funds.

C. Payment to the Contractor

1. The City makes no commitment to fund this project beyond the initial term of this Agreement. The City shall review Contractor's performance on a periodic basis. In the event the City determines that the Contractor is not meeting its proposed performance measures, the City may unilaterally reduce or withhold the compensation set forth above in compliance with the provisions set forth in §§401, 803 and

any other applicable section of this Agreement, upon written notice to Contractor and as set forth by a written amendment.

- Contractor shall be reimbursed for reasonable and allowable expenses incurred under this Agreement.
 Unless Contractor has been approved to receive advance payments, all payments shall be on reimbursement basis. Contractors who are on an advance payment plan authorized by the City as described in the Budget/Expenditure Plan, shall bill the City for all reasonable and allowable costs under the terms of this Agreement.
- 3. Contractors not on an advance payment plan shall request reimbursements by submitting the cash request, monthly expenditure report and all other documents as required by City. Contractor shall be reimbursed after City has received the monthly expenditure report and all other required documents and after City determines that Contractor has incurred and expended funds for reasonable and allowable costs under this Agreement.
- 4. Contractor shall submit a final closeout fiscal report, pursuant to City's guidelines as set forth by the CDD Financial Management Division, showing final expenditures and other documents as required by City within 15 days after the termination date of this Agreement.
- 5. Reasonable and allowable costs shall be determined pursuant to the Allowable and Unallowable Cost Section set forth below in this Agreement.
- D. Stand-In Costs: Stand-in costs are <u>non-Federal</u> costs that may be substituted for disallowed grant costs when certain conditions are met. Contractor shall identify, document, and account for stand-in costs. These stand-in costs shall be reported to the City on monthly basis.
- E. Profit: Contractor shall comply with City Directives regarding profit or return on investment.
- F. Indirect Costs: Payment for indirect costs, if any, shall be released in accordance with instructions stated in the Federal Cognizant Agency's approval letter of indirect cost rates on file with the City pursuant to the Single Audit Act and OMB circulars.
- G. Applicable Discounts: Contractor warrants that any applicable discounts have been excluded from the costs billed to the City.
- H. Concurrent Enrollment: If the Contractor is serving customers, concurrently utilizing more than one funding stream, the Contractor is responsible for tracking the services delivered and the expenditures reported to ensure that services and expenditures are not duplicated.
- I. Overtime Work: Unless specifically stated within this Agreement or authorized by the City in writing, Contractor shall not incur overtime work expenditures.
- J. Travel: Contractor shall be compensated for Contractor's reasonable expenses incurred in the performance of this Agreement, which include travel and per diem costs, unless otherwise expressed. Contractor's total travel for in-state and/or out-of-state and per diem costs shall be included in this Agreement's Budget Summary/Expenditure Plan.

K. Reallocation of Funds:

- 1. City reserves the right to unilaterally decrease funds allocated to Contractor in the event that the City determines that the Contractor has failed to provide adequate services as required in this Agreement.
- 2. The City reserves the right to offer Contractor additional funds. Such reallocation of funds will be by written amendment to this Agreement to be negotiated and mutually agreed to by the parties.

4. METHODS AND PROCEDURES GOVERNING PAYMENT

§401 WITHHELD PAYMENTS

- A. Unearned payments under this Agreement may be suspended or not released if funds granted to the City are suspended or terminated.
- B. The City has the authority to withhold funds under this Agreement pending a final determination by the City of questioned expenditures or indebtedness to the City arising from past or present agreements between the City and the Contractor. Upon final determination by the City of disallowed expenditures or indebtedness, the City may deduct and retain the amount of the disallowance or indebtedness from the amount of the withheld earned funds.
- C. In the event of a final determination of disallowed costs or a determination of unearned grant funds by either the City of Los Angeles, the State of California, or the Federal Grantor Agency, Contractor agrees that it shall pay to the City of Los Angeles in non-federal funds, the amount of the final disallowance within thirty (30) days of receipt of notice from the City that such funds are due.
- D. Payments to the Contractor may be unilaterally withheld or reduced by the City if the Contractor fails to comply with the provisions of this Agreement upon written notice to Contractor.

§402 FUNDS EARNED PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF THIS AGREEMENT

A. The Contractor shall not earn funds provided under this Agreement prior to the commencement of this Agreement. The Contractor shall not earn funds subsequent to suspension or termination of this Agreement.

§403 ALLOWABLE AND UNALLOWABLE COSTS

- A. To be eligible for payment under this Agreement, costs or expenditures must be made in compliance with this Agreement, and Office of Management and Budget Circular (OMB) A-122, located at http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars_a122_2004/, and with the principles set forth below:
 - 1. Be necessary and reasonable for the proper and efficient performance of this Agreement and in accordance with the approved Budget Summary/Expenditure Plan on file and approved by the City; the City shall have final authority to determine in good faith whether an expenditure is necessary and reasonable.
 - 2. Conform to the limitations within these General Conditions and to any governing statutes, regulations and ordinances
 - 3. Be fully documented and determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting procedures
 - 4. Not be included as a cost or used to meet cost sharing or matching requirements for any other government funding source in either the current or a prior period, except when permitted by the respective government funding sources
- B. The following costs, among others, are specifically disallowed:
 - 1. Bad Debts: Any losses arising from un-collectible accounts and other claims, and related costs.
 - 2. Contingencies: Contributions to a contingency reserve or any similar provisions for unforeseen events
 - 3. Contributions and/or donations: Any contributions and/or donations, including but not limited to, charitable donations, donations to political parties, donations for political lobbying, etc.
 - 4. Entertainment: Costs of amusements, social activities and incidental costs, such as meals, beverages, lodging and gratuities relating to entertainment, or any political or lobbying activity
 - 5. Fines and Penalties: Costs resulting from violations of, or failure to comply with Federal, State, and local laws and regulations.

- 6. Interest and Other Financial Costs: Interest or borrowings (however represented), bond discounts, cost of financing and refinancing operations, and legal and professional fees paid in connection therewith
- 7. Membership Expenses: Costs of membership in any organization that devotes a substantial part of its activities to influencing legislation
- 8. Travel: Contractor shall be compensated for Contractor's reasonable expenses incurred in the performance of this Agreement, to include travel and per diem costs, unless otherwise expressed. Contractor's total travel for in-state and /or out-of-state and per diem costs shall be included in the contract budget(s). All travel including out-of-state travel not included in the budget(s) shall not be reimbursed.
- 9. Meeting Attendance: Costs of attending meetings directly related to the performance of this Agreement that are not open for attendance on a non-segregated basis
- 10. Non-competitive Subcontracts: Payments under a subcontract not obtained under competitive bidding procedure unless specifically waived by the City
- 11. Insurance policies offering protection against debts established by the Federal Government
- 12. Costs prohibited by 29 CFR part 93 (Lobbying Restrictions) or costs related to any activity designed to influence legislation or appropriations pending before the Congress of the United States
- 13. Advancements or reimbursements for expenditures that are determined by the City to be unallowable must be immediately returned to the City
- 14. Grant funds may not be used to supplant existing services

§404 PROGRAM INCOME

- A. Program income is defined as income earned through the activities funded by this Agreement. Program income includes, but is not limited to, grants, fees that duplicate payments; average daily attendance (ADA) payments earned through program funded activities; and public or nonprofit agency revenues in excess of contract costs.
- B. Interest earned on advances received pursuant to the terms of this Agreement is "program income." All interest earned must be reported as part of the Contractor's monthly expenditure report and must be returned to the City quarterly by separate check made payable to the City, which identifies that the amount represents interest earned on advanced funds.
- C. Any program income must be reported to the City on the expenditure report, and must be returned to the City in accordance with the City's written direction to the Contractor. At the City's discretion, program income may be used to augment the Contractor's program. Use of program income is permitted only by written amendment to this Agreement. Should this use of program income be approved, Contractor shall maintain records in support of all earnings and expenditures relating to the use of those funds in accordance with City of Los Angeles record retention and audit requirements. The City shall monitor Contractor's compliance with all Program Income requirements.
- D. Contractor's failure to comply fully with program income requirements including any City Directives or regulations, shall result in findings of disallowed costs.

§405 RETURN OF PROGRAM INCOME (Not Applicable to WIA agreement)

A. The Contractor shall, within forty-five (45) days of the expiration of this Agreement, transmit to the City any, and all, program income directly generated by funds provided by the Agreement. CDBG Program Income is defined in 24 CFR 85.25 and 24 CFR 570.500. Any program income on hand when this Agreement expires, or received after the Agreement expiration, shall be paid to the City as required by 24 CFR 85.25 and 24 CFR 570.503(b)(8).

§406 RETURN OF UNEXPENDED FUNDS AND CLOSEOUTS

A. The Contractor agrees that either upon completion or termination of this Agreement any unexpended funds, whether advances, interest earned on advances or unearned funds for WIA and all employment training programs, shall be immediately returned to the City Treasury; in no event later than fifteen (15) days after completion or termination.

The Contractor shall submit a complete and accurate final closeout invoice of costs and reimbursements for services performed under this Agreement to the City within fifteen (15) days following the termination or completion of this Agreement. Failure by the Contractor to comply with the 15-day requirement may result in a unilateral close-out of this Agreement by the City based on previous invoices filed with the City, and/or the imposition of sanctions as specified herein. Requests for payment after the 15 days may not be paid by the City.

§407 VALIDITY OF FINANCIAL DOCUMENTATION SUBMISSIONS

A. Financial reports submitted to the City shall be accurate and correct in all respects. Should inaccurate reports be submitted to the City, the City may elect to have the Contractor secure the services of a licensed accounting firm. The costs of such accounting services are to be borne by the Contractor and are not to be reimbursed from the funds authorized by this Agreement unless specifically agreed to between the Contractor and the City in written amendment.

§408 CUSTOMER RELATED THIRD-PARTY COSTS

A. Definition:

 Customer related third-party costs shall be defined as costs incurred for work experience wages, and fringe benefits; supportive services and needs related payments; and third party training agreements (OJT) subcontracts and procured tuition payment/voucher agreement, as allowed to Contractor in the approved Budget/Expenditure Plan.

B. Limitations

- 1. Contractor shall provide necessary and allowable supportive services and needs related payments to eligible customers who would not otherwise be able to participate.
- 2. Contractor shall comply with supportive services guidelines as defined in §101(46) and §134e(2) and (3) of the WIA, the City Directive 03-40, until superceded by another City Directive and any amendments thereto, which are incorporated herein by this reference.
- 3. The cost of the supportive service, as identified in the WIA, must be paid directly to the vendor of the particular service whenever possible, and must comply with WIA reporting requirements.
- 4. All wages earned or other cash funds provided to a customer must be paid in the form of a check or voucher that documents the amount paid and the appropriate withholdings.
- C. Documentation: Contractor shall obtain and maintain on file documentation to support all requests for cost reimbursements. At a minimum documentation shall include the following:
 - Copies of time cards and canceled checks for wages paid to work experience and customized training customers
 - 2. Copies of time cards and canceled checks for wages paid
 - 3. Copies of On Job Training (OJT) agreements, customer payroll records, timecards, OJT employer invoices, records of monitoring site visits to employers, and employer evaluation of skills acquired by customer

- 4. Copies of invoices from vendors and canceled checks paid to vendors for supportive services or tuition
- 5. Copies of needs based assessment, payment authorization, and canceled check paid to the customer
- 6. Copies of learning incentive and bonus assessment, payment authorization, and canceled check paid to the customer
- 7. Copies of the childcare supportive needs assessment, the agreement form, and canceled check paid to the childcare provider
- 8. Copies of valid voucher for Individual Training Account eligible training provider documentation in accordance with City directives

5. STANDARD PROVISIONS

§501 INDEMNIFICATION

A. Except for the active negligence or willful misconduct of City, or any of its Boards, Officers, Agents, Employees, Assigns, and Successors in Interest, Contractor undertakes and agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless City and any of its Boards, Officers, Agents, Employees, Assigns, and Successors in Interest from and against all suits and causes of action, claims, losses, demands, and expenses, including, but not limited to, attorney's fees and cost of litigation, damage or liability of any nature whatsoever, for death or injury to any person, including Contractor's employees and agents, or damage or destruction of any property of either party hereto or of third parties, arising in any manner by reason of the negligent acts, errors, omissions, or willful misconduct incident to the performance of this Agreement by the Contractor or its subcontractors of any tier. The provisions of this paragraph survive expiration or termination of this Agreement.

§502 INSURANCE

A. General Conditions

1. During the term of this Agreement and without limiting Contractor's indemnification of the City, Contractor shall provide and maintain at its own expense a program of insurance having coverage and limits customarily carried and actually arranged by the Contractor but not less than the amounts and types listed on the Required Insurance And Minimum Limits Sheet (Form Gen. 146) in Exhibit A hereto, covering its operations hereunder. Such insurance shall conform to City requirements established by Charter, ordinance or policy, shall comply with instructions set forth on the City of Los Angeles – Instructions And Information On Complying With City Insurance Requirements (Revised 9/06) document, and shall otherwise be in a form acceptable to the Office of the City Administrative Officer, Risk Management. Specifically, such insurance shall: 1) protect City as an Insured or an Additional Interest Party, or a Loss Payee As Its Interest May Appear, respectively, when such status is appropriate and available depending on the nature of applicable coverages; 2) provide City at least thirty (30) days advance written notice of cancellation, material reduction in coverage or reduction in limits when such change is made at option of the insurer; 3) be primary with respect to City's insurance plan. Except when City is a named insured, Contractor's insurance is not expected to respond to claims which may arise from acts or omissions of the City.

B. Modification of Coverage

1. City reserves the right at any time during the term of this Agreement to change the amounts and types of insurance required hereunder by giving Contractor ninety (90) days advance written notice of such change. If such change should result in substantial additional cost to the Contractor, City agrees to negotiate additional compensation proportional to the increased benefit to City.

C. Failure to Procure Insurance

- 1. All required insurance must be submitted for approval by the City Administrative Officer/Risk Management/Insurance and Bonds prior to the inception of any operations or tenancy by Contractor. The required coverages and limits are subject to availability on the open market at reasonable cost as determined by City. Non-availability or non-affordability must be documented by a letter from Contractor's insurance broker or agent indicating a good faith effort to place the required insurance and showing as a minimum the names of the insurance carriers and the declinations or quotations received from each.
- 2. Within the foregoing constraints, Contractor's failure to procure or maintain required insurance or a self-insurance program during the entire term of this Agreement shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement under which City may immediately suspend or terminate this Agreement or, at its discretion, procure or renew such insurance to protect City's interests and pay any and all premiums in connection therewith and recover all monies so paid from Contractor.

D. Workers' Compensation

- By signing this Agreement, Contractor hereby certifies that it is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 et seq., of the Labor Code, which require every employer to be insured against liability for Workers' Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and that it will comply with such provisions at all such times as they may apply during the performance of the work pursuant to this Agreement.
- 2. A Waiver of Subrogation in favor of City will be required when work is performed on City premises under hazardous conditions.

§503 BONDS

A. Duplicate copies of all bonds that may be required hereunder shall conform to City requirements established by charter, ordinance or policy and shall be filed with the Office of the City Attorney for its review in accordance with Los Angeles Administrative Code Sections 11.47 through 11.56.

§504 CONSTRUCTION OF PROVISIONS AND TITLES HEREIN

A. All titles or subtitles appearing herein have been inserted for convenience and shall not be deemed to affect the meaning or construction of any of the terms or provisions hereof. The language of this Agreement shall be construed according to its fair meaning and not strictly for or against the City or the Contractor. The word "Contractor" herein and in any amendments hereto includes the party or parties identified in this Agreement. The singular shall include the plural. If there is more than one Contractor as identified herein, unless expressly stated otherwise, their obligations and liabilities hereunder shall be joint and several. Use of the feminine, masculine, or neuter genders shall be deemed to include the genders not used.

§505 APPLICABLE LAW, INTERPRETATION AND ENFORCEMENT

- A. Each party's performance hereunder shall comply with all applicable laws of the United States of America, the State of California, and the City. This Agreement shall be enforced and interpreted under the laws of the State of California and the City.
- B. If any part, term or provision of this Agreement shall be held void, illegal, unenforceable, or in conflict with any law of a federal, state, or local government having jurisdiction over this Agreement, the validity of the remaining portions of provisions shall not be affected thereby.

§506 INTEGRATED AGREEMENT

A. This Agreement sets forth all of the rights and duties of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and replaces any and all previous agreements or understandings, whether written or oral, relating thereto. This Agreement may be amended only as provided for herein.

§507 EXCUSABLE DELAYS

A. In the event that performance on the part of any party hereto shall be delayed or suspended as a result of circumstances beyond the reasonable control and without the fault and negligence of said party, none of the parties shall incur any liability to the other parties as a result of such delay or suspension. Circumstances deemed to be beyond the control of the parties hereunder shall include, but not be limited to, acts of God or of the public enemy; insurrection; acts of the Federal Government or any unit of State or Local Government in either sovereign or contractual capacity; fires; floods; unusually severe weather; epidemics; quarantine restrictions; strikes, freight embargoes, or delays in transportation; to the extent that they are not caused by the party's willful or negligent acts or omissions and to the extent that they are beyond the party's reasonable control.

§508 PROHIBITION AGAINST ASSIGNMENT OR DELEGATION

- A. The Contractor shall not assign, delegate, subcontract, transfer, novate, or otherwise alienate this Agreement, nor assign or transfer any right, interest or obligation in this Agreement, including the right to payment, without prior written consent of the City.
- B. The Contractor shall not enter into any agreement with any other party under which such other party shall become the recipient of claims due or to become due to the Contractor from the City without prior written consent of the City.

§509 PERMITS

- A. The Contractor and its officers, agents, and employees shall obtain and maintain all permits and licenses necessary for the Contractor's performance hereunder and shall pay any fees required therefore. The City is not permitted to waive any fees for services, except as otherwise required by law. Among the permits and licenses that may be required are Conditional Use Permits, B-Permits, Building Permits, Incorporation Fees, or State Licensing Fees of any kind.
- B. The Contractor further certifies to immediately notify the City of any suspension, termination, lapses, non-renewals or restrictions of licenses, certificates, or other documents.

§510 NON DISCRIMINATION AND AFFIRMATIVE ACTION

- A. The Contractor shall comply with the applicable nondiscrimination and affirmative action provisions of the laws of the United States of America, the State of California, and the City. In performing this Agreement, the Contractor shall not discriminate in its employment practices against any employee or applicant for employment because of such person's race, color, religion, sex, national origin, ancestry, sexual harassment, sexual orientation, age, physical handicap, mental disability, marital status, domestic partner status, medical condition, citizenship, and political affiliation or belief. The Contractor shall comply with Executive Order 11246, entitled "Equal Employment Opportunity", as amended by Executive Order 11375, and as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (41 CRF Part 60).
- B. The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of the Los Angeles Administrative Code Sections 10.8 through 10.13, to the extent applicable hereto. If this Agreement contains a consideration in excess of \$1,000 but not more than \$100,000, the Equal Opportunity practices provisions of this Agreement shall be the mandatory contract provisions set forth in Los Angeles Administrative Code Section 10.8.3, in which event said provisions are incorporated herein by this reference. If this Agreement contains a consideration in excess of \$100,000, the Affirmative Action Program of this Agreement shall be the mandatory contract provisions set forth in Los Angeles Administrative Code Section 10.8.4, in which event said provisions are incorporated herein by this reference. The Contractor shall also comply with all rules, regulations, and policies of the City's Board of Public Works, Office of Contract Compliance relating to nondiscrimination and affirmative action, including the filing of all forms required by City.
- C. Any subcontract entered into by the Contractor relating to this Agreement, to the extent allowed hereunder, shall be subject to the provisions of this paragraph.

§511 CLAIMS FOR LABOR AND MATERIALS

A. The Contractor shall promptly pay when due all amounts payable for labor and materials furnished in the performance of this Agreement so as to prevent any lien or other claim under any provision of law from arising against any City property (including reports, documents, and other tangible matter produced by the Contractor hereunder), against the Contractor's rights to payments hereunder, or against the City, and shall pay all amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Act with respect to such labor.

§512 LOS ANGELES CITY BUSINESS TAX REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE

A. The Contractor represents that it has obtained and presently holds the Tax Registration Certificate(s) required by the City's Business Tax Ordinance (Article 1, Chapter 2, Sections 21.00 and following, of the Los Angeles Municipal Code). For the term covered by this Agreement, the Contractor shall maintain, or obtain as necessary, all such Certificates required of it under said Ordinance and shall not allow any such Certificate to be revoked or suspended.

§513 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

A. No City-funded Employees as Board Members

1. The City will not execute any Agreements and/or Amendments with Contractors where an employee (an individual who is paid or receives any financial benefit from funds from the Agreement with the City), is a member of the Board of Directors. The Board minutes must reflect this requirement.

B. Code of Conduct

- 1. The City requires that all Contractors/Sub-Contractors adopt a Code of Conduct, which, at a minimum, reflects the constraints discussed in CDD Directive Number FY07-0001. No Agreements and/or Amendments will be executed without City approval of this Code of Conduct.
- 2. Further, the City requires compliance with the following conflict of interest requirements for all City funded contractors:

C. Conflict of Interest

- 1. Prior to obtaining the City's approval of any subcontract, the Contractor shall disclose to the City any relationship, financial or otherwise, direct or indirect, of the Contractor or any of its officers, directors or employees or their immediate family with the proposed subcontractor and its officers, directors or employees.
- 2. The Contractor covenants that none of its directors, officers, employees, or agents shall participate in selecting, or administrating any subcontract supported (in whole or in part) by City funds (regardless of source) where such person is a director, officer, employee or agent of the subcontractor; or where the selection of subcontractors is or has the appearance of being motivated by a desire for personal gain for themselves or others such as family business, etc.; or where such person knows or should have known that:
 - a. A member of such person's immediate family, or domestic partner or organization has a financial interest in the subcontract;
 - b. The subcontractor is someone with whom such person has or is negotiating any prospective employment; or
 - c. The participation of such person would be prohibited by the California Political Reform Act, California Government Code §87100 et seq. if such person were a public officer, because such person would have a "financial or other interest" in the subcontract.

3. Definitions:

- a. The term "immediate family" includes but is not limited to domestic partner and/or those persons related by blood or marriage, such as husband, wife, father, mother, brother, sister, son, daughter, father-in-law, mother-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law.
- b. The term "financial or other interest" includes but is not limited to:
 - (1) Any direct or indirect financial interest in the specific contract, including a commission or fee, a share of the proceeds, prospect of a promotion or of future employment, a profit, or any other form of financial reward.
 - Any of the following interests in the subcontractor ownership: partnership interest or other beneficial interest of five percent or more; ownership of five percent or more of the stock; employment in a managerial capacity; or membership on the board of directors or governing body.
- c. A subcontract is any agreement entered into by Contractor for the purchase of goods or services with any funds provided by this Agreement.
- 4. Minutes of Board Meetings must reflect disclosure of transactions where Board Members may have had a direct or indirect interest/benefit in the action.
- 5. No director, officer, employee (or agent) of the Contractor may be on the Board of Directors if they receive any financial benefit provided by any City Agreement.
- 6. The Contractor further covenants that no officer, director, employee, or agent shall solicit or accept gratuities, favors, anything of monetary value from any actual or potential subcontractor, supplier, a party to a sub agreement, (or persons who are otherwise in a position to benefit from the actions of any officer, employee, or agent).
- 7. The Contractor shall not subcontract with a former director, officer, or employee within a one-year period following the termination of the relationship between said person and the Contractor.
- 8. For further clarification of the meaning of any of the terms used herein, the parties agree that references shall be made to the guidelines, rules, and laws of the City of Los Angeles, State of California, and Federal regulations regarding conflict of interest.
- 9. The Contractor warrants that it has not paid or given and will not pay or give to any third person, any money or other consideration for obtaining this Agreement.
- 10. The Contractor covenants that no member, officer or employee of Contractor shall have interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or subcontract or the proceeds thereof for work to be performed in connection with this project during his/her tenure as such employee, member or officer or for one year thereafter.
- 11. The Contractor shall incorporate the foregoing subsections of this Section into every agreement that its enters into in connection with this project and shall substitute the term "subcontractor" for the term "Contractor" and "sub-subcontractor" for "Subcontractor".
- 12. The Contractor warrants that it has adopted and shall comply with the Code of Conduct, as approved by the City that meets the foregoing requirements.

§514 COMPLIANCE WITH STATE AND FEDERAL STATUTES AND REGULATIONS

A. The Contractor, in performance of this Agreement, warrants and certifies that it shall comply with all applicable statutes, rules, regulations, and orders of the United States, the State of California, the County and City of Los Angeles. Contractor understands that failure to comply with any of the following assurances may result in suspension, termination or reduction of grant funds, and repayment by Contractor to City of any unlawful expenditures. Contractor further warrants and certifies that it shall comply with new, amended, or revised laws, regulations, and/or procedures that apply to the performance of this Agreement.

B. Statutes and Regulations Applicable To All Grant Contracts

Contractor shall comply with all applicable requirements of State, Federal, County and City of Los Angeles laws, executive orders, regulations, program and administrative requirements, policies, and any other requirements governing this Agreement. Contractor shall comply with state and federal laws and regulations pertaining to labor, wages, hours, and other conditions of employment. Contractor shall comply with new, amended, or revised laws, regulations, and/or procedures that apply to the performance of this Agreement. These requirements include, but are not limited to:

- 1. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) and Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circulars
 - a. Contractor shall comply with OMB Circulars, as applicable: OMB Circular A-21 (Cost Principles for Educational Institutions); OMB Circular A-87 (Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments); OMB Circular A-102 (Grants and Cooperative Agreements with State and Local Governments); Common Rule, Subpart C for public agencies or 2 CFR 215 (former OMB Circular A-110 --Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Agreements with Institutions of Higher Education, Hospitals, and Other Non-Profit Organizations); OMB Circular A-122 (Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations); 48 CFR 31 (Allowable costs for For-Profit); 45 CFR 74 (Allowable costs for hospitals); OMB Circular A-133 (Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.)

2. Single Audit Act

a. If Federal funds are used in the performance of this Agreement, Contractor shall adhere to the rules and regulations of the Single Audit Act, 31 USC Sec. 7501 et seq.; City Council action dated February 4, 1987 (C.F. No. 84-2259-S1); and any administrative regulation or field memos implementing the Act. The provisions of this paragraph survive expiration or termination of this Agreement.

3. Americans with Disabilities Act

a. Contractor hereby certifies that it will comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act 42, USC §§ 12101 et seq., and its implementing regulations and the Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act (ADAAA), Pub. L. 110-325 and all subsequent amendments. Contractor will provide reasonable accommodations to allow qualified individuals with disabilities to have access to and to participate in its programs, services and activities in accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act (ADAAA), Pub. L. 110-325 and all subsequent amendments. Contractor will not discriminate against persons with disabilities or against persons due to their relationship to or association with a person with a disability. Any subcontract entered into by the Contractor, relating to this Agreement, to the extent allowed hereunder, shall be subject to the provisions of this paragraph.

4. Political and Sectarian Activity Prohibited

- a. None of the funds, materials, property, or services provided directly or indirectly under this Agreement shall be used for any partisan political activity, or to further the election or defeat of any candidate for public office. Neither shall any funds provided under this Agreement be used for any purpose designed to support or defeat any pending legislation or administrative regulation. None of the funds provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be used for any sectarian purpose or to support or benefit any sectarian activity.
- b. If this Agreement provides for more than \$100,000 in grant funds or more than \$150,000 in loan funds, Contractor shall submit to the City a Certification Regarding Lobbying and a Disclosure Form, if required, in accordance with 31 USC 1352. A copy of the Certificate is attached hereto as Exhibit D. No funds will be released to Contractor until the Certification is filed.
- c. Contractor shall file a Disclosure Form at the end of each calendar quarter in which there occurs any event requiring disclosure or which materially affects the accuracy of any of the information contained in any Disclosure Form previously filed by Contractor. Contractor shall require that the language of this Certification be included in the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers and that all subcontractors shall certify and disclose accordingly.

5. Records Inspection

- a. At any time during normal business hours and as often as the City, the U.S. Comptroller General, the U.S. Department of Labor, the Auditor General of the State of California, and the Employment Development Department of the State of California or their designees through any authorized representative, may deem necessary, Contractor shall make available for examination all of its records, paper or electronic, with respect to all matters covered by this Agreement. The City, the U.S. Comptroller General, the U.S. Department of Labor, the Auditor General of the State of California, and the Employment Development Department of the State of California or their designees through any authorized representative, shall have the authority to audit, examine, and make excerpts or transcripts from records, including all Contractor's invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, conditions of employment, and other data relating to all matters covered by this Agreement.
- b. Contractor agrees to provide any reports requested by the City regarding performance of the Agreement.

6. Records Maintenance

a. Records, in their original form, shall be maintained in accordance with requirements prescribed by the City with respect to all matters covered on file for all documents specified in this Agreement. Original forms are to be maintained on file for all documents specified in this agreement. Such records shall be retained for a period of five (5) years after termination of this Agreement and after final disposition of all pending matters. "Pending matters" include, but are not limited to, an audit, litigation or other actions involving records. The City may, at its discretion, take possession of, retain, and audit said records. Records, in their original form pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement, shall at all times be retained within the County of Los Angeles unless authorization to remove them is granted in writing by the City.

7. Subcontracts and Procurement

- a. Contractor shall comply with the federal and City standards in the award of any subcontracts. For purposes of this Agreement, subcontracts shall include but not be limited to purchase agreements, rental or lease agreements, third party agreements, consultant service contracts and construction subcontracts.
- b. Contractor shall ensure that the terms of this Agreement with the City are incorporated into all Subcontractor Agreements. The Contractor shall submit all Subcontractor Agreements to the City for review prior to the release of any funds to the subcontractor. The Contractor shall withhold funds to any subcontractor agency that fails to comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and their respective Subcontractor Agreement.

8. Labor

- a. Contractor shall comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. §§4728-4763) relating to prescribed requirements for merit systems for programs funded under one of the 19 statutes or regulations specified in Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit System Personnel Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F).
- b. Contractor shall comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. §276c and 18 U.S.C. §874), and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§327-333), regarding labor standards for federally assisted construction sub agreements.
- c. Contractor shall comply with the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act (29 USC § 201) regarding wages and hours of employment.
- d. None of the funds shall be used to promote or deter union/labor organizing activities. CA Gov't Code Sec. 16645 et seg.

- e. Contractor shall comply with the Hatch Act (5 USC §§1501-1508 and 7324-7328).
- f. Contractor shall comply with the provisions of Article 3, Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 of the Labor Code of California, the California Child Labor Laws and all other applicable statutes, ordinances, and regulations relative to employment, wages, hours of labor and industrial safety.

9. Civil Rights

a. Contractor shall comply with all Federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination. These include but are not limited to: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352, 42 U.S.C. §2000d, and implementing regulations) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§1681- 1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; (c) Sections 503 and 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. §794, 45 CFR, Part 84), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps; (d) The Age Discrimination act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (f) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616) as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) §§523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290 dd-3 and 290 ee 3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to non-discrimination in the sale, rental or financing of housing; (i) any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under which application for Federal assistance is being made; (j) the requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to the application; (k) P.L. 93-348 regarding the protection of human subjects involved in research, development, and related activities supported by this award of assistance; (I) Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended by the Equal Employment Opportunity Act of 1972 (42 U.S.C. 2000e); and (m) the Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 USC §§12101 et seq., and the Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act (ADAAA), Pub. L. 110-325 and all subsequent amendments.

10. Environmental

- a. Contractor shall comply, or has already complied, with the requirements of Titles II and III of the Uniform relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced or whose property is acquired as a result of Federal or federally-assisted programs. These requirements apply to all interests in real property acquired for project purposes regardless of Federal participation in purchases.
- b. Contractor shall comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution of environmental quality control measures under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) and Executive Order (EO) 11514; (b) notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; (e) assurance of project consistency with the approved State management program developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); (f) conformity of Federal actions to State (Clean Air) Implementation Plans under Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.); (g) protection of underground sources of drinking water under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended (P.L. 93-523) and the California Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act of 1986; (h) protection of endangered species under the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-205); (i) Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 §102(a) (P.L. 93-234); and (j) Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (38 U.S.C. 1360).
- c. Contractor shall comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. §§1271 et seq.) related to protecting components or potential components of the national wild and scenic rivers system.

- d. Contractor shall comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §§4822 et seq.) that prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction or rehabilitation of residence structures.
- e. Contractor shall comply with the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq.) that restores and maintains the chemical, physical and biological integrity of the Nation's waters.
- f. Contractor shall ensure that the facilities under its ownership, lease or supervision which shall be utilized in the accomplishment of this project are not listed in the Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA) list of Violating Facilities and that it will notify the Federal Grantor agency of the receipt of any communication from the Director of the EPA Office of Federal Activities indicating that a facility to be used in the project is under consideration for listing by the EPA.
- g. By signing this Agreement, Contractor ensures that it is in compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), Public Resources Code §21000 et seq. and is not impacting the environment negatively.
- h. Contractor shall comply with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (P.L. 94-163, 89 Stat. 871).

11. Preservation

a. Contractor shall comply with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. §470), EO 11593 (identification and protection of historic properties), and the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et seq.).

12. Suspension and Debarment

a. Contractor shall comply with Federal Register, Volume 68, Number 228, regarding Suspension and Debarment, and Contractor shall submit a Certification Regarding Debarment (Exhibit C) required by Executive Orders 12459 and 12689, and any amendment thereto. Said Certification shall be submitted to the City concurrent with the execution of this Agreement and shall certify that neither Contractor nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department head or agency. Contractor shall require that the language of this Certification be included in the award documents for all sub-award at all tiers and that all subcontractors shall certify accordingly.

13. Drug-Free Workplace

a. Contractor shall comply with the federal Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, 41 USC §701, 28 CFR Part 67; the California Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990, California Government Code §§ 8350-8357.

14. Animal Welfare

- a. Contractor shall comply with the Laboratory Animal Welfare Act of 1966, as amended (P.L. 89-544, 7 USC §§2131 et. seq.)
- 15. Contractor shall assure, pursuant to the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2008 (P.L. 110-161) grant funds must not be used in contravention of the federal buildings performance and reporting requirements of Executive Order No. 13123, part 3 of Title V of the National Energy Conservation Policy Act (42 USC 8251 et Seq.) or subtitle A of Title I of the Energy Policy Act of 2005 (including the amendments made thereby), nor shall grant funds be used in contravention of Section 303 of the Energy Policy Act of 1992 (42 USC 13212).
- 16. Contractor must comply with Public Law 103-227, Part C-Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994 (Act). This Act requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or contracted by entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education, or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either directly or through State and local governments. Federal programs include

grants, cooperative agreements, loans or loan guarantees, and contracts. The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug and alcohol treatment.

Contractor further agrees that the above language will be included in any subcontracts that contain provisions for children's services and that all subcontractors shall certify compliance accordingly.

- 17. Contractor shall assure, pursuant to Section 507 of Public Law 103-333, and where applicable §514 of this Agreement, to the extent practicable, that all equipment and products purchased with funds made available under this Agreement shall be American made.
- 18. Contractor shall administer this Agreement in accordance with OMB requirements contained in the following Circulars: Common Rule, Subpart C, for public agencies, or 2 CFR 215 for nonprofit organizations.
- C. Statutes and Regulations Applicable To This Particular Grant
 - a. Contractor warrants and certifies that in the performance of this Agreement, it shall comply with all applicable statutes, rules, regulations, and orders of the United States, the State of California, the County and City of Los Angeles, including laws and regulations pertaining to labor, wages, hours and other conditions of employment and City's anti-discrimination provision, Affirmative Action Plan, and WIA customer's compliance with Selective Service Act. Contractor further warrants and certifies that it shall comply with new, amended, or revised laws, regulations, policies, and/or procedures that apply to the performance of this Agreement.
 - b. Examples of applicable statutes, rules or regulations include, but are not limited to, the following:
 - (1) Workforce Investment Act of 1998 (WIA) (20 USC 2801, et seq.), and any amendments thereto, and regulations (20 CFR 652 et. seq. 20 CFR, Part 31, 32, 96 and 97) and any amendments thereto.
 - (2) TEGL 4-08, Change 1 -- "Fiscal Year (FY) 2009 State Supplemental Training Fund Distributions Including Case Management Funds and the Process for Requesting Additional Trade.
 - (3) TEGL 4-08 -- "Fiscal Year (FY) 2009 State Base Allocations and the Process for Requesting Additional Trade Adjustment Assistance (TAA) Program Reserve Funds.
 - (4) TEGL 9-08, Change 1 -- "Revised National Performance Goal Targets for the Government Performance Results Act (GPRA) to support Negotiating State Performance Goals for the Workforce Investment Act Title IB Programs, Wagner-Peyser Act Funded Activities for Program Year 2009."
 - (5) TEGL 9-08, -- "Negotiating Performance Goal for the Workforce Investment Act Title IB Programs and Wagner-Peyser Act Funded Activities for Program Year 2009."
 - (6) Adjustment Assistance (TAA) Program Reserve Funds.
 - (7) Governor's Executive Orders implementing WIA, any amendments thereto and regulations adopted
 - (8) Wagner-Peyser Act (29 USC 49 et seq.).
 - (9) Provisions of the Grant Agreements between the City and the U.S. Department of Labor, and between the City and the State of California, pursuant to WIA, including their General Terms and Conditions, which are hereby incorporated by reference as though set forth herein in full.

- (10) City of Los Angeles WIA policies as set forth in the Certification Policy and Procedures, as approved by the WIB.
- (11) City of Los Angeles administrative procedures and notices released in the form of City Information Bulletins or City Directives.
- (12) During the performance of this Agreement, the Contractor and its subcontractors shall not deny WIA benefits to any person on the basis of religion, color, ethnic groups identification, sex, age, physical or mental disability, nor shall they discriminate unlawfully against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, marital status, domestic partner status, age, sex or sexual orientation. Contractor shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of employees and applicants for employment are free of such discrimination.
- (13) Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 USC §6101, et seq.) and implementing regulations.
- (14) Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), PL 101-336 and all applicable regulations and the Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act (ADAAA) Pub. L. 110-325 and all subsequent amendments.
- (15) Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 (USC §§469a-1 et seq.)
- (16) Assurance of project consistency with the approved State management program developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 USC §§1451 et seq.)
- (17) California Labor Code §1720 et seq.
- (18) Clean Air Act as amended (42 USC 1857, et seq.)
- (19) Coastal Barrier Resources Act, PL 97-348 dated October 19, 1982, 16 USC §§3501 et seq.
- (20) Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970, as amended (PL 91-616).
- (21) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 USC 327-330) (29 CFR, Part 5).
- (22) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act §§103 and 107 (40 USC 327-333, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations 29 CFR Part 5).
- (23) Contractor will comply with Equal Opportunity/Nondiscrimination Policy (Directive 01-52) and the City of Los Angeles Local Workforce Investment Area Complaint Resolution Procedures (Directive 01-31.)
- (24) Copeland Anti-Kick Back Act (18 USC 874, 4042, 4121-4128, 4162, as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations, 29 CFR Part 3, 40 USC §276c).
- (25) Davis-Bacon Act (40 USC 276a et seq., as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations 29 CFR Part 5).
- (26) Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972, as amended (PL 92-255).
- (27) Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988, PL 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D.
- (28) Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (PL 93-205).
- (29) Energy Policy and Conservation Act (PL 94-163, December 22, 1975, 42 USC §6201 et seq., as amended).

- (30) Executive Order 11063 dated November 20, 1962
- (31) Executive Order 11593 (Identification and Protection of Historic Properties).
- (32) Executive Order 11738 (Notification of Violating Facilities).
- (33) Executive Order 11988 (Evaluation of Flood Hazards in Floodplains).
- (34) Executive Order 11990 (Protection of Wetlands).
- (35) Executive Orders 12459 and 12689 (Federal regulations regarding debarment contained in the Executive Order), and 20 CFR 667.200(d), 29 CFR Parts 97.35 and 98.510, and any amendment thereto.
- (36) Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code, §12900 et seq.), the regulations promulgated thereunder (California Administrative Code, Title 2, §7285m et seq.), the provisions of Article 9.5, Chapter 1, Part 1, Division 3, Title 2 of the Government Code (Government Code, §§11135-11139.5) and the regulations or standards adopted by the City to implement such article.
- (37) Family Economic Security Act, CUIS 1500 et seq. and any successor legislation.
- (38) Federal Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 USC §201.
- (39) Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 USC 1251, et seq.
- (40) Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 §102(a) (PL 93-234).
- (41) Hatch Act (5 USC §§1501-1508 and 7324-7328).
- (42) Intergovernmental Personnel Act of 1970 (42 USC §§4728-4763, Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit System of Personnel Administration, 5CFR 900, Subpart F).
- (43) Laboratory Animal Welfare Act of 1966, as amended (PL 89-544, 7 USC §§2131 et seq.).
- (44) Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 USC §§4822 et seq.).
- (45) Military Selective Service Act, §3 (50 USC App. 453).
- (46) National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (PL 91-190, Executive Order 11514).
- (47) National Historical Preservation Act of 1966 §106, as amended (16 USC §470).
- (48) Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-122, Cost Principles for Non-Profit/Non-Governmental Organizations.
- (49) Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-87, Cost Principles Applicable to Grants and Contracts with State and Local Governments.
- (50) PL 93-348 regarding the protection of human subjects involved in research, development, and related activities supported by this award of assistance.
- (51) Public Health Service Act of 1912 (§§523 and 527), as amended (42 USC §§290 dd-3 and 290 ee-3).
- (52) Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (§503 and §504), PL 93-112, as amended, 20 USC 794, and implementing regulations issued at 45 CFR, Part 84.

- (53) Rehabilitation Act of 1973 §504, as amended (29 USC §794).
- (54) Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended (PL 93-523).
- (55) Single Audit Act PL 98-502 and 2 CFR 215 (former OMB Circular A-110) and OMB Circulars A-128 or A-133 as applicable.
- (56) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 USC §§1681-1683 and 1685-1686).
- (57) Titles VI, VII, and VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC 2000d) and implementing regulations; PL 88-352, as amended; and 42 USC §§3601 et seq., as amended;
- (58) Titles II and III of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (PL 91-646).
- (59) Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 USC §§1271 et seq.).
- (60) Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (38 U.S.C. §1368).
- (61) Sweat-free Code of Conduct:
 - (a) All contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, equipment or supplies furnished to the State pursuant to the contract have been laundered or produced in whole or in part by, or with the benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor. The Contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that it adheres to the Sweat-free Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov and Public Contract Code Section 6108. The Contractor agrees to provide records requested by the Department of Industrial Relations or City to determine compliance with the foregoing requirements.
 - (b) State of California Nondiscrimination Clause:
 - During the performance of this agreement, Contractor shall not unlawfully (i) discriminate, harass or allow harassment, against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (Cancer, age (over 40)), marital status, pregnancy disability and denial of family care leave. Contractor shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and harassment. Contractor shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12900 et seq.,) and the application regulations promulgated there under California Code of Regulations Title 2, Sec., 7285 et seq. The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Gov., Code §12990 set forth in Chapter 5, Div., 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations are incorporated into this Agreement. The Contractor shall include the non-discrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform work under the Agreement.
- (62) Contractor shall comply with the conditions set forth and applicable to subrecipients, regarding Labor Organization Consultation and/or Concurrence contained in 29 USC §306 and implementing regulations.

- (63) Contractor shall abide by the stipulations in the Maintenance of Effort provisions of WIA and any implementing regulations.
- (64) Contractor shall comply with the Salary and Bonus Limitations as provided by PL 109-149 and PL 109-234 restricting the salary level for anyone receiving WIA funds not to exceed Executive Level II.

§515 FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL TAXES

A. Federal, State, and local taxes shall be the responsibility of the Contractor as an independent Contractor and not as a City employee.

§516 INVENTIONS, PATENTS AND COPYRIGHTS

A. Reporting Procedure

1. If any project produces any invention or discovery (Invention) patentable or otherwise under Title 35 of the U.S. Code, including, without limitation, processes and business methods made in the course of work under this Agreement, the Contractor shall report the fact and disclose the Invention promptly and fully to the City. The City shall report the fact and disclose the Invention to the Grantor (U.S. Department of Labor.) Unless there is a prior agreement between the City and the Grantor, the Grantor shall determine whether to seek protection on the Invention. The Grantor shall determine how the rights in the Invention, including rights under any patent issued thereon, will be allocated and administered in order to protect the public interest consistent with the policy ("Policy") embodied in the Federal Acquisition Regulations System, which is based on Ch. 18 of Title 35 U.S.C. §§200 et seq. (Pub. L. 95-517, Pub. L. 98-620, 37 CFR part 401); Presidential Memorandum on Government Patent Policy to the Heads of the Executive Departments and Agencies, dated 2/18/1983); and Executive Order 12591, 4/10/87, 52 FR 13414, 3 CFR, 1987 Comp., p. 220 (as amended by Executive Order 12618, 12/22/87, 52 FR 48661, 3 CFR, 1987 Comp., p. 262). Contractor hereby agrees to be bound by the Policy, and will contractually require its personnel to be bound by the Policy.

B. Rights to Use Inventions

1. City/State shall have an unencumbered right, and a non-exclusive, irrevocable, royalty-free license, to use, manufacture, improve upon, and allow others to do so for all government purposes, any Invention developed under this Agreement.

C. Copyright Policy

- For purposes of this Agreement when copyrightable material (Material) is developed under this
 Agreement, ownership of the Material shall be governed by the provisions set forth below in Sections E
 through J. Notwithstanding such ownership rights, the Grantor, State, City and Contractor shall each
 have an unencumbered right, and a non-exclusive, irrevocable, royalty-free license, to use, access,
 manufacture, improve upon, and allow others to do so for all government purposes, any Material
 developed under this Agreement.
- 2. The Grantor shall have an unencumbered right, and a non-exclusive, irrevocable, royalty-free license, to use, manufacture, improve upon, and allow others to do so for all government purposes, any Material developed under this Agreement or any Copyright purchased under this Agreement. Contractor shall comply with 29 CFR 97.34

D. Rights to Data

1. The Grantor and the City shall have unlimited rights or copyright license to any data first produced or delivered under this Agreement. "Unlimited rights" means the right to use, disclose, reproduce, prepare derivative works, distribute copies to the public, and perform and display publicly, or permit others to do so; as required by 48 CFR 27.401. Where the data are not first produced under this Agreement or are published copyrighted data with the notice of 17 U.S.C. Section 401 or 402, the Grantor acquires the data

under a copyright license as set forth in 48 CFR 27.404(f)(2) instead of unlimited rights. (48 CFR 27.404(a)).

2. Obligations Binding on Subcontractors, Contractor shall require all subcontractors to comply with the obligations of this section by incorporating the terms of this section into all subcontracts.

E. Intellectual Property Provisions for California Sub-Grants

1. This Agreement is funded in part with federal "pass through" funds from the State of California (State). The following requirements are applicable to this Agreement. In any Contract funded in whole or in part by the federal government, City/State may acquire and maintain the Intellectual Property rights, title, and ownership, which result directly or indirectly from the Contract, except as provided in 37 Code of Federal Regulations Part 401.14. However, pursuant to 29 CFR Part 97.34 the federal government shall have a royalty-free, non-exclusive, irrevocable, paid-up license throughout the world to use, duplicate, or dispose of such Intellectual Property throughout the world in any manner for governmental purposes and to have and permit others to do so.

F. Ownership

- Except where City/State has agreed in a signed writing to accept a license, City/State shall be and remain, without additional compensation, the sole owner of any and all rights, title and interest in all intellectual property, from the moment of creation, whether or not jointly conceived, that are made, conceived, derived from, or reduced to practice by Contractor or City/State and which result directly or indirectly from this Agreement.
- 2. For the purposes of this Agreement, Intellectual Property means recognized protectable rights and interest such as: patents, (whether or not issued) copyrights, trademarks, service marks, applications for any of the foregoing, inventions, trade secrets, trade dress, logos, insignia, color combinations, slogans, moral rights, right of publicity, author's rights, contract and licensing rights, works, mask works, industrial design rights, rights of priority, know how, design flows, methodologies, devices, business processes, developments, innovations, good will, any data or information maintained, collected or stored in the ordinary course of business by City/State, and all other legal rights protecting intangible proprietary information as may exist now and/or hereafter come into existence, and all renewals and extensions, regardless of whether those rights arise under the laws of the United States, or any other state, country or iurisdiction.
- 3. For the purposes of the definition of Intellectual Property, "works" means all literary works, writings and printed matter including the medium by which they are recorded or reproduced, photographs, art work, pictorial and graphic representations and works of a similar nature, film, motion pictures, digital images, animation cells, and other audiovisual works including positives and negatives thereof, sound recordings, tapes, educational materials, interactive videos, computer software and any other materials or products created, produced, conceptualized and fixed in a tangible medium of expression. It includes preliminary and final products and any materials and information developed for the purposes of producing those final products. "Works" does not include articles submitted to peer review or reference journals or independent research projects.
- 4. In the performance of this Agreement, Contractor may exercise and utilize certain of its Intellectual Property in existence prior to the effective date of this Contract. In addition, under this Agreement, Contractor may access and utilize certain of City's/State's Intellectual Property in existence prior to the effective date of this Contract. Except as otherwise set forth herein, Contractor shall not use any of City's/State's Intellectual Property now existing or hereafter existing for any purposes without the prior written permission of City/State. Except as otherwise set forth herein, neither the Contractor nor City/State shall give any ownership interest in or rights to its Intellectual Property to the other Party. If, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor accesses any third-party Intellectual Property that is licensed to City/State, Contractor agrees to abide by all license and confidentiality restrictions applicable to City/State in the third-party's license agreement.
- 5. Contractor agrees to cooperate with City/State in establishing or maintaining City/State's exclusive rights in the Intellectual Property, and in assuring City's/State's sole rights against third parties with respect to p:\wdd\final documents\fy 10-11\worksource\cityoflongbeach (t4668).doc City Attorney review 29-Jun-2010 (RVA)

the Intellectual Property. If the Contractor enters into any agreements or subcontracts with other parties in order to perform this Contract, Contractor shall require the terms of the agreement(s) to include all Intellectual Property provisions herein. Such terms must include, but are not limited to, the subcontractor assigning and agreeing to assign to City/State all rights, title and interest in Intellectual Property made. conceived, derived from, or reduced to practice by the subcontractor. Contractor or City/State and which result directly or indirectly from this Contract or any subcontract.

- 6. The requirement for the Contractor to include all Intellectual Property Provisions in all agreements and subcontracts it enters into with other parties does not apply to agreements or subcontracts that are for customized and on-the-job training as authorized under 20 CFR 663.700-730.
- 7. Contractor further agrees to assist and cooperate with City/State in all reasonable respects, and execute all documents and, subject to reasonable availability, give testimony and take all further acts reasonably necessary to acquire, transfer, maintain, and enforce City's/State's Intellectual Property rights and interests.

G. Retained Rights / License Rights

- 1. Except for Intellectual Property made, conceived, derived from, or reduced to practice by Contractor or City/State and which result directly or indirectly from this Agreement, Contractor shall retain title to all of its Intellectual Property to the extent such Intellectual Property is in existence prior to the effective date of this Contract. Contractor hereby grants to City/State, without additional compensation, a permanent, nonexclusive, royalty free, paid-up, worldwide, irrevocable, perpetual, non-terminable license to use, reproduce, manufacture, sell, offer to sell, import, export, modify, publicly and privately display/perform, distribute, and dispose of Contractor's Intellectual Property with the right to sublicense through multiple layers, for any purpose whatsoever, to the extent it is incorporated in the Intellectual Property resulting from this Agreement, unless Contractor assigns all rights, title and interest in the Intellectual Property as set forth herein.
- 2. Nothing in this provision shall restrict, limit, or otherwise prevent Contractor from using any ideas, concepts, know-how, methodology or techniques related to its performance under this Agreement, provided that Contractor's use does not infringe the patent, copyright, trademark rights, license or other Intellectual Property rights of City/State or third party, or result in a breach or default of any provisions herein or result in a breach of any provisions of law relating to confidentiality.

H. Copyright

- 1. Contractor agrees that for purposes of copyright law, all works made by or on behalf of Contractor in connection with Contractor's performance of this Contract shall be deemed "works for hire." Contractor further agrees that the work of each person utilized by Contractor in connection with the performance of this Contract will be a "work made for hire," whether that person is an employee of Contractor or that person has entered into an agreement with Contractor to perform the work. Contractor shall enter into a written agreement with any such person that: (i) all work performed for Contractor shall be deemed a "work made for hire" under the Copyright Act and (ii) that person shall assign all right, title, and interest to City/State to any work product made, conceived, derived from or reduced to practice by Contractor or City/State and which result directly or indirectly from this Contract.
- 2. All materials, including, but not limited to, computer software, visual works or text, reproduced or distributed pursuant to this Agreement that include Intellectual Property made, conceived, derived from, or reduced to practice by Contractor or City/State and which result directly or indirectly from this Agreement may not be reproduced or disseminated without prior written permission from City/State.

Patent Rights

1. With respect to inventions made by Contractor in the performance of this Contract, which did not result from research and development specifically included in the Agreement's scope of work. Contractor hereby grants to City/State a license for devices or material incorporating, or made through the use of such inventions. If such inventions result from research and development work specifically included within the Agreement's scope of work, then Contractor agrees to assign to City/State, without additional p:\wdd\final documents\fy 10-11\worksource\cityoflongbeach (t4668).doc

compensation, all its right, title and interest in and to such inventions and to assist City/State in securing United States and foreign patents with respect thereto.

J. Third-Party Intellectual Property

1. Except as provided herein, Contractor agrees that its performance of this Agreement shall not be dependent upon or include any Intellectual Property of Contractor or third party without first: (i) obtaining City/State's prior written approval; and (ii) granting to or obtaining for City/State's, without additional compensation, a license, as described in §718F.3 above, for any of Contractor's or third-party's Intellectual Property in existence prior to the effective date of this Agreement. If such a license upon these terms is unattainable, and City/State determines that the Intellectual Property should be included in or is required for Contractor's performance of this Agreement, Contractor shall obtain a license under terms acceptable to City/State.

K. Warranties

- 1. Contractor represents and warrants that:
 - (1) It has secured and will secure all rights and licenses necessary for its performance of this Agreement. Neither Contractor's performance of this Agreement, nor the exercise by either Party of the rights granted in this Agreement, nor any use, reproduction, manufacture, sale, offer to sell, import, export, It modification, public and private display/performance, distribution, and disposition of the Intellectual Property made, conceived, derived from, or reduced to practice by Contractor or City/State and which result directly or indirectly from this Agreement will infringe upon or violate any Intellectual Property right, non-disclosure obligation, or other proprietary right or interest of any third-party or entity now existing under the laws of, or hereafter existing or issued by, any state, the United States, or any foreign country. There are currently no actual or threatened claims by any such third party based on an alleged violation of any such right by Contractor.
 - (2) Neither Contractor's performance nor any part of its performance will violate the right of privacy of, or constitute a libel or slander against any person or entity.
 - (3) It has secured and will secure all rights and licenses necessary for Intellectual Property including, but not limited to, consents, waivers or releases from all authors of music or performances used, and talent (radio, television and motion picture talent), owners of any interest in and to real estate, sites locations, property or props that may be used or shown.
 - (4) It has not granted and shall not grant to any person or entity any right that would or might derogate, encumber, or interfere with any of the rights granted to City/State in this Agreement.
 - (5) It has appropriate systems and controls in place to ensure that state funds will not be used in the performance of this Agreement for the acquisition, operation or maintenance of computer software in violation of copyright laws.
 - (6) It has no knowledge of any outstanding claims, licenses or other charges, liens, or encumbrances of any kind or nature whatsoever that could affect in any way Contractor's performance of this Agreement.
- 2. City/State make no warranty that the intellectual property resulting from this sub-grant Agreement does not infringe upon any patent, trademark, copyright or the like, now existing or subsequently issued.

L. Intellectual Property Indemnity

1. Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless City/State and its licensees and assignees, and its officers, directors, employees, agents, representatives, successors, and users of its products, ("Indemnities") from and against all claims, actions, damages, losses, liabilities (or actions or proceedings

with respect to any thereof), whether or not rightful, arising from any and all actions or claims by any third party or expenses related thereto (including, but not limited to, all legal expenses, court costs, and attorney's fees incurred in investigating, preparing, serving as a witness in, or defending against, any such claim action, or proceeding, commenced or threatened) to which any of the Indemnities may be subject, whether or not Contractor is a party to any pending or threatened litigation, which arise out of or are related to (i) the incorrectness or breach of any of the representations, warranties, covenants or agreements of Contractor pertaining to Intellectual Property; or (ii) any Intellectual Property infringement, or any other type of actual or alleged infringement claim, arising out of City/State's use, reproduction, manufacture, sale, offer to sell, distribution, import, export, modification, public and private performance/display, license, and disposition of the Intellectual Property made, conceived, derived from, or reduced to practice by Contractor or City/State and which result directly or indirectly from this Agreement. This indemnity obligation shall apply irrespective of whether the infringement claim is based on a patent, trademark or copyright registration that was issued after the effective date of this Contract. City/State reserves the right to participate in and/or control, at Contractor's expense, any such infringement action brought against City/State.

- 2. Should any Intellectual Property licensed by the Contractor to City/State under this Agreement become the subject of an Intellectual Property infringement claim, Contractor will exercise its authority reasonably and in good faith to preserve City/State's right to use the licensed Intellectual Property in accordance with this Agreement at no expense to City/State. City/State shall have the right to monitor and appear through its own counsel (at Contractor's expense) in any such claim or action. In the defense or settlement of the claim, Contractor may obtain the right for City/State to continue using the licensed Intellectual Property or, replace or modify the licensed Intellectual Property so that the replaced or modified Intellectual Property becomes non-infringing provided that such replacement or modification is functionally equivalent to the original licensed Intellectual Property. If such remedies are not reasonably available, City/State may be entitled to a refund of all monies paid under this Agreement, without restriction or limitation of any other rights and remedies available at law or in equity.
- 3. Contractor agrees that damages alone would be inadequate to compensate City/State for breach of any term of these Intellectual Property provisions herein by Contractor. Contractor acknowledges City/State would suffer irreparable harm in the event of such breach and agrees City/State shall be entitled to obtain equitable relief, including without limitation an injunction, from a court of competent jurisdiction, without restriction or limitation of any other rights and remedies available at law or in equity.

M. Survival

1. The provisions set forth herein shall survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement or any project schedule.

§517 LIVING WAGE ORDINANCE SERVICE CONTRACTOR WORKER RETENTION AND LIVING WAGE POLICY

- A. Unless otherwise exempt in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance, this contract is subject to the applicable provisions of the Living Wage Ordinance (LWO), Section 10.37 et seq. of the Los Angeles Administrative Code, as amended from time to time, and the Service Contractor Worker Retention Ordinance (SCWRO), Section 10.36 et seq., of the Los Angeles Administrative Code, as amended from time to time. The Ordinances require the following:
 - 1. Contractor assures payment of a minimum initial wage rate to employees as defined in the LWO and as may be adjusted each July 1 and provision of benefits as defined in the LWO.
 - 2. Contractor further pledges that it will comply with federal law proscribing retaliation for union organizing and will not retaliate for activities related to the LWO. Contractor shall require each of its subcontractors within the meaning of the LWO to pledge to comply with the terms of federal law proscribing retaliation for union organizing. Contractor shall deliver the executed pledges from each such subcontractor to the City within ninety (90) days of the execution of the subcontract.
 - a. Contractor's delivery of executed pledges from each such subcontractor shall fully discharge the obligation of the Contractor to comply with the provision in the LWO contained in Section 10.37.6(c) concerning compliance with such federal law.

- 3. The Contractor, whether an employer, as defined in the LWO, or any other person employing individuals, shall not discharge, reduce in compensation, or otherwise discriminate against any employee for complaining to the City with regard to the employer's compliance or anticipated compliance with the LWO, for participating in proceedings related to the LWO, for seeking to enforce his or her rights under the LWO by any lawful means, or otherwise asserting rights under the LWO. Contractor shall post the Notice of Prohibition Against Retaliation provided by the City.
- 4. Any subcontract entered into by the Contractor relating to this Agreement, to the extent allowed hereunder, shall be subject to the provisions of LWO and the SCWRO, and shall incorporate the "Living Wage Ordinance and Service Contractor Worker Retention Ordinance" language.
- 5. Contractor shall comply with all rules, regulations, and policies promulgated by the designated administrative agency, which may be amended from time to time.
- B. Under the provisions of Section 10.36.3(c) and Section 10.37.5(c) of the Los Angeles Administrative Code, the City shall have the authority, under appropriate circumstances, to terminate this contract and otherwise pursue legal remedies that may be available if the City determines that the subject Contractor has violated provisions of the LWO and the SCWRO.
- C. Where under the LWO Section 10.37.6(d), the designated administrative agency has determined (a) that the Contractor is in violation of the LWO in having failed to pay some or all of the living wage, and (b) that such violation has gone uncured, the awarding authority in such circumstances may impound monies otherwise due the Contractor in accordance with the following procedures. Impoundment shall mean that from monies due the Contractor, the awarding authority may deduct the amount determined to be due and owing by the Contractor to its employees. Such monies shall be placed in the holding account referred to in LWO Section 10.37.6(d) (3) and disposed of under procedures there described through final and binding arbitration. Whether the Contractor is to continue work following an impoundment shall remain in the unfettered discretion of the awarding authority. The Contractor may not elect to discontinue work either because there has been an impoundment or because of the ultimate disposition of the impoundment by the arbitrator.

§518 EARNED INCOME TAX CREDIT

A. This contract is subject to the provisions of Section 10.37.4 of the Los Angeles Administrative Code, requiring employers to inform employees making less than twelve dollars (\$12.00) per hour of their possible right to the federal Earned Income Tax Credit (EITC). Employers must further make available to employees the forms required to secure advance EITC payments from employers.

§519 EQUAL BENEFITS ORDINANCE

- A. This contract may be subject to the Equal Benefits Ordinance in the future. If so, Contractor will be notified of the applicability by the City.
- B. Unless otherwise exempted in accordance with the provisions of the Equal Benefits Ordinance (EBO), Section 10.8.2.1 of the Los Angeles Administrative Code, this Agreement is subject to the provisions of the EBO as amended from time to time.
- C. During the performance of the Agreement, the Contractor certifies and represents that the Contractor will comply with the EBO. The Contractor agrees to post the following statement in conspicuous places at its place of business available to employees and applicants for employment:
 - "During the performance of a Contract with the City of Los Angeles, the Contractor will provide equal benefits to employees with spouses and its employees with domestic partners. Additional information about the City of Los Angeles' Equal Benefits Ordinance may be obtained from the Department of Public Works, Bureau of Contract Administrator, Office of Contract Compliance Section at (213) 847-1922."
- D. The failure of the Contractor to comply with the EBO will be deemed to be a material breach of the Agreement by the Awarding Authority.

- E. If the Contractor fails to comply with the EBO, the Awarding Authority may cancel, terminate, or suspend the Agreement, in whole or in part, and all monies due or to become due under may be retained by the City. The City may also pursue any and all other remedies at law or in equity for any breach.
- F. Failure to comply with the EBO may be used as evidence against the Contractor in actions taken pursuant to the provisions of Los Angeles Administrative Code Section 10.40 et seq., Contractor Responsibility Ordinance.
- G. If the Office of Contract Compliance determines that a Contractor has set up or used its contracting entity for the purpose of evading the intent of the EBO, the Awarding Authority may terminate the Agreement on behalf of the City. Violation of this provision may be used as evidence against the Contractor in actions taken pursuant to the provisions of the Los Angeles Administrative Code Section 10.40 et seq., Contractor Responsibility Ordinance.

§520 CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY ORDINANCE

A. Unless otherwise exempt in accordance with the provisions of the Ordinance, this Agreement is subject to the provisions of the Contractor Responsibility Ordinance, Section 10.40 et seq., of Article 14, Chapter 1 of Division 10 of the Los Angeles Administrative Code, which requires Contractor to update its responses to the responsibility questionnaire within thirty calendar days after any change to the responses previously provided if such change would affect Contractor's fitness and ability to continue performing the contract. In accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance, by signing this Agreement, Contractor pledges, under penalty of perjury, to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws in the performance of this contract, including but not limited to, laws regarding health and safety, labor and employment, wage and hours, and licensing laws which affect employees. The Contractor further agrees to: (1) notify the awarding authority within thirty calendar days after receiving notification that any government agency has initiated an investigation which may result in a finding that the Contractor is not in compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws in performance of this contract; (2) notify the awarding authority within thirty calendar days of all findings by a government agency or court of competent jurisdiction that the Contractor has violated the provisions of Section 10.40.3 (a) of the Ordinance; (3) ensure that its subcontractor(s), as defined in the Ordinance, submit a Pledge of Compliance to awarding authorities; and (4) ensure that its subcontractor(s), as defined in the Ordinance, comply with the requirements of the Pledge of Compliance and the requirement to notify Awarding Authorities within thirty calendar days after any government agency or court of competent jurisdiction has initiated an investigation or has found that the subcontractor has violated Section 10.40.3 (a) of the Ordinance in performance of the subcontract.

§521 SLAVERY DISCLOSURE ORDINANCE

A. This contract may be subject to the Slavery Disclosure Ordinance in the future. If so, Contractor will be notified of the applicability by the City.

§522 CHILD SUPPORT ASSIGNMENT ORDERS

A. This Agreement is subject to Section 10.10 of the Los Angeles Administrative Code. Child Support Assignment Orders Ordinance. Pursuant to this Ordinance, Contractor certifies that it will (1) fully comply with all State and Federal employment reporting requirements applicable to Child Support Assignment Orders; (2) that the principal owner(s) of Contractor are in compliance with any Wage and Earnings Assignment Orders and Notices of Assignment applicable to them personally; (3) fully comply with all lawfully served Wage and Earnings Assignment Orders and Notices of Assignment in accordance with California Family Code Section 5230 et seq.; and (4) maintain such compliance throughout the term of this Agreement. Pursuant to Section 10.10 b of the Los Angeles Administrative Code, failure of Contractor to comply with all applicable reporting requirements or to implement lawfully served Wage and Earnings Assignment Orders and Notices of Assignment or the failure of any principal owner(s) of Contractor to comply with any Wage and Earnings Assignment Orders and Notices of Assignment applicable to them personally shall constitute a default by the Contractor under the terms of this Agreement, subjecting this Agreement to termination where such failure shall continue for more than ninety (90) days after notice of such failure to Contractor by City. Any subcontract entered into by the Contractor relating to this Agreement, to the extent allowed hereunder, shall be subject to the provisions of this paragraph and shall incorporate the provisions of the Child Support Assignment Orders Ordinance. Failure of the Contractor to obtain compliance of its subcontractors shall

- constitute a default by the Contractor under the terms of this contract, subjecting this Agreement to termination where such failure shall continue for more than ninety (90) days after notice of such failure to Contractor by the City.
- B. Contractor shall comply with the Child Support Compliance Act of 1998 of the State of California Employment Development Department. Contractor assures that to the best of its knowledge it is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all employees, and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the Employment Development Department as set forth in subdivision (1) of the Public Contract Code 7110.

6. GRANT REQUIREMENTS

§601 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

- A. General Reporting: The Contractor shall furnish to the City at the times and on the forms and formats, electronically or manually, as the City may require all records, reports, data and information pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement.
- B. Program Reporting: The Contractor shall submit to the City the following program reports as identified below. Contractor shall submit to the City all required documents in accordance with all City procedures and Directives, which are incorporated herein by reference.
 - 1. Monthly Fiscal Report and Closeout Report: The Contractor shall submit to the City the following reports as identified below:
 - a. Expenditure Report Due on or before the 15th day of each month, the Contractor shall submit the Expenditure Report to the City, which reflects accrued expenditures as of the previous month on forms provided by the City.
 - b. Cash Request Due on or before the 15th day of the month, a Cash Request shall be submitted on forms provided. Contractors approved for cash advances shall submit a cash request on or before the 5th day of the month but not earlier than the 25th of the preceding month. If approved for cash advance, contractor shall submit an expenditure report for costs incurred as of the 2 months preceding the month for which the cash is requested.

2. Closeout Report

- a. Within 15 calendar days following the termination of this Agreement, Contractor shall submit to the City, on forms provided by the City, a complete and accurate final closeout invoice including accruals of allowable expenditures and a remittance for all unearned grant funds as identified in the close-out. Final requests to modify Budget/Expenditure Plan shall be submitted to the City before final closeout. By submission of the closeout invoice, the Contractor certifies that: i) Costs reported and payments requested are valid and consistent with the terms of the Agreement; and, ii) Cash payments received from the City shall be used to pay only for expenditures as reported on the Agreement final closeout invoices. Costs reported and payments made are subject to City verification.
- b. In the event Contractor does not submit a final closeout or other required documentation within the prescribed time frame, the City reserves the right to unilaterally close out the Agreement and use the invoice then on file at City for determination of Contractor's final allowable expenditures. The City will not reimburse the Contractor for expenditures reported after the 15-day closeout date following the termination of this Agreement.

3. Annual Inventory Report:

a. Contractor shall submit an annual inventory report to the City as stipulated in this Agreement for all nonexpendable property that has a City identification decal affixed to it. The City shall provide the inventory report form to the Contractor 30 days before the termination date of this Agreement.

4. Report on Reasonable Cost:

a. Contractor shall report to the City costs charged to other funding sources for services, which are the same type of fee-for-performance price services as those covered by this Agreement. If the costs are lower, the Contractor shall submit a justification for charging the City a higher cost. This report shall be submitted by the Contractor within 30 calendar days after the execution of the Agreement with the other funding source(s).

§602 MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS

A. Record Retention

- 1. Records, in their original form, shall be maintained in accordance with requirements prescribed by the Grantor and the City with respect to all matters covered by this Agreement. Original forms are to be maintained on file for all documents specified in this Agreement. Unaltered copies of eligibility documents are acceptable. These records shall be retained for a period of five years after termination of this Agreement and after final disposition of all pending matters. Pending matters include, but are not limited to, an audit, litigation, or other actions involving records. The City may, at its discretion, take possession of and retain the records. Before destruction of records retained under this Agreement, Contractor shall notify the City and request instructions on disposition of the records.
- 2. Location of Records: Records (including, but not limited to, customer files and fiscal documents in their original form) pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement shall at all times, be retained within the County of Los Angeles unless authorization to remove them is granted in writing by the City.

§603 CUSTOMER/APPLICANT FILES

- A. Contractor shall complete and maintain on-site in the customer's file the following documents, as prescribed by program requirements: 1) Application for all applicants; 2) Eligibility documents (see Note below); 3) Assessment documents; 4) Standard Worksite Training Agreement (when applicable); 5) Progress reports; 6) Counseling documents, 7) Job development records; 8) Exit documents; 9) Post Placement Follow-up documentation;10) Documentation of follow-up services; 11) Employer Verification documents; 12) Verification documents for training completion; 13) Written documentation that customer has received: Program Orientation, Supportive Services Information, City Complaint Resolution Procedures, Contractor Customer Complaint Resolution Procedures; 14) Documentation of supportive services received; and 15) Documentation of credential received as a result of training.
- B. NOTE: The City requires the Contractor to verify and certify eligibility and maintain in the customer file, on-site, all eligibility documentation prior to, or as of, the date the applicant is registered in the program.

§604 EQUIPMENT RECORDS

- A. Nonexpendable personal property (equipment) acquired pursuant to this Agreement shall be properly maintained and accounted for as set forth below:
 - 1. A record shall be maintained for each item of equipment acquired for the program. Equipment is nonexpendable property, which is not consumed or does not lose its identity by being incorporated into another item of equipment, which costs \$1,000 or more per unit, or is expected to have a useful life of one year or more. Items falling into the following categories are also considered equipment, regardless of acquisition costs and records must be maintained for them: (1) electronic communications equipment for stationary or vehicular use, including cellular telephones acquired by purchase, and (2) electronic office equipment as follows facsimile machines, copiers, electric typewriters, personal computers (monitors and CPU's), terminals, and printers.
 - 2. The record shall include: (1) Inventory City Tag or Decal Number; (2) description of the item of equipment, including model and serial number, if applicable; (3) date of acquisition; (4) the acquisition cost; (5) assigned value to the program; (6) condition of the equipment; (7) Title Holder; (8) Date of Disposition, if applicable; and (9) location.

- B. All equipment obtained under this Agreement shall have a City identification decal affixed to it. The identification decal, when practical, shall be affixed where it is readily visible.
- C. A physical inventory shall be taken by the Contractor and reconciled with the record card annually or at other times as the City shall prescribe.
- D. Contractor shall comply with the requirements of City Directive Number 07-16 and any amendments thereto in the management of nonexpendable property purchased with WIA funds.

§605 PURCHASE OR LEASE OF EQUIPMENT OR FACILITIES

- A. Prior to the purchase or lease of equipment the Contractor shall receive prior City approval in writing and shall comply with all requirements described in this Agreement. Any purchase of property with an acquisition cost of \$5,000 or more per unit and any of the cost charge to WIA funding in this Agreement shall require a written prior approval of the State.
- B. The term equipment as used in this Agreement shall be defined to mean personal property.
- C. Contractor shall notify the City in writing before using equipment for this Agreement that was or is to be purchased or leased with public funds not provided by this Agreement. Purchase or lease payments for this equipment shall not be made from funds under the terms of this Agreement.
 - 1. Lease of Equipment
 - a. A copy of each executed equipment lease agreement shall be submitted to the City before payment. Written amendments to equipment lease agreement shall comply with the conditions set forth in this Agreement.

2. Purchase of Equipment

- a. All property real and personal, purchased under this Agreement with funds provided in this Agreement shall become the property of the City and shall be returned to the City upon termination of this Agreement, except as provided otherwise by the City in writing. Contractor shall file all Uniform Commercial Code statements for any eligible property purchased with funds from this Agreement and deliver a copy of the filing to the City.
- b. The property shall be used and maintained by the Contractor as follows:
 - (1) Property shall be used solely in the performance of this Agreement.
 - (2) No modifications shall be made to the property without the prior written approval of City.
 - (3) The Contractor shall be liable for any and all loss, damage or destruction of property acquired under this Agreement during the period the property is under the control of the Contractor, except losses, damage or destruction resulting from reasonable wear and tear. Damage, loss, or destruction of the property shall be immediately reported to the City.
- D. Purchase of depreciable equipment including, but not limited to, computer hardware and software and vehicles require prior City written approval.
 - 1. Disposition of nonexpendable personal property shall be governed by the EDD and City Directives and any approved Ordinance, e.g. Ordinance #178450 which codifies procedures related to handling City-owned Electronic Waste (e-Waste), such as computers, printers, cellular devices and all related accessories. Disposition of WIA funded properties shall be governed by EDD Directive No. WIAD03-9. All private for profit contractors shall acquire prior City approval before purchasing any nonexpendable personal property.
- E. Lease of Property or Facilities

- 1. All lease agreements shall incorporate the following provisions. Contractor shall amend any current lease agreements to incorporate the following provisions:
 - a. All leases of property or facilities procured to house a City Program under this Agreement must contain a provision that allows the City, at its sole option, to assume the lease for its remaining term, under the same terms and conditions then in effect, in the event that the City terminates its Contractor's City Agreement or if Contractor abandons the lease.
 - b. All leases of property or facilities procured to house a City Program under this Agreement must contain a provision, which provides that any improvements made to the facility or property by Contractor inures to the benefit of the City, and the City may elect, at its sole option, to remove the improvements.
 - c. It is recommended that the Contractor, during lease negotiations, request the addition of a section to the lease agreement, whereby the Lessor agrees that if Lessee's grant funding for any calendar year decreases by \$500,000 or more from the previous calendar year, Lessee may terminate the lease with 120 days written notice.
- 2. A copy of all leases and lease amendments must be reviewed and approved by the City prior to signature and be on file with the City prior to the release of cash.
- 3. Contractor shall not sublease, assign, or amend in any manner leases paid for with funds under this Agreement without prior written City approval.
- 4. Contractor shall invoice for only that portion of the lease cost that is allocated to the program funded by this Agreement. The Contractor is responsible for collecting any portion of the rent due to Contractor under sublease agreements with partners or other entities.

§606 ACCOUNTING PRACTICES

- A. The Contractor shall maintain a system of internal control in accordance with standard accounting practices.
 - In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and City Directives, financial systems shall include:
 - a. Information pertaining to subgrant and contract awards, obligations, unobligated balances, assets, expenditures, and income;
 - b. Effective internal controls to safeguard assets and assure their proper use;
 - c. A comparison of actual expenditures with budgeted amounts for each subgrant and contract;
 - d. Source documentation to support accounting records;
 - e. Proper charging of costs and cost allocation; and be sufficient to:
 - (1) Permit preparation of required reports;
 - (2) Permit the tracing of funds to a level of expenditure adequate to establish that funds have not been used in violation of the applicable restrictions on the use of the funds;
 - f. "Internal Control" for purpose of this Agreement, comprises the plan or organization and all of the coordinated methods and measures adopted within an organization to safeguard its assets, check the adequacy and the reliability of its accounting data, promote operating efficiency, and assure adherence to prescribed management policies.
 - 2. The Contractor shall submit its system of accounting procedures and Internal Control to the City before the City disburses any funds to the Contractor.

§607 DOCUMENTATION OF EXPENDITURES

- A. Expenditures shall be supported by properly executed payrolls, time records, invoices, vouchers, or other official documentation evidencing in proper detail the nature and propriety of the charges. Checks, payrolls, invoices, vouchers, or other accounting documents shall be clearly identified and readily accessible.
- B. Payroll expenditures shall be supported by activity reports that may include but not be limited to case reports, mileage logs, attendance rosters and other documents supporting work related to City contract or program.
- C. No Contractor shall release funds to any subcontractor for reimbursement of costs, until it has received adequate documentation from the subcontractor that the expenditures are reasonable and allowable under the subagreement. All documentation must remain on file at Contractor's office.

§608 AUDITS AND INSPECTIONS

- A. At any time during normal business hours and as often as the Grantor, the U.S. Comptroller General, U.S. Department of Labor, the Auditor General of the State of California and the Employment Development Department or their designees or the City may deem necessary, the Contractor shall make available for examination, all of its records with respect to all matters covered by this Agreement. The City, the U.S. Comptroller General, and the U.S. Department of Labor, the Auditor General of the State of California and the Employment Development Department or their designees, shall have the authority to audit, examine and make excerpts, or transcripts from records, including all Contractor's invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, conditions of employment, and other data relating to all matters covered by this Agreement.
- B. Access by the City, the Auditor General of the State of California, and the Employment Development Department or their designees, the U.S. Department of Labor, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives to any books, documents, papers, and records (including computer records) of the contractor which are directly pertinent to charges to the program, shall not be denied in order to conduct audits and examinations, and make excerpts, transcripts, and photocopies. This right also includes timely and reasonable access to Contractor's and subcontractor's personnel for the purpose of interviews and discussions related to such documents. At any time during normal business hours and as often as City, the
- C. Contractor agrees to provide any reports requested by the City regarding performance of the Agreement.
- D. Contractor shall adhere to the rules and regulations of the Single Audit Act PL 98-502 and the implementing OMB Circulars, and any administrative regulation or field memos implementing the Act.
- E. When total expenditures under all Federal programs in a fiscal year equal or exceed \$500,000, the Contractor shall conduct or have conducted on an annual basis, audits in accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1984, PL 98-502, implementing regulations in OMB Circulars A-133 as applicable, (City Council action dated February 4, 1987, C.F. No. 84-2259-S1) and administrative regulations or field memos implementing revisions or updates to the audit requirements. The auditor's reports, prepared in accordance with the aforementioned requirements, and any accompanying management reports on the operation of the contractor or this Agreement, shall be submitted to the City within nine (9) months after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.
 - 1. Contractors who meet the above threshold shall annually subcontract with a qualified independent auditor.
 - 2. The audit is to be conducted annually to test the fiscal integrity of financial transactions as well as compliance with the applicable laws and regulations.
 - 3. The Contractor, not later than thirty (30) days following receipt of the final audit report and within nine (9) months after the close of Contractor's fiscal year, shall submit a copy of the report to the Financial Management Division of the City's Community Development Department.
 - 4. If the auditor's report or management report identifies deficiencies with internal controls or contract compliance, the Contractor shall prepare and submit a corrective action plan along with the auditor's

- reports. The plan shall address all deficiencies and provide specific details on corrective actions to be taken along with the date the action was or will be implemented.
- 5. If the expenditures under all Federal programs are less than \$500,000, Contractor shall permit the City to conduct a performance review of this Agreement and all related records in accordance with Directives received from the City.
- F. In the event that the Contractor is operating on a for-profit basis, the Contractor shall conduct a programspecific annual independent financial and compliance audit in accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards, or an organization-wide audit that includes coverage of the City program within its scope.
- G. The City reserves the right to impose any or all of the following sanctions for Contractor's failure to comply with the Single Audit Act and the provisions of this Agreement:
 - 1. Withhold a percentage of payments, at the City's sole discretion, until the audit is completed satisfactorily and submitted to the Department;
 - 2. Suspend payments due to Contractor until the audit is completed satisfactorily and submitted to the City; and/or Impose the Default, Probation, Suspension and Termination provisions of this Agreement as set forth herein.
- H. City, Auditor General of the State of California, Grantor, Director of the Office of Civil Rights, and the U.S. Comptroller General shall have the authority to audit, examine, and make excerpts or transcripts from records, including contracts, invoices, customer records and other records supporting this Agreement. Audits of earned funds are limited to determining if such funds were earned in accordance with this Agreement.
 - City may require Contractor who has inadequate fiscal or administrative procedures, to use any or all of
 the City's accounting or administrative procedures used in the planning, controlling, monitoring, and
 reporting of fiscal matters relating to this Agreement; or secure at Contractor's expense the service of
 independent experts.
 - 2. City shall have the authority to make physical inspections and to require such physical safeguarding devices as locks, alarms, safes, fire extinguishers, sprinkler systems, etc., to safeguard property, records and/or equipment used in the performance of this Agreement.
 - 3. Should a fiscal or special audit determine that the Contractor has earned funds which are questioned under the criteria set forth herein, the Contractor shall be notified and given the opportunity to justify questioned expenditures prior to the City's final determination of disallowed costs, in accordance with the procedures established under the Grant.

§609 CONFIDENTIALITY OF INFORMATION

- A. The Grantor, the City, and the Contractor will exchange various kinds of information pursuant to this Agreement. That information will include data, applications, program files and databases. These data and information are confidential when they define an individual or an employing unit. Confidential information requires special precautions to protect it from unauthorized use, access, disclosure, modification, and destruction. The sources of information may include, but are not limited to, the Employment Development Department, the California Department of Social Services, the California Department of Education, the County Welfare Department(s), the County IV-D Directors Office of Child Support, the Office of the District Attorney, the California Department of Mental Health, the California Office of Community Colleges, and the Department of Alcohol and Drug Programs.
- B. The City and the Contractor agree that:
 - 1. Each party shall keep all information that is exchanged between them in the strictest confidence and make such information available to their own employees only on a "need-to-know" basis.

- 2. Each party shall provide written instructions to all of its employees with access to information provided by the other party of the confidential nature of the information and of the penalties for unauthorized use or disclosure found in §1798.55 of the Civil Code, §502 of the Penal Code, §2111 of the Unemployment Insurance Code, §10850 of the Welfare and Institutions Code and other applicable local, State and federal laws.
- 3. Each party shall (where appropriate) store and process information in an electronic format, in such a way that unauthorized persons cannot reasonably retrieve the information by computer, remote terminal, or other means.
- 4. Each party shall promptly return to the other party confidential information when its use ends or destroy the confidential information utilizing an approved method of destroying confidential information by shredding, burning, or certified, or witnessed destruction. Magnetic media are to be degaussed or returned to the other party.
- 5. If the City or Contractor enters into an agreement with a third party to provide services, the City or Contractor agrees to include these data and security and confidentiality requirements in the agreement with that third party. In no event shall said information be disclosed to any individual outside of that third party's authorized staff, subcontractor(s), service providers, or employees.
- 6. Each party shall designate an employee who shall be responsible for overall security and confidentiality of its data and information systems and, each party shall notify the other of any changes in that designation. In no event shall said information be disclosed to any individual outside of that third party's authorized staff, subcontractor(s), service providers, or employees.

§610 SECURITY CLEARANCE AND TUBERCULOSIS TEST OF STAFF AND VOLUNTEERS

- A. Contractor hereby certifies that by signing this Agreement, Contractor and subcontractor staff working with youth, as either employees or volunteers, who have a supervisory or disciplinary authority over minors must be fingerprinted and pass the background check, as required by California Penal Code §11105.3 and California Education Code §45125.1 and §10911.5. Fingerprinting and a background check may be required of other staff and volunteers depending upon how much contact the staff member will have with minors. The Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining security clearances for staff whose duties require a sufficient level of interaction with youth.
- B. Contractor hereby certifies that by signing this Agreement, Contractor shall have Tuberculosis (TB) tests completed on any staff member working with the youth.
- C. Contractor shall maintain proof of Security Clearance and TB tests of all staff, including those of the subcontractors, and make these records available for future inspection.

§611 RESTRICTION ON DISCLOSURES

A. Prior to the release of any reports, analyses, studies, information, or data generated as a result of this Agreement Contractor shall notify the City of the request to release the information. Release of information shall be coordinated by the contractor and the City and shall be in compliance with state and federal law.

§612 HEADINGS AND CAPTIONS

A. This Agreement's section headings shall not be deemed to govern, limit, modify, or in any way affect the scope, meaning, or intent of these conditions. Unless defined as a "working day," all reference to days is to calendar days.

§613 MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEM RECORDS AND REPORTS

A. The Contractor shall report to the City numeric data, statistics, facts, news, details and information for its City-funded project(s) using forms and formats such as the electronic Integrated Services Information System (ISIS) prescribed by the City for this purpose.

- B. The City shall rely upon and use records and monthly invoices located at the City, and on-site verifications, as needed, to substantiate Contractor's performance and expenditure data, including but not limited to enrollment, training services, placement activities, wages, business/job creation, and post-program services status..
- C. The City may contact Contractor staff, participants, subcontractors, training institutions or schools to verify the documentation supporting performance and compliance with this Agreement.

§614 INSTALLATION OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE SIGN

A. The Contractor shall install, or allow to be installed, for public display upon the project premises a sign, identifying the Contractor as receiving financial assistance from the City.

§615 PRESS RELEASES-PUBLIC INFORMATION

A. The Contractor shall make specific reference to the City of Los Angeles as the sponsoring agency and that the Contractor is an Equal Opportunity/Affirmative Action Employer in all communications with the press, television, radio or any other means of communicating with the general community. The Contractor shall make specific reference to the City of Los Angeles as the sponsoring agency of the project, regarding any items that are related to the program which is funded by this Agreement. Contractor shall also coordinate press releases with the media/public relations project for maximum impact.

§616 NOTICE TO CITY OF LABOR DISPUTES

A. When Contractor has knowledge that any actual or potential labor dispute involving participants or other employees is delaying or threatens to delay the timely performance of this Agreement the Contractor shall immediately give notice thereof, including all pertinent information, with regard to same to City. No funds in this Agreement shall be used to promote or deter union organizing.

§617 LISTING OF CONTRACTOR'S EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES WITH EDD

A. Contractor shall list all Contractor's job openings with the local Employment Development Department Office when such job openings are funded, in full or in part, through monies provided by this Agreement.

§618 TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE

A. Contractor shall submit a written request to the City identifying the nature of the problem, the action Contractor has taken to resolve the problem, and the type of assistance needed.

§619 EFFECT OF LEGAL JUDGMENT

A. Should any covenant, condition or provision contained in this Agreement be held to be invalid by final judgment in any court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of the covenant, condition or provision shall not affect any other covenant, condition or provision in this Agreement.

§620 PROHIBITION OF LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

A. Contractor is prohibited from using Grant funds received under this Agreement for the purpose of instituting legal proceeding against the City or their official representatives.

§621 ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING FOR DENIAL OF CLIENT BENEFITS BY CONTRACTOR (NOT APPLICABLE TO WIA AGREEMENT)

A. Contractor has read and agrees to strictly comply with Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 100751, as amended, which sets forth elements to be included in client benefit denial appeal procedures and shall advise individuals who have been denied assistance of their 20-day right to appeal to the State for an administrative hearing pursuant to 42 USC 8624(b) (13), as amended.

B. The client may withdraw request for appeal for administrative hearing at any time during the appeal process by rendering written or oral notice to the State. Where oral notice is given, such notice shall be confirmed in writing by the parties.

§622 FAITH-BASED ACTIVITIES

- A. Organizations that are religious or faith-based are eligible, on the same basis as any other organization, to participate in the grant funded program. However, a Contractor that participates in a grant-funded program shall comply with the following provisions if it is deemed to be a religious or faith-based organization.
 - Contractor may not engage in inherently religious activities, such as worship, religious instruction, or proselytization, as part of the programs or services funded under this Contact. If Contractor conducts such activities, the activities must be offered separately, in time or location, from the programs or services funded under this Agreement, and participation must be voluntary for the beneficiaries of the grant-funded programs or services.
 - 2. A religious or faith-based Contractor will retain its independence from Federal, State, and local governments, and may continue to carry out its mission, including the definition, practice, and expression of its religious beliefs, provided that it does not use direct grant funds to support any inherently religious activities, such as worship, religious instruction, or proselytization.
 - 3. A religious or faith-based Contractor may use space in its facilities to provide grant funded services, without removing religious art, icons, scriptures, or other religious symbols.
 - 4. A religious or faith-based Contractor retains its authority over its internal governance, and it may retain religious terms in its organization's name, select its board members on a religious basis, and include religious references in its organization's mission statements and other governing documents.
 - 5. A religious or faith-based Contractor shall not, in providing program assistance, discriminate against a program beneficiary or prospective program beneficiary on the basis of religion or religious belief.
 - 6. Grant funds may not be used for the acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation of structures to the extent that those structures are used for inherently religious activities.
 - 7. Grant funds may be used for the acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation of structures only to the extent that those structures are used for conducting eligible activities under this Section. Where a structure is used for both eligible and inherently religious activities, Grant funds may not exceed the cost of those portions of the acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation that are attributable to eligible activities in accordance with the cost accounting requirements applicable to Grant funds herein. Sanctuaries, chapels, or other rooms that a Grant funded religious congregation uses as its principal place of worship, however, are ineligible for Grant funded improvements. Disposition of real property after the term of the grant, or any change in use of the property during the term of the grant, is subject to government-wide regulations governing real property dispositions.

§623 CHILD ABUSE

A. Contractor shall comply with the provisions of the California Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act, CA Penal Code §11164 et seq., and specifically §§ 11165.7, 11165.9, 11166.

7. SUBCONTRACT AND PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES

§701 SUBCONTRACTS

- A. For the purpose of this Agreement, subcontracts shall include, but not be limited to, purchase agreements, lease or rental agreements (excluding real property agreements), third party agreements, consultant services subcontracts, and construction subcontracts.
- B. Subcontracts entered into in the performance of this Agreement shall:

- 1. Be subject to the terms and conditions set forth in of this Agreement. City may require incorporation of the applicable provisions in a written agreement;
- 2. Specifically prohibit assignment or transfer of interest without prior written approval by the City;
- 3. Contractor must specifically provide proof, when applicable, of the appropriate permits and/or business licenses.
- C. A copy of each executed subcontract, or amendment(s) thereto, shall be submitted to the City prior to payment.

§702 PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES

- A. It is the policy of the City of Los Angeles (City) to encourage fair and open competition in its procurement for goods and services. The requirements for a fair and open competition include the development of written procurement policies that include, but are not limited to, all of the following subsections. It is the City's intent that the following rules be binding upon the City and its subcontractors. Several of the provisions herein include City mandated rules and procedures in addition to the other grant requirements. Such policies are applicable to subcontractors to the extent permitted by law.
- B. Purpose. It is the intent of these rules that these procedures shall apply to all subcontracts including, but not limited to, purchase agreements, lease or rental agreements (excluding real property agreements), third party agreements, and consultant services subcontracts. All contractors are required to prepare written procurement procedures. All written procedures and policies for procurement activities are to be available for public inspection.
- C. Competition. The City and each of its contractors shall conduct procurement in a manner that provides full and open competition. Some of the situations considered to be restrictive of competition include, but are not limited to:
 - 1. Placing unreasonable requirements on firms or organizations in order for them to qualify to do business;
 - 2. Requiring unnecessary experience and excessive bonding;
 - 3. Noncompetitive pricing practices between firms or organizations or between affiliated companies or organizations;
 - 4. Noncompetitive awards to consultants that are on retainer contracts;
 - 5. Organizational conflicts of interest;
 - 6. Specifying only a "brand name" product instead of allowing "an equal" product to be offered and describing the performance of other relevant requirements of the procurement;
 - 7. Overly restrictive specifications; and
 - 8. Any arbitrary action in the procurement process.

D. Responsibilities.

- 1. The following procedures shall apply to all procurement under this Agreement in order to ensure that all solicitations:
 - a. Incorporate a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements for the material, product or service to be procured. Such description shall not, in competitive procurement, contain features which unduly restrict competition; and

- b. Identify all requirements that the offerors must fulfill and all other factors to be used in evaluating bids or proposals.
- 2. Issue a Public Notification. The notification must be made through an announcement in a local public medium (e.g., newspaper) or other media that covers the entire service area.
- 3. All steps of each procurement must be documented, including a description of the documentation process and where the documentation will be located.
- 4. Contractor shall provide a copy of the RFP/RFQ to anyone who requests it. Contractor shall compile a list of everyone requesting a copy of the RFP/RFQ.
- 5. The Contractor shall ensure that all pre-qualified lists of persons, firms or other organizations that are used to acquire goods and services are current and include sufficient numbers of qualified sources to ensure maximum open and free competition. The agencies listed on the bidder's list may be individually notified.
- 6. The Contractor shall not use funds provided under this Agreement to duplicate facilities or services available in the area (with or without reimbursement) from Federal, State, or local sources, unless it is demonstrated that the Agreement-funded alternative services or facilities would be more effective or more likely to achieve performance goals.
- 7. The Contractor shall maintain records that are sufficient to detail the significant history of a procurement procedure in compliance with 29 CFR 97.36. These records shall include, but are not limited to, the following: rationale for the method of procurement, the selection of contract type, contractor selection or rejection, rationale and reasonable rating criteria and the basis for the contract type. Records regarding the history of a procurement procedure shall comply with 29 CFR 7.36.
- 8. The Contractor shall keep records sufficient to insure that funds have not been spent unlawfully.
- 9. The Contractor shall retain all records pertinent to any procurement agreement/contract within the County of Los Angeles for a period of five years following termination of the Agreement and after final disposition of all pending matters. "Pending Matters" include, but are not limited to, an audit, litigation, or other activities involving records. Prior to destruction of records retained under this Agreement, the Contractor shall notify the City and request instructions on disposition of said records.
- 10. The Contractor shall not contract with any party which is debarred, suspended or otherwise excluded from participation in Federal assistance programs in accordance with Department of Labor regulations at 29 CFR Part 98. All contracts shall include a self-certification from the contractor that it is not a debarred party.
 - a. The federal government prohibits awards to any party that is debarred. The federal government compiles a list of debarred parties. The federal list is published by the General Services Administration; a copy may be obtained by telephoning the Superintendent of Documents (202/512-1600). The list will be issued as an information Bulletin in May of each year. It is the Contractor's responsibility to ensure that funds are not awarded to entities on the debarment lists.
- 11. Procurement shall be conducted at least once every three years.
- 12. Procurement activities must be conducted in a confidential manner. Staff involved in procurement must not divulge advance purchasing information, specific proposal/offer evaluation criteria, negotiations with bidders or in-house discussions regarding a procurement until such time as this information is released to all parties.
- 13. Contractor shall receive and log in proposals and establish a method for recording the date and time of arrival of proposals using either a login sheet or a date/time stamp. Contractor shall establish a single location for receipt of proposals. Contractor shall ensure that only proposals received by the deadline

specified in the RFP/RFQ qualify for the evaluation process unless there is a valid legal reason for otherwise considering a late proposal.

- 14. Contractor shall establish proposal evaluation procedures that shall include, but not be limited to, the following:
 - a. Clear staff responsibilities. A procurement specialist shall be designated for each bid/ proposal process. It shall be the responsibility of the specialist to ensure compliance with these procurement rules.
 - b. Develop a standard worksheet or check list for determining responsiveness of each proposal.
 - c. Establish and use evaluation criteria and a standard evaluation worksheet to be used in recording the evaluations of each proposal.
 - d. Prepare an analysis of costs to verify allowability and to determine reasonableness.
 - e. Identify staff responsibilities for completing proposal evaluation and for summarizing evaluation results.
 - f. Develop a description of methods for ensuring independence of ratings by those involved in the evaluation process (i.e., prohibit discussion among staff, sequestered evaluators).
 - g. Identify policy and process by which selection of awardee(s) will be made.
 - h. Provide an opportunity for bidders to appeal staff recommendations.
 - Items a-c should be sufficiently completed before issuance of the RFP so relevant parts can be included.
- 15. Contractor shall identify complete and timely proposals. Contractor shall review the technical merits of these proposals based on the rating criteria contained in the RFP/RFQ. Contractor shall review the cost proposals based on applicable cost principles and the technical proposal. For participant service RFPs/RFQs demonstrated performance and ability must be documented and should include independently verified information and data.
- 16. Contractor shall determine which proposals are in the competitive range for technical response and based on the cost and price analysis conducted prior to the RFP/RFQ are within the cost and price criteria.
- 17. Contractor shall negotiate with organization(s) in the competitive range. Contractor shall establish policies and procedures governing face-to-face negotiations. Contractor shall include in the criteria that all responsive offerors in the competitive range are given fair and equal consideration based on the merits of their proposals. Contractor shall document these negotiations in writing.
- 18. Contractor shall determine for participant service RFPs the demonstrated performance and ability of the highest rated offeror(s). This determination must be documented and should include independently verified information and data.
- 19. Private for-profit entities must obtain prior written approval from the City for purchases of personal property (other than supplies) using Agreement funds.
- 20. Contractor shall conduct and document oversight to ensure compliance with these procurement procedures.
- 21. City may procure goods and services from other governmental entities in accordance with Agreement procurement regulations. Contracts may not charge higher prices than that available to the general public. All such contracts are subject to cost reasonableness requirements.

- a. In-school youth programs may be sole sourced to public and nonprofit private secondary schools.
- b. City may use as the basis for selecting a provider a procurement process from another government in its market area upon review of the procurement process and City determination that such process complies with this Agreement and local law.
- c. City may use the Central City Purchasing agent in order to procure office supplies, basic equipment and other similar goods.
- d. The City may authorize its Contractor to use a vendor subcontractor who has been already selected through the City's procurement process without requiring an additional procurement process.
- 22. If the State of California or the City of Los Angeles has established a debt against an Agreement service provider that has not been repaid or a repayment agreement plan has not been implemented, then the service provider shall be barred from receiving any future grant funds.
- 23. The City will use the definition of a private postsecondary education institute as defined in the California Education Code Section 94302(w) as any person doing business in California that offers to provide or provides, for a tuition, fee, or other charge, any instruction, training, or education primarily to people who completed or terminated their secondary education or are beyond the age of compulsory high school attendance. Information Bulletin B95-83 provides further guidance regarding post secondary education.
- 24. Participation of Minorities, Women and Small Businesses
 - a. To the fullest extent possible in the administration of this Agreement, Contractor agrees to provide opportunities for minorities, women and small businesses to participate in procurement under this Agreement.

E. Cost or Price Analysis.

- 1. Contractor shall establish standards for the performance of cost or price analysis.
- Contractor shall perform a cost or price analysis in connection with every procurement action, including
 contract modifications to determine that the expenditure is reasonable. The method and degree of
 analysis depends on the facts surrounding the particular procurement and pricing situation, but at a
 minimum, the Contractor shall make independent estimates before receiving bids or proposals.
 - a. A cost analysis is necessary when the offeror is required to submit the elements of the estimated cost, when adequate price competition is lacking, and for sole source procurement, including contract modifications or change orders, unless price reasonableness can be established on the basis of a catalog or market price of a commercial product sold in substantial quantities to the general public or based on prices set by law or regulation. As part of its bid the offeror shall certify that to the best of its knowledge and belief, the cost data are accurate, complete and current at the time of agreement on price.
 - b. Contracts or modifications negotiated in reliance on such data should provide the awarding agency a right to a price adjustment to exclude any significant sum by which the price was increased because the contractor had submitted data that were not accurate, complete or current as certified.
 - c. Any indirect costs in a proposal must be carefully reviewed to ensure that the costs are not duplicated by direct costs. Indirect costs must be allocated in accordance with an approved cost allocation plan.
 - d. If a bidder proposes to use a subcontractor as part of its proposal, all costs in the proposed subcontract must also be evaluated in the same manner as for the primary proposal.
 - e. Cost analysis must carefully evaluate salaries of owners of sole proprietorships or partnerships who submit offers to ensure that they are in line with the services to be performed.

- 3. A price analysis shall be used in all other instances to determine the reasonableness of the proposed contract price. The following price analysis techniques shall be used: i) comparison of proposed prices received; ii) comparison of prior prices received and current contract proposed prices for the same or similar requirement; iii) application of rough yardsticks (e.g., dollars per square foot, dollars per placement); iv) comparison with competitive published price lists and published market prices, and v) comparison with agency's independently developed cost estimates.
- 4. The following cost analysis steps shall be used 1) verify cost or pricing data and evaluate cost elements; 2) evaluate the effect of the offeror's current practices on future costs; 3) compare proposed costs for individual cost elements; 4) verify that offeror's cost submissions are in accordance with cost principles (allowable/allocable), and 5) review to determine that all necessary cost or pricing data have been submitted.
- 5. Agreement procurement shall not permit excess program income (for nonprofit and governmental entities) or excess profit (for private for-profit entities). If profit or program income is included in the price, the City or the Contractor shall negotiate profit or program income as a separate element of the price for each contract/subcontract in which there is no price competition and in all cases where cost analysis is performed. To establish a fair and reasonable profit or program income, consideration shall be given to:
 - a. The complexity of the work to be performed;
 - b. The risk borne by the contractor;
 - c. The Contractor's investment;
 - d. The amount of subcontracting;
 - e. The quality of the Contractor's record of past performance;
 - f. Industry profit rates in the surrounding geographical area for similar work; and
 - g. Market conditions in the surrounding geographical area.
- 6. The cost plus a percentage of cost method of contracting shall not be used.
- 7. All Contractors must comply with 24 CFR section 85.25 income regulations and City contract provisions regarding program income.
- 8. All goods and services procured pursuant to the Agreement must be in compliance with the allowable cost provisions in 29 CFR §97.27, 29 CFR 97.22 and 20 CFR 667.200, and any State or Federal directives on allowable costs.

F. Awarding of Agreement/Contract.

1. Prior to an award of a contract, the City shall make a determination that the Contractor has demonstrated effectiveness in providing RFP documented services. Agreements/Contracts shall be made only with responsible subcontractors who possess the potential ability to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of a proposed procurement. The selected proposer must be a responsive entity that has submitted a proposal or bid which meets all requirements of the solicitation adequately, which includes responding to the Request for Proposal (RFP)/ Request for Qualification (RFQ) within the required time frames, and completing all forms and documents. A responsible entity is one that has been determined to: 1) have a satisfactory record of integrity and business ethics; 2) have a satisfactory performance record; 3) have adequate financial resources to perform the contract or the ability to obtain such resources; 4) be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery or performance schedule, taking into consideration all existing commercial and business commitments; 5) have the needed organization, experience, accounting, operational control and technical skills or ability to obtain them; 6) have adequate production, construction or technical equipment and needed facilities or the ability to obtain them; 7) be able to meet the program design specifications; 8) be able to meet performance goals which includes a

showing of demonstrated effectiveness in providing employment and training services; 9) be able to provide services that can lead to the achievement of competency standards for participants, and 10) be both qualified and eligible to receive the award under applicable law and regulation. Contractor shall make the award(s) and finalize the contract(s). Contractor shall follow established procedures for formal notification of offerors of the results of the evaluations and selection process.

- 2. The City and its Contractors shall make positive efforts to utilize small business and minority-owned business as sources of supplies and services. Such efforts should allow these sources the maximum feasible opportunity to compete for contracts to be performed utilizing Federal grant funds.
- 3. Where such advertised bids are obtained, the awards shall be made to the responsible bidder whose bid is responsive to the invitation and is most advantageous to the grantee, price and other factors considered. Factors such as discounts, transportation costs, and taxes may be considered in determining the lowest bid. No points shall be given for status as a sub-contractor or a contractor with an approved childcare policy within existing delivery systems. However, if a bid results in a tie score, preference may be given to the Contractor or a subcontractor with an approved childcare policy.
- 4. Any or all bids may be rejected when it is in the City/Contractor's interest to do so, and such rejections are in accordance with applicable State and local law, rules, and regulations.
- G. Funding Restrictions for High Risk Contracts.
 - 1. Contractor may be considered "high-risk" if an awarding agency determines that the Contractor is otherwise responsible but:
 - a. Has a history of unsatisfactory performance;
 - b. Is not financially stable;
 - c. Has a management system which does not meet the management standards set forth in this part; or
 - d. Has not conformed to terms and conditions of a previously awarded grant or sub-grant.
 - 2. If the City/Contractor agency determines that a grant or sub-grant will be made to a "high-risk" Contractor or subcontractor, then special funding restrictions that address the "high-risk" status may be included in the contract or subcontract. Funding restrictions may include but are not limited to:
 - a. Use of reimbursements rather than advances or payment upon completion of the project;
 - b. Requiring additional and/or more detailed financial or performance reports;
 - c. Additional monitoring;
 - d. Requiring the Contractor or subcontractor to obtain specific technical or management assistance; and/or
 - e. Establishing additional prior approvals (e.g. requiring awarding agency approval prior to hiring/firing, award of small purchase contracts).
 - 3. If the City/Contractor decides to impose such funding restrictions, the awarding official will notify the Contractor or subcontractor as early as possible, in writing, of:
 - a. The nature of the funding restrictions;
 - b. The reason(s) for imposing them;
 - c. The corrective actions which must be taken before they will be removed and the time allowed for completing the corrective actions;

- d. The method of requesting reconsideration of the restrictions imposed, and
- e. Additional prior approvals.

H. City Code of Conduct

1. The Contractor shall comply with the Conflict of Interest provisions found in Section 513 of this Agreement.

I. Methods of Procurement

- Contractor shall use one of the following methods of procurement, as appropriate for each procurement action. When any purchase is made, it can only be for an allowable cost. Invitations for bids shall clearly set forth all requirements that the bidder must fulfill in order for his bid to be evaluated by the grantee. Complaint process procedures shall be included in each of the following methods of advertised procurement.
 - a. <u>Small Purchase Procedures</u>: Small purchases are made from vendors for goods or services under \$50,000. Following the procedures for small purchase will constitute justification of the procurement method chosen. The requirements are:

Dollar Range of Purchase	Contacts and Method
\$0 to \$24,999	2 written quotes or telephone bids
\$25,000 - \$50,000	3 bids with proposers submitting bids with original signatures [†]

- (1) Documentation: Each procurement must be documented. For the "2 written quotes or telephone bids," the documentation can include product or service catalogs, current price lists, or telephone contact with the vendors to obtain quotes (i.e., a memorandum that reflects the oral quotations by source and dated and signed by a staff person of the WorkSource Center obtaining the bids). Catalogs and price lists should be updated annually.
- (2) For "3 written or telephone bids," the Request for Quotation (RFQ) must either be provided in writing to the vendors or transmitted as uniformly as possible over the telephone. To be considered, the response must be signed and dated by the vendor responding to the RFQ.
- (3) A cost/price analysis must be conducted prior to purchase. Lowest price is the normal criteria for selecting goods and services. Qualifications of the vendor, availability of the goods or services, service to be provided, quality and location are some additional factors that could influence the procurement. The documentation must contain the basis for vendor selection. If the basis is something other than the price, the subrecipient must prepare written documentation describing the additional criteria for selection, its relevance to the need and benefit, and the relative advantage of the offering from the selected vendor. Documentation should be retained as described in the procurement procedures.
- (4) Many governmentally linked subrecipients purchase office supplies and basic office equipment through their central governmental supply house or procurement administration. Items procured for subrecipient use in this manner will be assumed, for the purposes of WIA, to be purchased competitively by the central governmental purchasing agency and to meet the requirements of these regulations. Any item purchased solely for WIA use must be purchased following EDD Directive WIA 00-2, the WIA, and its regulations.
- b. Sealed Bids—Formal Advertising

- (1) Contractor shall prepare an Invitation for Bid (IFB) or similar solicitation document that includes full and clear definitions and descriptions of the items to be procured and essential performance criteria, dimensions or specifications. Sealed bids shall be solicited publicly for procurement for a firm-fixed-price contract (lump sum or unit price) or other fixed-price arrangement. Contractor shall distribute the IFB to vendors on established bidders' lists (if available). Contractor shall publicly advertise the procurement in a local newspaper with Workforce Investment area-wide circulation and shall solicit from an adequate number of organizations, allowing sufficient time before the bid opening to permit adequate responses to the solicitation. Contractor shall notify the bidders of the dispute resolution process. The bids must be received and opened publicly at the time and place stated in the solicitation. Contracts shall be awarded to the responsible bidder whose bid, conforming to all the material terms and conditions of the invitation for bids, is the lowest in price. Contractor shall determine the demonstrated performance and ability of the lowest bidder who meets the technical requirements (for service providers).
- (2) Contractor reserves the right to reject any or all bids when the bid is non-responsive. However, Contractor must state this in the solicitation and the specific reasons must be fully described and documented in the procurement file. Contractor may award a firm fixed-price or fixed-unit price contract by written notice to the responsible offeror whose bid represents the lowest price and conforms with all of the specifications in the IFB. Contractor shall also provide written notification of the awarding of the contract to the bidders who were not accepted. Contractor shall document the procurement in the procurement file.

c. Competitive Proposals

- (1) Proposals shall normally be conducted with more than one source submitting an offer. Either a fixed-price or a cost-reimbursement contract should be awarded. Contractors shall ensure that they use a documented methodology for technical evaluations and shall award the contract to the responsible offeror whose proposals are most advantageous to the program with price, technical, and other factors considered. Requests for proposals must be formally advertised for all contracts above \$50,000.
- (2) This method is typically used when the nature of the goods or services to be acquired cannot be defined as precisely as required by the sealed bid method; and, specifically, when factors other than price are important in the selection decision.
- The subrecipient must indicate in the Request for Proposals (RFP) the scope of work and service area, the method for scoring the proposals, the deadline for receipt, and the dispute process. The various components of the request will be valued and the value assigned should be reasonable in relation to the entire request. The subrecipient can reserve the right to reject any or all bids when the bid is not responsive. However, the subrecipient must state this in the solicitation and the specific reasons must be fully described and documented in the procurement file. The subrecipient must establish a method for recording the date and time that proposals were received. This process must ensure that only proposals received in accordance with the date and time specified in the RFP qualify for the evaluation process. A log is an acceptable method for recording date and time of receipt. The subrecipient must conduct a cost or a price analysis of the proposals selected for consideration.

d. Noncompetitive Proposals - Sole Source

(1) To conduct a noncompetitive procurement, the criteria established here must be met. Sole source contracts shall be procured through solicitation of a proposal from only one source, the funding of an unsolicited proposal, or, after solicitation of a number of sources, when competition is determined inadequate. All sole source contracts require prior City approval. All sole source procurements must be documented, and the Contractor must have demonstrated performance in supplying the goods or services. Contractor shall minimize the use of sole source procurements to the extent practicable, but in every case, the use of sole source procurements shall be justified and documented.

- (2) Purchases of goods and services for the general administration of the administrative entity should follow normal business practices to ensure receipt and quality of the goods and services. Procurement by noncompetitive proposals may be used only when the award of a contract is unfeasible under small purchase procedures, sealed bids, or competitive proposals and one of the following circumstances applies:
 - (a) The item or service is available only from a single source;
 - (b) The public exigency or emergency need for the item or service does not permit a delay resulting from competitive solicitation and the procurement is for a limited time only;
 - (c) The awarding agency authorizes noncompetitive proposals;
 - (d) After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined inadequate;
 - (e) On-the-Job (OJT) training contracts, except OJT brokering contracts, which shall be selected competitively, or enrollment of individual customers in classroom training.
 - (i) Individual referral to classroom training and OJT procurements require special considerations. For every procurement from a training provider, school, or employer, a determination of demonstrated performance must be conducted. Prior to the enrollment of any customer, a school or training institution must meet the state requirements for conducting training (Private Post-secondary certification, Department of Health Services approval, business license, etc.). The catalog used for course selection must be updated at least annually and a copy must be retained for documentation. The Individual Employment Plan may be used to document the reasons for selection of the classroom training provider or the OJT employer.
 - (ii) The subrecipients may not place customers in OJT with employers who are debarred by the federal or state government.
 - (iii) Classroom training may be provided by either vendors or subrecipients. The type of organization (community college, adult school, high school, private school, etc.) does not determine the vendor or subrecipient designation. The determination is made based on the relationship between the service provider and the program using the definitions found in the regulations.
 - (iv) When purchasing training from an institution or OJT employer, the demonstrated performance of the vendor must be assured using prior history and documenting the source of the data. The LWIA or subrecipient placing a customer in training will need to ensure access to all records regarding the customer. Agreements with vendors and OJT employers must include statements that permit monitoring of the customer's financial and attendance records. For OJT employers the customer's financial records include time sheets, payroll records, and canceled checks. For training provided by vendors, customer's financial records include student loan, grant, and tuition information.
 - (v) The formal agreement between the vendor or OJT employer and the SDA or subrecipient must include language to ensure access to the above referenced records by the responsible entities. The responsible entities include the SDA, the subrecipient, the state, the Department of Labor, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives. The records include any books, documents, papers, and computer data directly pertinent to the records of the customer. The right to the records includes the right to make excerpts, transcripts, and photocopies. The right also includes the reasonable and timely access to personnel for the purpose of interviews and discussions related to the records of the customer.
- J. Appeal and Dispute Procedures

- 1. The City and its contractors shall have protest procedures to handle and resolve disputes relating to their procurements. A protester shall exhaust all administrative remedies with the Contractor before pursuing a protest at a higher level. Notice of appeal rights and procedures must be given to all bidders. WIA bidders who are dissatisfied may file a complaint in accordance with City WIA complaint procedures.
- 2. The selected bidders are offered contracts after the evaluation and negotiation process is competed. The contracts with subcontractors must contain all provisions set forth in S702K below, and the requirements of 29 CFR Part 97. The provisions listed under Section 627.420(h)(4)(ii) and (iii) are to be included only in applicable agreements. Agreements, with vendors who are not involved with carrying out the program, are not required to contain the clauses in Section 627.420(4). When purchasing material subject to copyright law, the subrecipient must include the copyright provisions in 29 CFR 97.34.
- 3. Regardless of the amount of the award, all subrecipients shall certify to a Drug Free Workplace. All awards to subrecipients in excess of \$100,000 shall certify that no funds shall be used for lobbying. All contracts and awards to vendors and subrecipients in excess of \$25,000 shall include debarment certifications.

K. RFP/RFQ Procedures.

- 1. It is a City policy to contract for services on the basis of demonstrated competence and reasonable price by obtaining bids or proposals. Before preparing a RFP for the procurement of services, several preliminary activities should be performed including the determination of the City's/Contractor's needs, consulting with contractors and other local governments, and developing an approach to the procurement process. Excluding small purchases, the Contractors must justify the procurement method used for each purchase. Once these activities are completed, the development of a RFP can begin.
- 2. The following guidelines apply to the preparation of written RFPs or RFQs. These provisions apply to this Agreement and to City Contractors who will need to make some modification to the language, which clarifies that the solicitation is from the Contractor and not the City. In the RFP process, cost is usually one of several selection criteria that proposers must address in their proposals. By contrast in the RFQ process, cost becomes a selection criterion only after qualified proposers have been identified from a review of their qualifications. RFQs are usually reserved for the selection of engineers, architects, or other highly specialized, technical providers.
- 3. The purpose of the guidelines is to present ideas and material that are characteristic of well prepared solicitations. The guidelines are not intended to provide total coverage of any topic. While the guidelines apply generally, exceptional circumstances may call for modifying or excluding one or more of the suggested provisions. In any case, the RFP or RFQ should be tailored to the job that needs to be done. The arrangement, adequacy, clarity, simplicity and appeal of the solicitation document shall remain the responsibility of the administering agency. To be most effective, a solicitation document should be clear and complete but avoid repetition, legalism or extraneous information. RFPs must be publicly advertised.

a. Standard RFP Format.

- (1) Cover Page. The cover page should describe briefly the scope of services requested, the format, the issuance date and the deadline of date and time for submission of proposals, and the Contractor contact for further information about the RFP. Include the name, address, telephone number and location of the person to whom the submission is to be made. If a proposers conference is appropriate, include information on the location, time and date of the event. All RFPs should include a deadline for receipt. Contractors shall have procedures to ensure that only proposals received in accordance with the date and time specified will be reviewed. All RFPs shall include the approximate date of the award notification.
- (2) Contents. The RFP should contain the following standard items which are discussed below:
 - (a) Introduction
 - (b) RFP Provisions

- (c) Statement of Work and Evaluation Criteria
- (d) Proposal Specifications
- (e) RFP Items Not Covered
- (f) References
- (g) Standard Contract Provisions
- (h) Indemnity and Insurance
- (i) Signatures and Declarations
- (j) Cover letter of proposal
- (k) Proposers Conference
- (I) Proposal evaluation for Request for Proposals
- (m) Disposition of Proposals
- (n) Description of failed competition and the rights and options in the event of a failure
- (o) RFP Revisions
- (p) Staff Reassignments
- (q) Complaint procedures to handle and resolve disputes relating to the procurement
- . (r) Inclusion of Contractual Provisions Required by External Funding Source
- (s) City/Contractor Policy Issue Summaries
 - (i) Affirmative Action
 - (ii) MBE, WBE and Other Business Enterprise Outreach Program.
 - (iii) Sample Policy Statement
 - (iv) Supplementary Instructions to Proposers and Proposer's Affidavit
 - (v) Contractual Provisions and Certifications, including, but not limited to, a Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements, only if Contractor receives State CSBG or WIA funds as a funding source under this Agreement; Certification Regarding Lobbying; Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion Lower Tier Covered Transaction; Certification Regarding Compliance With Service Contract Worker Retention and Living Wage Ordinances;; Certification of Compliance With Equal Benefits Ordinance/Reasonable Measures Application for Equal Benefits Ordinance.
- (3) Introduction.
 - (a) Describe in general terms the nature, scope and schedule of the work to be contracted, and the Contractor that will be responsible for administering the contract, including name and address of contracting agency.
 - (b) Describe the Contractor's organizational structure that is in place or will be established to facilitate the types of relationships and interactions which will be required to successfully complete the engagement. Present sufficient background and historical information about the project and the Contractor or other agency involved to permit a full understanding of the work to be contracted. State that as a

rule all proposals must be submitted in the English language, and that all numerical data must be the dollar-foot-pound-seconds units of measurement.

- (c) Describe the minimum and maximum amount of funding for the contract.
- (d) Request that proposals be prepared simply and economically, avoiding the use of unnecessary promotional materials. Proposals shall include a Table of Contents and a signature and date block for the offeror. Specify the number of copies of the proposal to be submitted to the Contractor. State that the Contractor shall accept no responsibility for the cost of preparing any proposal.
- (e) Request that proposals be enclosed in a single, sealed package plainly marked with the words "Proposal for (name of project as referenced in the RFP)." Declare that proposals shall be made as firm offers for a set period of time following the deadline for submittal. To ensure that the release of a RFP and receipt of any proposals are properly coordinated, contact the Purchasing Division, Department of General Services for assistance.
- (f) Direct proposers to address all questions regarding the RFP and their proposals to the assigned Contractor proposal administrator only. State that failure to comply with this requirement, other than as specifically permitted in the RFP, may disqualify a proposer from further consideration.
- (g) Contractor shall direct staff to respond to questions regarding the RFP and the submission requirements. Contractor shall record all responses, except those that are clearly answered in the RFP. Contractor shall provide a written copy of the responses to all parties to whom the RFP has been distributed, including those who attended the proposers' conference. This should be provided in a timely and frequent manner to ensure that all proposers are aware of the responses when preparing their proposal.
- (h) State that it is the Contractor's intent to award a contract, in a form approved by the Contractor, to the selected proposer. Indicate that the RFP and the Contractor's proposal or any part there of may be incorporated into and made a part of the contract. State that the Contractor reserves the right to further negotiate the terms and conditions of the contract. State that the Contractor, however, shall reserve the right to withdraw the RFP, to reject any proposal for noncompliance with RFP provisions, or not to award a contract at any time because of unforeseen circumstances or if it is determined to be in the best interest of the Contractor.
- (4) Statement of Work.
 - (a) Describe the tasks that the subcontractor will be responsible to perform. Clearly define the type, scope, schedule, and other relevant characteristics of each task. Use quantitative language whenever possible to establish an objective basis from which to evaluate responses. Describe the status and/or progress reporting that will be required of the subcontractor. Specify any other items that proposers should address, including, but not limited to, the following:
 - (i) Background or project content
 - 1) General requirement description
 - 2) Related projects
 - 3) Problem statement
 - 4) Statutory or regulatory foundation
 - (ii) *Project objectives
 - 1) *Purpose

- 2) *How results will be used
- (iii) *Scope of work
 - 1) *Population to be served
 - 2) *Number to be served
 - 3) Training or services to be provided
- (iv) *Period of Performance
- (v) *Performance Standards
- (vi) *Reporting Requirements

*Must be included in the proposal

- (b) Generally RFP based contracts are awarded on the basis of several criteria, such as the level of effort and method proposed to do the work, the credentials and related work experience of subcontractor personnel assigned to do the work, City/Contractor policy issues and price. Describe in the RFP the general criteria the Contractor intends to use to evaluate the written responses, and the assigned weight of each criterion.
- Proposed evaluation criteria can be complicated by the varying degrees to which the proposals meet, exceed, or fall below the specific requirements of the RFP. Scale the evaluation process to manageable proportions. The more complete and specific the RFP, the better it serves as a standard for measuring and evaluating proposals. Include a statement that the Contractor shall reserve the right to use such other criteria as may be deemed appropriate in evaluating the proposals, even if such criteria are not mentioned in the RFP. State that proposers submitting the highest-rated written responses may be called for an oral interview to further assess their qualifications. Describe the evaluation criteria that will be used in the interview if different from the written criteria in the RFP. A description of assigned weights may be included if appropriate.
- (d) If technical services are to be procured, a technical requirements section should be prepared. The technical requirements section should organize information in a form understandable to potential bidders and Contractor staff. For example, items that might be included in a technical requirements section to procure an automated system include:
 - (i) Description of current hardware and software operating environment;
 - (ii) Detailed description of all hardware and software requirements;
 - (iii) Indication of need for data conversion assistance;
 - (iv) Outline of orientation and training requirements, and,
 - (v) Indication of the need for a benchmark demonstration of system capabilities.
- (5) Proposal Specifications.
 - (a) Request proposers to demonstrate their capability to fulfill the work to be contracted. Proposers should provide specific information about the personnel, including subcontractors, if possible, who will be assigned to perform the work; past performance on projects of a similar nature including a client list, if possible; the proposed price to complete the work; adequate documentation on the financial status of the firm which will permit the Contractor to evaluate the proposer's ability to complete the work; and other work elements deemed necessary to evaluate the proposals.
 - (b) State that responses to the RFP must be made in accordance with the format set forth in the RFP. Indicate that a comprehensive index which includes a clear

definition of the content of the proposal and which identifies the information set forth therein by sequential page number and appropriate reference number is required. State that failure to meet this requirement may be cause for rejection of the proposal as non-responsive. Generally, each proposer should be requested to address the following specifications:

- (i) Assigned Personnel. The names of the key personnel, whom the proposer employs or plans to employ or hire through subcontract, to perform the requested services. For each person listed, the following information should be provided:
 - 1) Description of the work he or she will perform;
 - 2) Amount of time he or she will be assigned to work on the project;
 - 3) Academic achievements, including all college undergraduate and graduate education;
 - 4) Relevant work experience in years and level of responsibility.
 - 5) An organization chart depicting the lines of authority, the relationships of the organizational units and the names of the key personnel who will be doing the work.
- (ii) Project Cost.
 - 1) The total cost to the Contractor, broken down in salaries, expenses, equipment, and in hours and total dollar amount by deliverable task.
 - 2) Salary, or wage; billing rate for each employee.
 - 3) The proposed schedule of payment.
 - 4) All resources proposed to be supplied by the Contractor.
- (iii) Deliverables.
 - 1) The products that the subcontractor will deliver to the Contractor according to a set schedule, including the nature of the deliverables, e.g., oral or written reports, videotapes, or architectural models and, if applicable, number of copies to be provided of written products.
- (6) RFP Items Not Covered.
 - (a) Proposals should cover the statement of work and all the RFP specifications. Otherwise, proposers should state why the RFP requirements are not being addressed. If proposers wish to present qualifications in addition to the required items such information should be presented under the heading "Additional Qualifications We Wish To Present". Proposers who do not wish to present such information should state: "There are no additional qualifications we wish to present".
- (7) References.
 - (a) Request proposers to support their presentations by listing successfully completed projects that resemble the work to be done and the dates of completion. Request the name, title, address and phone numbers of a contact for each project.
- (8) Standard Contract Provisions.
 - (a) Sample standard contract provisions have been provided by the City of Los Angeles for Contractor's use. The document, which is available from the City, is updated periodically. Check with the City to ascertain use of the latest version. Unless the standard provisions are incorporated by reference and attached to the RFP, the general contract provisions that are expected to be included in the contract should be

excerpted from the standard provisions document and provided to prospective proposers.

- (9) Indemnity and Insurance.
 - (a) The standard City of Los Angeles insurance conditions are incorporated into the sample standard subcontract provisions. The specific insurance coverages and limits shall be described by contractor in the RFP. These coverages and limits should be tailored to the individual subcontract. For City contracts, Required Insurance and Minimum Limits are set by the City Risk Management staff in the Office of the City Administrative Officer of the City of Los Angeles on the Form Gen.146. Electronic submission is the preferred method of submitting your evidence of insurance documents. Track4LA™ is the City's online insurance compliance system and is designed to make the experience of submitting and retrieving insurance information quick and easy. The system is designed to be used primarily by insurance brokers and agents as they submit client insurance certificates directly to the City. It uses the standard insurance industry form known as the ACORD 25 Certificate of Liability Insurance in electronic format. The easiest and quickest way to obtain approval of your insurance is to have your insurance broker or agent access Track4LA™ at http://track4la.lacity.org/ and follow the instructions to register and submit the appropriate proof of insurance on your behalf. Additional instructions and information on complying with City of Los Angeles insurance requirements can be found at: http://cao.lacity.org/risk/Submitting_proof_of_Insurance.pdf.
- (10) Signatures and Declarations.
 - (a) Each proposal must be signed on behalf of the proposer by an officer authorized to bind the proposer, and must include the following declaration:
 - (i) This proposal is genuine, and not sham or collusive, nor made in the interest or in behalf of any person not herein named; the proposer has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other proposer to put in a sham bid, or any other person, firm or corporation to refrain from submitting a proposal; and the proposer has not in any manner sought by collusion to secure for himself an advantage over any other proposer.
- (11) Cover Letter of Proposal.
 - (a) The cover letter of each proposal should be limited to one page. The letter must include the title, address and telephone number of the person or persons who will be authorized to represent the proposer. The letter must be signed by a company officer authorized to bind the company to all commitments made in the proposal.
- (12) Proposers Conference.
 - (a) Determine if a proposers' conference will be conducted. A proposers' conference may be appropriate especially if the work to be contracted has not previously been done by contract or not done at all. If a proposers' conference is to be scheduled, designate a date, time and place at which proposers will be given the opportunity to pose questions about the RFP and notify all parties to whom the RFP has been distributed. The notification can be included in the RFP. Invite proposers to submit their questions in writing prior to the conference, and arrange, to the extent possible, for all questions to be answered at the conference. A memorandum for the proposers listing attendees, documenting in writing each question answered at the conference, any actions taken during the conference, etc. shall be prepared to document the conference and conveyed to the participants. Contractors shall provide this information directly to the proposers who received the RFP but were unable to attend the conference or as an addendum to the RFP for any subsequent requesters. The memorandum should be filed with the record set of contractual documents retained by the Contractor. Materials handed out at the proposer's

conference shall be available to all other parties following the conference. If a proposers' conference was not initially planned but the number or extent of questions regarding the RFP indicates a need for one, a separate notice should be mailed and the RFP due date extended if necessary.

- (13) Proposal Evaluation for Request for Proposals (RFP).
 - (a) Contractor/City shall develop proposal evaluation procedures in accordance with the requirements of Section D.14 above.
- (14) Failed Competition.
 - (a) The RFP shall provide that it is the Contractor's/City's authority to determine that the procurement process has failed. The basis for failure should include a lack of response to RFP; not enough bidders; a determination that the responses do not agree with mandatory requirements of the RFP; a determination that no proposer demonstrated effectiveness in providing the services solicited, and/or a determination that the award of a contract at this time to any proposer would not be cost effective, responsible or prudent. In the event that the City/Contractor determines that the procurement has failed, it may elect to negotiate a sole source agreement or develop and issue a new Request for Proposals.
- (15) Disposition of Proposals.
 - (a) State that all proposals submitted in response to the RFP shall become the property of the Contractor/City and a matter of public record. Also, proposers must identify all copyrighted material, trade secrets or other proprietary information that they claim are exempt from disclosure under the Public Records Act (California Code Sections 6250 et seq.). In the event such an exemption is claimed, the proposer shall be requested to state in the proposal that he or she will defend any action brought against the Contractor/City for its refusal to disclose such material, trade secrets or other proprietary information to any party making a request therefore.
- (16) RFP Revisions.
 - (a) Any revision made to an issued RFP shall be sent to all parties known to have received a copy of the original RFP.
- (17) Staff Reassignments.
 - (a) If the original selection of a subcontractor will be based in part on the qualifications of specific key individuals named in the proposal, state that the Contractor/City must approve in advance any changes in individuals or levels of commitment to the project. State that the Contractor will reserve the right to have the subcontractor replace any subcontractor project personnel.
- (18) Inclusion of Contractual Provision Required by External Funding Source.
 - (a) Federal, state and other funding agencies typically impose requirements on recipients of funds that apply to subcontractors. Such requirements should be reflected in RFPs and related contracts.
- (19) City Policy Issue Summaries.
 - (a) Affirmative Action. The City of Los Angeles' Administrative Code (Division 10, Chapter 1, Article 1, Section 10.8) establishes an affirmative action program for vendors doing business with the City. State that as a condition of contract award, the selected proposer shall be required to comply with the provisions of the City's

Affirmative Action program, including the submission of one of the following affirmative action plans: a) a trade association affirmative action plan, b) the proposer's own affirmative action plan, or c) an executed copy of the Los Angeles City Affirmative Action Plan. Refer to the provisions herein regarding nondiscrimination and affirmative action and recite the text of this provision in the RFP. Urge proposers to include an affirmative action plan in their proposals. Attach as an appendix to the RFP the City forms (GSS-AA 1) instructing prospective subcontractors about compliance with the City's Affirmative Action Program.

- (b) MBE, WBE and Other Business Enterprise Outreach Program. It is the policy of the City to provide minority business enterprises (MBEs), women business enterprises (WBEs) and all other business enterprises an equal opportunity to participate in the performance of all Contractor contracts, including procurement, construction and personal services. This policy applies to all Contractors. Be sure to comply with the provisions of City Executive Directive I-B and 1-C to ensure that MBEs, WBEs, and all other businesses are offered the greatest opportunity to compete for and perform subcontracts and provide personal services to the Contractor.
 - (i) Include a statement that proposers are to assist the Contractor in implementing this policy by taking all reasonable steps to ensure that all available business enterprises, including MBEs and WBEs, have an equal opportunity to compete for and participate in Contractor subcontracts. Inform proposers that equal opportunity will be determined by their good faith efforts comply with the Contractor's outreach program. Advise proposers that participation by MBEs, WBEs, and all other businesses may be in the form of joint ventures or subcontracting. Contractor is responsible for the implementation of MBE/WBE procedures.
- (c) Child Care Policy. It is the policy of the City to encourage all its vendors to adopt a stated policy on child- care. This policy acknowledges the importance of quality, affordable and accessible child care and commits the Contractor to use its resources as an educator, employer, role model and facilitator to act as a catalyst in expanding the supply of quality, affordable and accessible child care.
- 4. Consultant Directory. To assist Contractors in identifying potential subcontractors, the Office of the City Administrative Officer of the City of Los Angeles (CAO) maintains a computerized consultant directory. Firms are listed according to their fields of expertise, e.g., bond counsel, CPA, and human resources. Contact the CAO Productivity Group for access to the directory and for lists of firms in the form of mailing labels, hard copy reports or both.

L. Contract Provisions

- 1. All contracts must contain at a minimum the following provisions:
 - a. Specific deliverables and the basis for payment:
 - b. Provisions requiring compliance with grant regulations;
 - c. Provisions that describe remedies for breach;
 - d. Provisions that describe Agreement's patent and copyright rules;
 - e. Provisions for termination for cause and convenience;
 - f. Access to records for audit purposes;
 - g. Audit requirements;
 - h. Provisions for payment and delivery;

- Provisions describing contract amendment procedures;
- j. Provisions against assignment;
- k. Provisions for equal opportunity and non-discrimination;
- Provisions prohibiting conflicts of interest.

§703 RECORDS AND AUDITS OF SUBCONTRACTS

- A. Records shall be maintained in accordance with requirements prescribed by the City with respect to all matters covered by any subcontract. Such records shall be retained within the Los Angeles Area for a period of five (5) years after receipt of final payment under this Agreement, unless authorization to remove them is granted in writing by the City.
- B. Expenditures pertaining to subcontracts shall be supported by properly executed documents evidencing in detail the nature of the charges.
- C. At such times and in such forms as the City may require, there shall be furnished to the City such statements, records, reports, data and information as the City may request pertaining to matters covered by any subcontract.
- D. These records shall be made available to the City for copying, audit, and inspection at any time during normal business hours.

§704 COST-PLUS-A-PERCENTAGE-OF-COST-SUBCONTRACTING

A. Under no circumstances shall the Contractor enter into Cost-Plus-a-Percentage-of-Cost subcontracts.

§705 RESTRICTION ON DISBURSEMENTS

A. No money received pursuant to this Agreement by the Contractor shall be disbursed to any subcontractor except pursuant to a written agreement which incorporates the applicable General Contract Conditions as described herein and unless the subcontractor is in compliance with City requirements with regard to accounting and fiscal matters, to the extent that they are applicable.

§706 PARTICIPATION OF SMALL, MINORITY, AND WOMEN'S BUSINESS

- A. Consistent with Executive Order Nos. 11625, 12432, and 12138, Contractor shall provide opportunities for small, minority, and women's businesses to participate in contracting and procurement activities generated under this Agreement. The Contractor shall:
 - 1. Invite small, minority, and women's businesses to participate in procurements under this Agreement.
 - 2. Divide total requirements into small requirements to permit maximum small, minority, and women's business participation whenever economically feasible.
 - 3. Use the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration, the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce, and the Community Services Administration (or its successor), as required.
 - 4. The Contractor shall include the requirements of this section in every subcontract for work in connection with this Agreement and project.

8. REMEDIES

§801 WAIVERS

- A. Waivers of the provisions of this Agreement must be in writing and signed by the appropriate authorities of the City.
- B. No waiver by the City or breach of any provision of these conditions shall be deemed for any purpose to be waiver or a breach of any other provision or of a continuing or subsequent breach of the same provision.

§802 AMENDMENTS

- A. Either party may request an amendment to this Agreement. Amendments to this Agreement must be in writing and properly executed by both the City and the Contractor. No verbal agreement or conversation with any officer or employee of either party shall affect or modify any terms and conditions of this Agreement.
- B. The Contractor agrees to comply with all future City Directives or any rules, amendments or requirements promulgated by the City affecting this Agreement.

§803 DEFAULTS

- A. Should the Contractor fail for any reason to comply with the contractual obligations of this Agreement, including but not limited to, fails to meet the Performance Standards, fails to start up the program on time, fails to provide services according to plan and/or to benefit customers and the provisions of the Agreement, fails to maintain expenditures at an approved rate in the Budget/Expenditure Plan fails to resolve performance problems in a timely manner, fails to demonstrate the capabilities to solve identified problems within a specific time, fails to provide necessary fiscal or Management Information Services (MIS) documents to City in a timely manner, fails to maintain agreed cost per placement or fails to utilize City funds in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement, the City reserves the right to take any or all of the following actions at its discretion:
 - 1. Notify Contractor of performance deficiencies in accordance with §804 of this Agreement
 - 2. Withhold the release of funds
 - Require that no funds be advanced to Contractor until Contractor has provided for the security of funds advanced by a Surety/performance bond. The amount and form of the security, if required, shall be determined by the City as noted on Exhibit A (Insurance Requirement Form) and is subject to prior City approval.
 - 4. Modify and/or renegotiate the funding/service level and/or make any changes in the general scope of this Agreement
 - 5. Require Contractor to secure at its own expense the services of Independent Experts
 - 6. Require specific performance progress reports for identified time periods
 - 7. Reduce compensation within the scope of the City's reallocation policy.
 - 8. Suspend operations in accordance with §805 below of this Agreement.
 - Terminate the Agreement

§804 NOTICE TO CORRECT PERFORMANCE

A. The City may notify the Contractor of its failure to comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement by giving written notice, effective upon date of posting, which states the specific performance deficiencies to be corrected.

- B. Within ten (10) working days, the Contractor shall reply in writing setting forth the corrective actions that will be undertaken to remedy the performance deficiencies, which actions are subject to City approval in writing.
- C. Contractor shall thereafter submit monthly progress reports to the City in accordance with the City approved corrective action plan specifying the actions taken and resolution of the performance deficiencies.

§805 SUSPENSION OF THE AGREEMENT

- A. The City may, by giving written notice, suspend all or part of the project operations for Contractor's failure to comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement; and may notify the bank identified on the City form referenced in §104A.3 above that all funds are frozen pending further notice from the City. This Notice of Suspension shall be effective upon the date of posting.
- B. This notice shall set forth the specific conditions of noncompliance and the period provided for corrective action.
- C. Within ten (10) working days from the date of written City notification, the Contractor shall reply in writing setting forth the corrective actions which will be undertaken, subject to City approval in writing.

§806 TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

- A. The parties agree that at any time during the term of this Agreement, either party may terminate this Agreement, or any part of the Agreement, upon giving the other party at least 30 days written notice prior to the effective date of the termination, which date shall be specified in the notice. The City is not required to use other remedies provided in this Agreement prior to issuing a 30-day notice to terminate the Agreement.
- B. Contractor shall retain and dispose of all customers' documents and related records required by the Contractor under this Agreement, in accordance with City Directives or written instructions.
- C. Contractor shall return to the City all equipment that was purchased with City grant funds pursuant to this Agreement.
- D. In the event Contractor dissolves or otherwise goes out of existence, copies of all records relating to the project or activity that are the subject of this Agreement shall be furnished to the City.
- E. Upon satisfactory completion and documentation of termination activities, the City shall determine the total amount of funds earned by the Contractor.
- F. The City may withhold any payments due to the Contractor after notice of termination has been issued for the purpose of set-aside until the exact amount of damages or unearned dollars due to the City from the Contractor is determined.
- G. Subsections B, C, D, E, and F above shall also apply to Agreements terminating upon the date specified in §103 of the foregoing Agreement or upon completion of performance of this Agreement.

§807 BREACH

A. In the event any party fails to perform, in whole or in part, any promise or covenant in this Agreement, or should any representation made by it be untrue, any aggrieved party may avail itself of all rights and remedies, at law or equity, in the courts of law. These rights and remedies are cumulative of those provided for in this Agreement with respect to termination, if any, except that in no event shall any party recover more than once, suffer a penalty or forfeiture, or be unjustly compensated.

§808 NOTICES OF SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION

A. In the event that this Agreement is suspended or terminated, the Contractor shall immediately notify all employees and customers and shall notify in writing all other parties contracted with under the terms of Agreement within five (5) working days after receiving the notice from the City.

§809 GRIEVANCE AND COMPLAINT RESOLUTION PROCEDURES

A. City WIA Complaint Resolution Procedures

- Contractor shall comply with the Los Angeles City WIA Complaint Resolution Procedures, and any changes incorporated therein during the term of this Agreement, in the resolution of complaints alleging a violation of the WIA, the WIA regulations, the grant, or any other Agreements under the Act. City shall furnish a copy of its procedures to Contractor upon execution of this Agreement.
- 2. Contractor shall provide to each eligible customer and staff employee a copy and/or summary of the City's WIA Complaint Resolution Procedures during orientation. In the event that Contractor subcontracts with another party for the provisions of training or job development services to a customer, the subcontract shall require that the customer receive access to WIA complaint procedures at each tier of service. Contractor shall maintain written documentation on file that each WIA staff person and customer has received information regarding the City's WIA Complaint Resolution Procedures.
- 3. Contractor shall designate a staff person as the EO Complaint Officer. The EO Complaints Officer WIA responsibilities will be to: notify the City of Los Angeles, Community Development Department (CDD), EO Compliance Unit within 24 hours of acceptance of a WIA complaint; conduct an informal resolution meeting and attempt to resolve the complaint filed within 15 calendar days of its receipt and acceptance; refer all WIA discrimination complaints directly to the CDD EO Compliance Unit; represent the contractor in WIA administrative hearing conducted under the complaint procedures.

B. Contractor WIA Customer Complaint Resolution Procedures

- Contractor shall designate an EO Complaints Officer whose duties will be to develop, administer, and
 maintain procedures for the resolution of complaints involving Individual Training Accounts and customer
 employment (On-the-Job Training). Contractor shall advise complainant that all discrimination complaints
 should be filed directly with the City of Los Angeles, EO Compliance Unit.
- 2. Contractor shall post in a public location initial and continuing notice of the local grievance and complaint procedures and instructions on how to file a complaint. Copies shall be made available to the general public upon request.
- 3. Contractor shall provide each customer with a copy of its internal WIA customer complaint resolution procedures upon registration into the program or during orientation. In the event that Contractor subcontracts with another party for the provision of training or job development services to a customer, the subcontract shall require that the customer receive access to WIA complaint procedures at each tier of service. Contractor shall maintain written documentation that each customer has received a copy of Contractor's WIA customer complaint resolution procedures and signature acknowledging receipt shall be in its original form.
- 4. Where a hard copy case file is maintained, a copy of the acknowledgment of receipt of the Grievance and Complaint Procedures shall be signed by the participant and included in each participant's case file. Where an electronic case file is maintained, Contractor must make a note indicating this notification did occur, the date of the notification, and the name of Contractor staff person who provided it.
- C. Contractor shall not discriminate or retaliate against any person, or deny to any person a benefit to which that person is entitled under the provisions of the WIA or WIA Regulations because such person has filed a complaint, has instituted or caused to be instituted any proceeding under or related to the Act, has testified or is about to testify in any such proceeding or investigation, or has provided information or assisted in any investigation.
- D. Contractor shall provide technical assistance (TA) to the complainants, including those grievances or complaints against the Contractor. Such TA shall include providing instructions on how to file a grievance or complaint, providing relevant copies of documents such as the WIA, regulations, rules, contracts, etc. and providing clarifications and interpretations of relevant provisions. This requirement shall not be interpreted as requiring Contractor to violate rules of confidentiality.

E. Contractor shall permit the Civil Rights Center (CRC), U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) (or a representative) access to its premises, customers, employees, books, and papers should the need arise during a complaint investigation.

9. ENTIRE AGREEMENTCOMPLETE AND INTEGRATED AGREEMENT

§901 Complete and Integrated Agreement

A. This Agreement contains the full, complete and integrated Agreement between the two parties. No verbal agreement or conversation with any officer or employee of either party shall affect or modify any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Except as amended, all terms and conditions shall remain in full force and effect. The provisions of this Agreement which impose an on-going duty shall survive beyond the termination of expiration of the Agreement.

§902 NUMBER OF PAGES AND ATTACHMENTS

A. This Agreement is executed in two (2) duplicate originals, each of which is deemed to be an original. This Agreement includes Eighty-nine (89) pages and Seven (7) Exhibits which constitute the entire understanding and agreement of the parties.

p:\wdd\final documents\fy 10-11\worksource\cityoflongbeach (t4668).doc

10. SIGNATURE PAGE

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Los Angeles and the Contractor have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized representatives.

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:	Executed this 26th day of July , 2010
By Aussa Clarado Deputy, Assistant City Attorney Date 7/27/10 ATTEST: JUNE LAGMAY, City Clerk By Date: 7-27-10	For: THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES RICHARD L. BENBOW General Manager Community Development Department By: ROBERT SAINZ Assistant General Manager
(Contractor's Corporate Seal)	Executed this day of, 2010 For: City of Long Beach (as Administering Entity for Pacific Gateway Workforce Investment Network) By: Assistant City Manager EXECUTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 301 OF THE CITY CHARTER. By Larry Herrela City Clerk
City Business License Number: 99999999	APPROVED AS TO FORM
Internal Revenue Service ID Number:	6.24 2016

Council File Number: 10-0990; Date of Approval: June 30, 2010

Said Agreement is Number C-11765) of City Contracts (T4668)

PRINCIPAL DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY

EXHIBIT A INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK FOR CONTRACTOR AS AN OTHER GOVERNMENTAL BODY THAT SELF-INSURES

EXHIBIT B NOTICE OF PROHIBITION AGAINST RETALIATION

An employer subject to the Living Wage Ordinance shall post in a prominent place in an area frequented by employees a copy of the below notice to employees regarding the LWO prohibition against retaliation (also available in English at http://bca.lacity.org/site/pdf/lwo/Notice To Employees Of Retaliation (english).pdf and in Spanish at http://bca.lacity.org/site/pdf/lwo/Notice To Employees Of Retaliation (spanish).pdf. The retaliation notice must be posted by an employer even if the employer has been exempted from the LWO.

NOTICE TO EMPLOYEES WORKING ON CITY CONTRACTS RE: LIVING WAGE ORDINANCE AND PROHIBITION AGAINST RETALIATION

"Section 10.37.5 Retaliation Prohibited" of the Living Wage Ordinance (LWO) provides that any employer that has a contractual relationship with the City **may not** discharge, reduce the pay of, or discriminate against his or her employees working under the City contract for any of the following reasons:

- 1. Complaining to the City if your employer is not complying with the Ordinance.
- 2. Opposing any practice prohibited by the Ordinance.
- 3. Participating in proceedings related to the Ordinance, such as serving as a witness and testifying in a hearing.
- 4. Seeking to enforce your rights under this Ordinance by any lawful means.
- 5. Asserting your rights under the Ordinance.

Also, you may not be fired, lose pay or be discriminated against for asking your employer questions about the Living Wage Ordinance, or asking the City about whether your employer is doing what is required under the LWO. If you are fired, lose pay, or discriminated against, you have the right to file a complaint with the Equal Employment Opportunity/Affirmative Action Section, as well as file a claim in court.

For more information, or to obtain a complaint form, please call the Equal Employment Opportunities Enforcement Section at (213) 847-1922.

CITY OF LOS ANGELES
Department of Public Works
Bureau of Contract Administration
Office of Contract Compliance
1149 S. Broadway Street, 3rd Floor
Los Angeles, CA 90015

Phone: (213) 847-1922 — Fax: (213) 847-2777

Rev. 06/06

EXHIBIT C CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Executive Orders 12459 and 12689, Debarment and Suspension, 24 CFR Part 24 Section 24.510, and 29 CFR Parts 97.35 and 98.510, Participants' responsibilities.

(READ ATTACHED INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION BEFORE COMPLETING)

- 1. The prospective recipient of Federal assistance funds certifies that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency.
- 2. Where the prospective recipient of Federal assistance funds is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

AGREEMENT NUMBER: C-11765/

City of Long Beach (as Administering Entity for Pacific Gateway Workforce Investment Network) CONTRACTOR/BORROWER/AGENCY

Patrick H. West, City Manager

NAME AND TITLE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Assistant City Manager

7.1

6-24 2010

SIGNATURE

EXECUTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 301 OF THE CITY CHARTER.

DATE

APPROVED AS TO FORM

ROBERT E, SHANNON City Attorney

PRINCIPAL DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY

Exhibit C (cont.) INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

- 1. By signing and submitting this document, the prospective recipient of Federal assistance funds is providing the certification as set out below.
- 2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective recipient of Federal assistance funds knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.
- 3. The prospective recipient of Federal assistance funds shall provide immediate written notice to the person to whom this agreement is entered, if at any time the prospective recipient of Federal assistance funds learns that its certification was erroneous, when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.
- 4. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of rules implementing Executive Orders 12459 and 12689.
- 5. The prospective recipient of Federal assistance funds agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction originated.
- 6. The prospective recipient of Federal assistance funds further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.
- 7. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the <u>List of Parties Excluded from Procurement or Non-Procurement Programs</u>.
- 8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.
- 9. Except for transactions authorized under Paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntary excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

EXHIBIT D CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans and Cooperative Agreements

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

- 1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement.
- 2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying" in accordance with its instructions.
- 3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.
- 4. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352 Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less that \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

AGREEMENT NUMBER: C-117651

City of Long Beach (as Administering Entity for Pacific Gateway Workforce Investment Network)
CONTRACTOR/BORROWER/AGENCY

Patrick H. West, City Manager
NAME AND TITLE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Assistant City Manager

SIGNATURE

EXECUTED PURSUANT
DATE

THE CITY CHARTER.

APPROVED AS TO FORM

TO SECTION 301 OF

ROBERT E. SHANNON Tity Attorney

PRINCIPAL DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY

EXHIBIT E

MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATION

As a prerequisite to receipt of a City funded Contract, and as material facts upon which the City may rely in preparing the Contract, I, an authorized representative of the Contractor, make the following representations:

1.	Accepte make a	sponsible for the fair presentation of the Contractor's financial records/reports in conformity with Generally of Accounting Principles (GAAP) and have provided such records/reports accordingly to the City. I will vailable to City all related data and information. I am not aware of any material transactions that have not operly recorded and disclosed.
	True x	False
2.	The Co	ntractor has adopted sound accounting policies and procedures in accordance with GAAP that include ires for maintaining internal controls, and preventing and detecting fraud and abuse.
	True x	False
3.	Director	advised and will continue to advise the City of any actions taken at meetings of Contractor's Board of rs, and Committees of the Board of Directors which may have a material impact on Contractor's ability to the City's Contract.
	True x	False
4.	Except	as recorded or disclosed to you herein, I know of no instances of:
	a.	Conflict of interests (direct or indirect), nepotism, related (direct or indirect) party transactions including revenues, expenses, loans, transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to related parties.
		True x False
	b.	Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the Contractor is contingently liable.
		True x False
	C.	Actual, forthcoming or possible terminations of funding from regulatory agencies or other sources due to noncompliance, deficiencies, or for any other reason, that would affect the financial records and/or continuing viability of the Contractor as an on-going concern.
		True x False
5.		no knowledge that a board member/s is/are also an employee of this Contractor whose salary costs are sed under this agreement.
	True x	False
6.	or abus	no knowledge of and am not in receipt of any communication regarding allegations of fraud, suspected fraud se affecting the Contractor involving management, employees who have significant roles in internal control, are where fraud/abuse could have a material effect on the financial records or performance of the City ct.
7.	1 have	False \square no knowledge of any allegations, written or oral, of misstatements or misapplication of funds in the ctor's conduct of its financial affairs or in its financial records.
	True x	False
8.		at aware of any pending litigation, bankruptcy, judgment, liens and other significant issues that may threaten incial viability, legal and continuing existence of the Contractor.
	True x	False

EXHIBIT E Page 1 of 2

9.	The Contractor has satisfactory title to all assets being used in the City's program, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such assets, nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.
	True x False
10.	The Contractor has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements, related laws and regulations that could have a material effect on the financial records, the program/s, or on the organization as a whole.
	True x False 🗌
11.	I have properly reported and paid to the appropriate governmental agencies all payroll taxes due on employees' (City program related or otherwise) compensation.
	True x False
12.	I have responded fully to all the City's inquiries related to the Contractor's financial records and/or reports.
	True x False
13.	I understand that the City's auditing and monitoring procedures of Contractor are limited to those which the City determines best meet its informational needs and may not necessarily disclose all errors, irregularities, including fraud or defalcation, or illegal acts, that may exist.
	True x False
14.	I understand that the City audit and monitoring reports are intended solely for use by the Contractor and the other authorized parties, and are not intended for other purposes, unless otherwise required by law.
	True x False
15.	If one or more of the above statements is found to be false, I understand that the City may terminate this contract immediately. I also understand that I have a continuing duty to report to City any material factual change to any of these statements.
l	True x False Jse this space to provide any additional information:
l declare knowledg	under penalty of perjury that I have read the foregoing statements and they are true and complete to the best of my le.
AGREE	MENT NUMBER: C-117651
	ong Beach (as Administering Entity for Pacific Gateway Workforce Investment Network) ACTOR/BORROWER/AGENCY
	H. West, City Manager AND TITLE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE Assistant City Manager 7.0.10
SIGNAT	TO SECTION 301 OF THE CITY CHARTER. APPROVED AS TO FORM
	6.24 20.10
	ROBERT E. SHANNON City Attorney
	Charles Parkin
	PRINCIPAL DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY

EXHIBIT F CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor certifies that it will provide a drug-free workplace, in accordance with the California Drug Free Workplace Act of 1990 (Title 2 Govt. Code of State of California §§8351 *et seq.*) by:

- 1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Contractor's workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition.
- 2. Establishing a drug-free awareness program to inform employees about:
 - a. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
 - b. The Contractor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
 - Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and
 - d. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace.
- Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the WIA program be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph 1. above.
- 4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph 1. that, as a condition of employment under the WIA program, the employee will:
 - a. Abide by the terms of the statement, and
 - b. Notify the Contractor of any criminal drug statute convictions for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five days after such conviction.
- 5. Notifying the City within ten days after receiving notice under subparagraph 4. b. from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
- 6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 days of receiving notice under subparagraph 4.b. with respect to any employee who is so convicted:
 - a. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including termination, or
- 7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of the provision of this certification.

AGREEMENT NUMBER: C-117651

<u>City of Long Beach (as Administering Entity for Pacific Gateway Workforce Investment Network)</u> CONTRACTOR/BORROWER/AGENCY

Patrick H. West, City Manager NAME AND TITLE OF AUTHORIZED REPRES	FNTATIVE
Assistant City Manager EXECUTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 301 OF	7.6.10
SIGNATURE THE CITY CHARTER.	DATE
APPROVED AS TO FORM	
6-24 2010	
ROBERT E. SHANNON City Attorney	
3y Charles Partin	EVIUDIT E
PRINCIPAL DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY	EXHIBIT F

EXHIBIT G CERTIFICATION REGARDING RELOCATION OF BUSINESS

This certification is required of all the Contractors who have relocated their place of business within the preceding 120 days of receiving this Agreement. This certification is required pursuant to the regulations implementing the WIA as amended, 29 USC §2731 et seq. The regulations prohibit the use of any WIA funds by an entity that has relocated within the previous 120 days, where such relocation has caused the loss of employment of any employee at the original location.

The Contractor certifies as follows:

"I have read the foregoing regulations and I certify on behalf of the Contractor mentioned below that if this Contractor has relocated its place of business within the past 120 days, that such relocation has not resulted in the loss of employment for any employee at the original location. I also certify that any funds provided by us to any subcontractor(s) shall require the same certification."

AGREEMENT NUMBER: C-11765/

City of Long Beach (as Administering Entity for Pacific Gateway Workforce Investment Network)

CONTRACTOR/BORROWER/AGENCY

Patrick H. West, City Manager

NAME AND TITLE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Assistant City Manager

EXECUTED PURSUANT SIGNATURE

TO SECTION 301 OF

THE CITY CHARTER.

APPROVED AS TO FORM

CDD CONTRACT SUMMARY SHEET

To: The Office of the City Attorney, Room 920, CHE
The Office of the City Clerk, Index Section, Room 395, CH
The Office of Contract Compliance (OCC), Mail Stop #138, 1149 S. Broadway, 3rd fl.

From: Community Development Department
Administrative Services Division
Contract Unit (213) 744-9001
CU Analyst/Phone: Sucy Yu (213) 744-7212

Contract No: (T4668) C-1/765-/
Division: Division: Division: Division: Division: Amendment Amount: \$-

Amendment Amount: \$-Amendment No: ☐ Council Amendment Amendment Authority: Administrative Code 14.8 Council File No: 10-0990 Contractor Name: City of Long Beach (as Administering Entity for Pacific Gateway Workforce Investment Network) Date of Approval: June 30, 2010 Term of Contract: July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2011 Total Amount: \$828,982.00 Funding Source: WIA Adult: \$484,125.00 WIA Dislocated Worker: \$344,857.00 Line Item of Authority: Project Title: WorkSource Center - Harbor WorkSource Center ☐ Consolidated Plan, Year ID: WIA Annual Plan, Year 11, Activity: 1 Other: Operating Division Analyst-Phone: Stella Sepulveda-Catanzarite 310-732-4657 PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT/AMENDMENT: TO PROVIDE TRAINING AND EMPLOYMENT SERVICES TO ADULTS AND DISLOCATED WORKERS IN NEEDED JOB SECTORS

Contractor Address:	3447 Atlantic Ave., Long Beach, CA 90807 (562) 570-3700				
Contact/Title/Phone:	Bryan S. Rogers, WIB Executive Director (562) 570-3701				
Contract/Amendment Number	Authority		Description	Dollar Amount	
Original				\$828,982.00	
			-		
		TOTAL AMOUNT cumulative)	(requires Council Amend if over \$25,000	\$828,982.00	

AUG 1 0 2010 BY: #WH - WDB